Public Document Pack
{gl Tameside

Metropolitan Borough

ASHTON-UNDER-LYNE - AUDENSHAW - DENTON - DROYLSDEN - DUKINFIELD - HYDE - LONGDENDALE - MOSSLEY - STALYBRIDGE

SPEAKERS PANEL (PLANNING)

Day: Wednesday

Date: 4 September 2019

Time: 10.00 am

Place: Guardsman Tony Downes House, Manchester Road,

Droylsden, M43 6SF
Item AGENDA Page
No. No
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive any declarations of interest from Members of the Council.
3. MINUTES 1-4

The Minutes of the meeting of the Speakers Panel (Planning) held on 31 July
2019, having been circulated, to be signed by the Chair as a correct record.

4, OBJECTIONS TO PROPOSED PARKING TRAFFIC REGULATION 5-14
ORDERS, ASHTON TOWN CENTRE

Report of the Assistant Director, Operations and Neighbourhoods, attached.
5. PLANNING APPLICATIONS

To consider the schedule of applications.

a) 19/00334/FUL - LAND AT RUTLAND STREET, ASHTON-UNDER-LYNE 15-46

b) 19/00067/FUL - HILL STREET WORKS, HILL STREET, HYDE 47 -70

c) 18/00818/FUL - FORMER GLOBE WORKS, BROOK STREET, HYDE 71-108

d) 19/00245/REM - LAND TO THE WEST OF MILVERTON AVENUE, 109-136
HATTERSLEY

e) 19/00545/FUL - SITE OF FORMER SAMUEL LAYCOCK SCHOOL, 137-150
MERESIDE, STALYBRIDGE

6. APPEAL DECISION NOTICES

a) APP/G4240/D/19/3230080 - 18 HOLLYBANK, DROYLSDEN. M43 7SP 151 - 152
b) APP/G4240/W/3227157 - 40 ARDENFIELD, DENTON. M34 7LN 153 - 156
c) APP/G4240/D/19/3228420 - 21 MANSFIELD ROAD, HYDE. SK14 5PF 157 - 158

From: Democratic Services Unit — any further information may be obtained from the reporting
officer or from Carolyn Eaton, Senior Democratic Services Officer, 342 3050 or
carolyn.eaton@tameside.gov.uk, to whom any apologies for absence should be notified.



Item AGENDA Page
No. No

7. URGENT ITEMS

To consider any other items, which the Chair is of the opinion should be
considered as a matter of urgency.

From: Democratic Services Unit — any further information may be obtained from the reporting
officer or from Carolyn Eaton, Senior Democratic Services Officer, 0161 342 3050 or
carolyn.eaton@tameside.gov.uk, to whom any apologies for absence should be notified.



mailto:Carolyn.eaton@tameside.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 3

SPEAKERS PANEL

(PLANNING)

31 July 2019
Comm: 10.00am Term: 11.00am
Present: Councillor McNally (Chair)

Councillors: Choksi, Dickinson, Glover, Gosling, Lewis, Owen,
Ricci, Ward and Wild

Apologies for absence: Councillor Naylor

15. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest declared by Members.

16. MINUTES

The Minutes of the proceedings of the meeting held on 19 June 2019, having been circulated, were
taken as read and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

17. OBJECTIONS TO THE TAMESIDE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH (STOCKPORT ROAD,
WYCH FOLD AREA, HYDE) (PROHIBITION OF WAITING) ORDER 2018

Consideration was given to a report of the Director, Operations and Neighbourhoods, outlining
objections received to the proposed waiting and stopping restrictions.

It was explained that the Council had been approached by a company called Superior Food
Machinery (SFM) that operated from premises on Wych Fold. For many years the company had
experienced problems with obstructive parking as there was a propensity for vehicles to park both
opposite and adjacent to their works entrance. This was restricting the access/egress for their
delivery vehicles which ranged in size form transit sized vans to 40ft articulated lorries and the
company reported that parked vehicles had been damaged as a consequence. Concerns had also
been raised by The Werneth House Community Centre, also sited on Wych Fold. Visitors to the
Centre reported that they often had difficulty accessing the Centre’s off street disabled parking
area, owing to the entrance being obstructed by parked vehicles.

In response to the issues raised, the Council proposed waiting restrictions on the east and west
side of Wych Fold and at various junctions within the Stockport Road, Wych Fold area, as defined
in the scheduled of works.

A scheme was advertised in February 2018 and 14 objections were received. However, one was
discounted as no grounds for the objection were specified. The majority of objections raised
concerns in respect of the limited availability of on street parking for visitors to local amenities and
shops with the vicinity. Further concerns included: elderly/people with mobility problems would be
unable to park in close proximity when visiting the community centre; and that the proposed
restrictions around the junction of Enfield Street and Stockport Road would displace parking and
increase non-residential parking leaving some residents unable to park near to their properties.

Page 1



One objector suggested that if restrictions were necessary that they be restricted to between the
hours of 08.00 to 18.00.

Representations had also been received from a resident on Hudson Road; the resident fully
supported the proposals at this location in the interests of road safety but felt that the proposals
were not extensive enough.

Officer responses to the objections were detailed in the report.
scheme were received from the statutory consultees.

No objections to the proposed

The Panel considered the views of Mr Goddard and Mr Mann, local residents, who addressed the
Panel objecting to the proposals. They explained how the proposed restrictions would affect their
ability to park outside their property. It was suggested, should restrictions be necessary, that they
be limited to weekdays 08.00 — 18.00.

Discussion ensued with regard to the proposal and consideration was given to the information
provided including the objections raised, responses given and representations made at the
meeting, and it was:

RESOLVED

That authority be given for the necessary action to be taken in accordance with the Road
Traffic Regulation Act 1984 to make the following order: THE TAMESIDE METROPOLITAN
BOROUGH (STOCKPORT RAOD, WYCH FOLD AREA, HYDE) (PROHIBITION OF WAITING)
ORDER 2019 as follows:

SCHEDULE
No Waiting Monday — Friday 08.00 — 18.00

Stockport from a point 10 metres west of its junction with Tatton Street to a
Road point 10 metres east of that junction.

(north side)

Stockport from a point 10 metres west of its junction with Enfield Street to a
Road point 15 metres east of the extended south easterly kerb line of
(north side) Enfield Street with Stockport Road.

Enfield Street
(both sides)

from its junction with Stockport Road for a distance of 15 metres
in a north-easterly direction.

Wych Fold from a point 15 metres south of its junction with Stockport Road to
(west side) its junction with Hudson Road.

Wych Fold from a point 27 metres south of its junction with Stockport Road
(east side) for a distance of 18 metres in a southerly direction.

Wych Fold from its junction with Hudson Road for a distance of 15 metres in a
(east side) northerly direction.

Hudson Road
(north side)

from a point 10 metres west of its northerly junction with Wych
Fold to a point 5 metres east of that junction.

Hudson Road
(south side)

from a point 28 west of its southerly junction with Wych Fold for a
distance of 23 metres in a westerly direction

Page 2




18. PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The Panel gave consideration to the schedule of applications submitted and it was:-

RESOLVED

That the applications for planning permission be determined as detailed below:-

Name and Application No:

19/00334/FUL

Richmond Fellowship

Proposed Development:

Demolition of existing buildings and construction of a
supported housing scheme (use class C2) and associated
landscaping and access.

Land at Rutland Street, Ashton-under-Lyne

Speaker(s)/Late
Representations:

Councillor Sidebottom and Mr Smith addressed the Panel in
objection to the proposal.

Mr Sam Baird, Architect, addressed the Panel in support of the
application.

Additional Information:

Mr Leigh, Development Manager, explained that post
publication of the agenda, officers noted a drafting error:
condition 16 referred to badgers but should refer to bats.
However, also during this time, officers had been in
discussions with the applicant regarding the wording of this
condition, and therefore condition no 16 in the report be
substituted by the following:

16. The development shall be carried out in accordance with
the precautionary measures detailed in Section 4.5 of the
Preliminary Bat Survey report produced by Brimstone Ecology
(version 3 dated 17 march 2019) submitted with the planning
application).

Decision:

That consideration of the application be deferred to a future
meeting to allow Panel Members to conduct a site visit to
consider traffic issues, as raised by objectors both in the
report and by representations at the meeting.

Name and Application No

19/00327/FUL
Involvement Packaging Ltd

Proposed Development:

Erection of a single storey pitched roof warehouse to be used
for storage and distribution purposes (Use Class B8).

Land at car park to the north of Frederick House, Dukinfield
Road, Hyde.

Speaker(s)/Late
Representations:

Charlotte Fowler, agent, addressed the Panel in support of the
application.

Decision:

That planning permission be approved subject to conditions
as detailed within the submitted report.

Page 3




Name and Application No 19/00399/FUL
Onward Homes

Proposed Development: Enabling works including site clearance and engineering
operations including removal of contaminants and re-
formation of site levels.

Site of Former District Centre, Land Bounded by Hattersley
Road East, Mottram, Tameside. SK14 3EQ

Speaker(s)/Late Jason Dugdale, on behalf of the applicant, addressed the
Representations: Panel in support of the application.
Decision: That planning permission be approved subject to conditions

as detailed within the submitted report.

19.  APPEAL DECISIONS

Application reference/Address of | Description Appeal Decision
Property.
APP/G4240/D/19/3227164 Re-modelling of rear garden | Appeal allowed.

area including construction of
steps/raised platform and
erection of 2.3m high boundary
fence.

9 Hawthorn Drive, Stalybridge.
SK15 1UE

APP/G4240/WI19/3226399 Use of an outbuilding as a two- | Appeal dismissed.
Land adjacent to 30 Ivy Cottages, | bedroom bungalow. Award

Denton. M34 7PZ of costs

refused.

20. CHAIR’S CLOSING REMARKS

The Chair announced that this was the last Speakers’ Panel (Planning) meeting for the Head of
Legal Services, Aileen Johnson, who was retiring at the end of August. He thanked Aileen for all
her hard work and wished her well for the future.

CHAIR

Page 4




Report To:
Date:

Reporting Officer:

Subject:

Report Summary:

Recommendations:

Links to Community Strategy:

Policy Implications:

Financial Implications:
(Authorised by the Section 151
Officer)

Legal Implications:

(Authorised by the Borough
Solicitor)

Governance arrangements:

(if applicable, the intended
governance arrangements e.g.
key decision, executive
decision)

Risk Management:

Access to Information:

Agenda Item 4

SPEAKERS PANEL (PLANNING)

4 September 2019

Emma Varnam - Assistant Director, Operations and
Neighbourhoods
OBJECTIONS TO PROPOSED PARKING TRAFFIC

REGULATION ORDERS, ASHTON TOWN CENTRE

This report outlines objections received from local businesses
and residents to proposed limited parking scheme for Ashton
town centre which is designed to replace the paid parking
scheme.

That authority is given for the necessary action to be taken in
accordance with the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 to make
the following order, as originally advertised, the TAMESIDE
METROPOLITAN BOROUGH (STAMFORD STREET AREA,
ASHTON UNDER LYNE) (RESTRICTION OF WAITING)
ORDER 2019 as detailed in 5.1 below.

Transport Infrastructure Schemes are linked to promoting

A safe environment

An attractive Borough and

A prosperous society

This proposal supports the Council’'s policies to develop
economic growth and deliver a thriving retail offer in town centres
by providing the necessary transport infrastructure, including the

availability of affordable and accessible car parking
arrangements.

The funding for this scheme is to be met by the Parking Services
budget

The Panel should have regard to s122 Road Traffic Regulation
Act 1987, which is at Appendix A

Advertisement and implementation of Traffic Regulation Orders

Objectors have a limited right to challenge the Orders in the High
Court.

Appendix A — S.122 of Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984

All documentation can be viewed by contacting Alan Jackson

Page 5



Head of Environmental Services (Highways and Transport) by:

#3 Telephone:0161 342 2818

i e-mail: alan.jackson@tameside.gov.uk

Page 6



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

INTRODUCTION

A report was submitted to the Strategic Planning and Capital Monitoring Panel in 9 October
2017 which reported the objections received to a scheme to introduce Cashless Parking in
140 on street bays in Ashton Town Centre. The scheme relied on customers using the
RingGo App to register their parking requirements and pay online.

The scheme had been supported by the Executive Board on 17 January 2017 and
subsequently advertised for public objections and comments.

The Strategic Planning and Capital Monitoring Panel supported the introduction of the
scheme with recommendations to review the scheme on a 6, 12 and 18 month basis.

The scheme was introduced on street on 1 November 2018 with a ‘soft introduction’
whereby drivers were not issued with ticket when offending and notices were put up to
inform them of the parking duration and methods of payment. The scheme came in to full
operation on the 19 November 2018.

Following a series of negative comments from both residents and the business community
a decision to suspend the operation was made and came into effect at 2.00pm on 7
January 2019.

As a result of this suspension of cashless on-street parking, there is currently unregulated
parking taking place at these locations and, although the Council is currently in the process
of reviewing its car parking arrangements across the borough, this current situation must be
addressed.

A Delegated Decision report was written and approval granted to advertise, for public
comments and objections, a scheme re-introducing free limited waiting around Ashton town
centre.

PROPOSALS

The Council advertised the proposals to introduce limited waiting on the roads listed in 5.1
below on 11 July 2019 and the final day for objections or comments was 2 August 2019.
OBJECTIONS

Six objections have been received and a breakdown of the points raised is below.

Agreed with scheme - Three of the objectors agreed with the necessity of the scheme
however, went on to request changes to the proposals.

Two free hours to park, not one — Of the objectors above, two of them wanted the time
available to park increasing to two hours instead of just one hour.

Change time limits to end at 4pm, not 6pm — One objector wanted to be able to park
after 4pm for longer than one hour. The proposals currently are 8am until 6pm.

Objects to the scheme — One objector did not want the scheme to go ahead due to the

cost of parking all day on car parks and the impact of removing free parking on the town
centre.

Page 7



3.6

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

5.1

Objects to the scheme — Two objectors did object to the scheme due to the restrictions on
parking as they are residents. One of them wanted the council to consider parking permits
for the residents to buy.

RESPONSES

Two free hours to park, not one — The scheme that was in place prior to the on street
paid parking scheme allowed parking for one hour, no return in two hours. This allowed a
regular turnover of vehicles and anyone wishing to park longer used the car parks. Two
hours free parking is considerably generous when compared with other boroughs and
would reduce turnover.

Change time limits to end at 4pm, not 6pm — The proposed time restraints of one hour
from 8am until 6pm are a standard time to coincide with shopping / working districts and
allow parking from 5pm until 9am without moving the vehicle. This is designed to maximise
the area for shopping during the day and allow residents to park in the evening and through
the night unimpeded. If the time were to be changed to 4pm, it would allow parking from
3pm until 9am. The reason for the change stated in the objection was to increase footfall.
It is not clear how the change would increase footfall as the parking is still free and
available. All it would increase is the duration that a vehicle can be parked, thereby
reducing the available turnover of spaces.

Objects to the scheme — This was based on the cost of all day parking on the off street
car parks, as the objector works in the town centre, as well as the impact of removing free
parking on the town centre. Since the removal of the paid parking scheme, the parking
bays have been unregulated and the majority of parking has taken place by vehicles
staying all day. This is not the intention of the bays. They are there to provide short
duration parking for visitors to the area to shop etc. It has been almost impossible to find a
parking space on street due to the amount of long stay parking taking place and this has
had a negative impact on the town centre. The cost of the off street parking is £2 per day
and is amongst the cheapest in Greater Manchester.

Objects to the scheme — Residents of two areas affected by the proposals feel that this is
unfair on them as they have enjoyed the free, unlimited parking that the recent removal of
paid parking has allowed. They believe that their personal circumstances will deteriorate if
this scheme is approved. The advertised proposals will allow them to park for free from
5pm until 9am each day. This is better for them than the paid parking scheme and
generally the same as previously in place for many years. One of the objectors requested
parking permits to park near their house and dedicated parking bays for this use. The
parking provided for the town centre is designed for all visitors and users of the area, not
just for residents. Generally the only designated spaces are for disabled and loading, with
all other being open to general use. To have a space reserved for permit holders who may
have gone to work for the day, leaving the bay empty, seems a less than efficient use of the
bay. Whilst it is understood that the recent changes have made the parking better for the
residents, it has always been understood that this was a temporary measure borne from the
removal of the paid parking, it was never meant to be the final scheme.

CONCLUSION

The proposed scheme has the same limits in terms of effective hours as the original
scheme, before paid parking, and this did not cause people problems that were
insurmountable. The residents presumably occupied their properties whilst the original one
hour limited parking was in place but have enjoyed free unlimited parking since January
and understandably do not want this to change now. However it is not in the best interests
of the town that free on street all day parking in the town centre is allowed to continue. It is

Page 8



for this reason that it is recommended that the proposals remain unchanged as set out in
the table below:

Limited Waiting to 1 hour no return in 2 hours, 8.00am to 6.00pm

Road Name

Location

Alexandra Road
(north west side)

from a point 15 metres south west of its junction with Union Street for a
distance of 20 metres in a south westerly direction

Alexandra Road
(south west side)

from a point 7 metres north east of its junction with Turner Lane to a point
15 metres south west of Union Street

Booth Street
(east side)

from a point 2 metres north of its junction with Wood Street to a point 2
metres south of its junction with Wellington Street

Booth Street
(east side)

from a point 5 metres north of its junction with Stamford Street Central to a
point 3 metres south of its junction with Wood Street

Booth Street
(east side)

from a point 5 metres north of its junction with Fleet Street to a point 5
metres south of its junction with Stamford Street Central

Booth Street
(east side)

from a point 2 metres north of its junction with Wellington Street to a point 2
metres south of its junction with Wych Street

Church Street

from a point 15 metres west of its junction with Grey Street for a distance of

(north side) 15 metres in a westerly direction
Church Street from a point 65 metres west of its junction with Grey Street to a point 5
(north side) metres east of its junction with Warrington Street

Church Street
(north side)

from a point 15 metres west of its junction with Warrington Street to a point
45 metres east of its junction with Delamere Street

Cotton Street
East

from a point 13 metres east of its junction with Oldham Road to a point 40
metres west of its junction with Gas Street

(north side)
Cowhill Lane from a point 5 metres south of its junction with Wimpole Street to a point 10
(east side) metres north of its junction with Penny Meadow

Delamere Street
(west side)

from a point 18 metres south of its junction with Fleet Street in a southerly
direction to the cul de sac end

Delamere Street
(east side)

from a point 5 metres south of its junction with Stamford Street Central to a
point 5 metres north of its junction with Fleet Street

Delamere Street
(west side)

from a point 20 metres south of its junction with Old Street to a point 3
metres north of its junction with Wellington Street

Enville Street
(east side)

from a point 5 metres north of its junction with Penny Meadow to its
junction with Wimpole Street

Fleet Street
(south side)

from a point 29 metres west of its junction with Warrington Street for a
distance of 9 metres in a westerly direction

Fleet Street
(south side)

from a point 10 metres west of its junction with Warrington Street for a
distance of 15 metres in a westerly direction

Page 9




Fleet Street
(south side)

from a point 10 metres west of its junction with Delamere Street to a point
50 metres east of its junction with Booth Street

Grey Street from a point 5 metres south of its junction with Fleet Street to a point 5
(west side) metres north of its junction with Church Street

Mill Lane from a point 5 metres south of its junction with Stamford Street to a point 5
(west side) metres north of its junction with Fleet Street

Newton Street

from a point 15 metres north of its junction with Penny Meadow to its

(west side) junction with Wimpole Street

Old Street from a point 75 metres east of its junction with George Street for a distance
(south side) of 25 metres in an easterly direction

Old Street from a point 20 metres east of its junction with George Street for a distance
(south side) of 16 metres in an easterly direction

Old Street from a point 45 metres east of its junction with George Street for a distance
(south side) of 10 metres in an easterly direction

Old Street from a point 30 metres west of its junction with Booth Street for a distance
(south side) of 24 metres in a westerly direction

Old Street from a point 14 metres east of its junction with Oldham Road to a point 43
(north side) metres east of its junction with Oldham Road

Penny Meadow
(north side)

from a point 8 metres west of its junction with Wimpole Street to a point 8
metres east of its junction with Glebe Street

Penny Meadow
(north side)

from a point 3 metres west of its junction with Newton Street to a point 3
metres east of its junction with Enville Street

Penny Meadow

from a point 3 metres west of its junction with Enville Street to a point 9

(north side) metres east of its junction with Cowhill Lane
Parking bay between the easterly boundary of St Michael’'s Square and the eastern side
within the St of the southbound leg of the internal circulatory road, from a point 13

Michaels Square
parking area

metres south east of its junction with Old Street for a distance of 16 metres
in a southerly direction

(west side)
Parking bay a 3 metre wide strip to the east of the northbound leg of the internal
within the St circulatory road, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Old Street

Michaels Square
parking area

for a distance of 24 metres in a southerly direction

(east side)
Parking bay from a point 2 metres north of the north boundary of Stamford Street
within the St Central for a distance of 5 metres in a northerly direction and from the

Michaels Square
parking area
(south west side)

south western side of the northbound leg of the internal circulatory road in
a westerly direction to a point approx. 2.7 metres from the frontage of 114
Stamford Street at the northern edge of the bay and to a point 4.6 metres
from the frontage of 114 Stamford Street at the southern edge of the bay

Stamford Street
Central
(north side)

from a point 27 metres east of its junction with George Street for a distance
of 51 metres in an easterly direction

Page 10




Stamford Street
Central
(north side)

from a point 23 metres west of its junction with George Street for a
distance of 73 metres in a westerly direction

Stamford Street
Central
(north side)

from a point 10 metres west of its junction with Warrington Street for a
distance of 46 metres in a westerly direction.

Stamford Street
Central
(north side)

from a point 10 metres west of its junction with Delamere Street to a point
21 metres east of its junction with Booth Street

Stamford Street
Central
(north west side)

from a point 15 metres west of its junction with Booth Street to a point 10
metres east of its junction with Mill Lane

Turner Lane
(west side)

from a point 88 metres north of its junction with Wellington Road for a
distance of 48 metres in a northerly direction

Turner Lane

from a point 15 metres south of its junction with Union Street for a distance

(east side) of 45 metres in a southerly direction

Warrington from a point 5 metres south of its junction with Fleet Street to a point 5
Street metres north of its junction with Church Street

(east side)

Warrington from a point 5 metres south of its junction with Stamford Street Central to a
Street point 5 metres north of its junction with Fleet Street

(east side)

Wellington Street
(south side)

from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Booth Street for a distance of
15 metres in an easterly direction

Wellington Street
(south side)

from a point 28 metres east of its junction with Booth Street for a distance
of 26 metres in an easterly direction

Williamson
Street
(south side)

from a point 31 metres east of its junction with Oldham Road for a distance
of 12 metres in an easterly direction

6. RECOMMENDATION

As set out on the front of this report.

Page 11




APPENDIX ‘A’

Section 122 Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984

(1) It shall be the duty of every local authority upon whom functions are conferred by or under
this Act, so to exercise the functions conferred on them by this Act as (so far as practicable
having regard to the matters specified in sub-section (2) below) to secure the expeditious
convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and
the provision of suitable and adequate parking facilities on and off the highway.

(2) The matters referred to in sub-section (1) above, as being specified in this sub-section are:

(a) The desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to premises;

(b) The effect on the amenities of any locality affected and (without prejudice to the
generality of this paragraph) the importance of regulating and restricting the use of
roads by heavy commercial vehicles, so as to preserve or improve the amenities of
the areas through which the roads run;

(c) The strategy prepared under Section 80 of the Environment Act 1995 (national air
quality strategy)

(d) The importance of facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and of securing

the safety and convenience of persons using or desiring to use such vehicles; and

(e) Any other matters appearing to the local authority to be relevant.

Page 12



Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5a

Application Number 19/00334/FUL

Proposal Demolition of existing buildings and construction of a supported
housing scheme (use class C2) and associated landscaping and
access

Site Land at Rutland Street, Ashton-Under-Lyne

Applicant Richmond Fellowship

Recommendation  Grant planning permission subject to conditions

Reason for report A Speakers Panel decision is required because the application
constitutes major development.

1.0 UPDATE TO PREVIOUS REPORT

1.1 Members will recall that this application was first presented to the Speakers Panel at
the July 2019 meeting. At that meeting, Members resolved to defer the application in
order to conduct a site visit. That site visit was held on 27 August 2019. The report
remains unchanged from that presented at the July meeting, save for corrections to
the ecology comments and the compliance condition in relation to the protection of
Bats during the demolition phase (these corrections were referred to verbally at the
July meeting) and the addition of a condition relating to the sedum roof to be installed
over the single storey element of the proposed building.

2.0 APPLICATION DESCRIPTION

21 The applicant seeks full planning permission for the demolition of the existing
buildings on the site and the construction of a supported housing scheme (use class
C2), with associated landscaping and access. The scheme would include 20 units of
accommodation, in the form of 16 self-contained apartments and 4 bedsits and staff
living accommodation.

2.2 The applicant has provided the following documents in support of the planning
application:

- Crime Impact Statement

- Design and Access Statement

- Ground investigation report

- Planning Statement

- Transport Statement

- Noise and Vibration Assessment

- Hard and Soft Landscaping scheme
- Phase | Habitat Survey

3.0 SITE & SURROUNDINGS

3.1 The application site is located on Rutland Street, situated on the south eastern edge
of Ashton. There are a collection of industrial buildings on the site, which is located
on the southern side of Rutland Street. One of the buildings fronting Rutland Street is
located immediately on the back edge of the footway and is constructed of brick
elevations, with a slate roof. That building was occupied by an electrical wholesale

Page 15



3.2

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

business at the time that the application was submitted, although it has since been
vacated.

Another building with brick elevations is adjoined to the rear corner of that building
and extends to the eastern boundary of the site. Buildings fill the northern portion of
the site and the majority have profile sheet roofs. Residential properties on Rutland
Street and Corkland Close abut the eastern boundary of the site. Playing fields,
which include a hard surfaced games area, are located to the west of the site and
separate the western boundary of the land from the properties on Marshall Court.
The railway line runs parallel with the southern boundary of the land.

PLANNING HISTORY

None relevant to the determination of this planning application.
RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

Tameside Unitary Development Plan (UDP) Allocation

Not allocated, within the settlement of Ashton

Part 1 Policies

1.3: Creating a Cleaner and Greener Environment;

1.4: Providing More Choice and Quality Homes;

1.5: Following the Principles of Sustainable Development;

1.6 Securing Urban Regeneration; and,

1.12: Ensuring an Accessible, Safe and Healthy Environment.

Part 2 Policies

E3: Established Employment Areas;

H2: Unallocated sites;

H4: Type, size and affordability of dwellings;

H5: Open Space Provision;

H7: Mixed Use and Density (Density being relevant to this proposal);
H10: Detailed Design of Housing Developments;
OL10: Landscape Quality and Character;

T1: Highway Improvement and Traffic Management;
T10: Parking;

T11: Travel Plans;

C1: Townscape and Urban Form,;

N7: Protected Species;

MW11: Contaminated Land;

MW12: Control of Pollution;

U3: Water Services for Developments;

U4 Flood Prevention; and,

U5 Energy Efficiency.

Other Policies
Greater Manchester Spatial Framework - Publication Draft October 2018;

Page 16



5.7

5.8

5.9

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

The Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) has consulted on the
draft Greater Manchester Spatial Framework Draft 2019 (“GMSF”) which shows
possible land use allocations and decision making policies across the region up to
2038. The document is a material consideration but the weight afforded to it is
limited by the fact it is at an early stage in its preparation which is subject to
unresolved objections

Residential Design Supplementary Planning Document;
Trees and Landscaping on Development Sites SPD adopted in March 2007; and,
Employment Land SPD.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Section 2: Achieving sustainable development;

Section 8 Promoting healthy and safe communities;

Section 11: Making efficient use of land;

Section 12: Achieving well designed places; and,

Section 15: Conserving and enhancing the Natural Environment.

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

This is intended to complement the NPPF and to provide a single resource for
planning guidance, whilst rationalising and streamlining the material. Almost all
previous planning Circulars and advice notes have been cancelled. Specific
reference will be made to the PPG or other national advice in the Analysis section of
the report, where appropriate.

PUBLICITY CARRIED OUT

Neighbour notification letters were issued in accordance with the requirements of the
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order
2015 and the Council’'s adopted Statement of Community Involvement.

RESPONSES FROM CONSULTEES

Local Highway Authority — no objections to the proposals, subject to conditions
requiring the laying out of the car parking spaces as indicated on the approved plans
prior to occupation of the development, details of an external lighting scheme and the
submission and approval of a condition survey of the highway.

United Ultilities — no objections to the proposals, subject to the imposition of
conditions requiring the submission and approval of a sustainable drainage strategy
to serve the development (including management arrangements) and specifying that
foul and surface water should be drained from the site via separate mechanisms.

Greater Manchester Ecological Unit - No objections to the proposals, subject to
conditions requiring adherence to the precautionary measures detailed in the Bat
Survey submitted with the planning application relating to the demolition process and
the provision of biodiversity enhancement measures within the development.

Borough Contaminated Land Officer - No objections to the proposals subject to the
imposition of a condition requiring the submission and approval of an assessment

Page 17



7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

8.0

8.1

into sources of ground contamination on the site and details of any necessary
remediation in this regard.

Borough Environment Health Officer - No objections to the proposals subject to
conditions requiring details of the storage and collection of refuse associated with the
development to be submitted and approved and limiting the hours of work during the
construction phase of the development.

Borough Tree Officer — No objections to the proposals as most of the existing
significant vegetation is to be retained and the proposed new tree planting and
landscaping would be appropriate to the scheme. Exact details of proposed
landscaping scheme and details of maintenance should be secured by condition.

Network Rail (Town Planning Technician) — no objections subject to a number of
informatives being attached to any planning permission granted explaining the
responsibilities of the landowner when developing within close proximity to the
railway line.

Greater Manchester Police (Design Out Crime Officer) — no objections to the
proposals subject to the imposition of a condition requiring the crime reduction
measures listed in the Crime Impact Statement submitted with the planning
application being incorporated into the development.

Coal Authority — No objections to the proposals, subject to the imposition of a
condition requiring the undertaking of an intrusive site investigation into potential land
stability issues associated with coal mining legacy and the carrying out of any
necessary remediation prior to the commencement of development.

Greater Manchester Archaeology Advisory Service — no objections to the proposals
and no conditions considered to be necessary.

Borough Council Economic Development section — the site is cut off from the major
industrial area to the south by the railway lines and is in a poor state of repair. The
street is considered to be on a quiet corridor, away from major transport routes. As
such, protection of the site as employment land is considered not to be viable.

SUMMARY OF COUNCILLOR AND THIRD PARTY RESPONSES RECEIVED

87 letters of representation objecting to the proposals (total number of comments
received to both the original submission and the amended plans) have been
received. The responses raise the following concerns (summarised):

- The proposal will result in a greater volume of traffic in the area, which will add to
the existing problems of congestion and will be detrimental to highway safety.
Rutland Street provides a connection between Granville Street and Corkland
Street. Adding further demand for on street parking will result in a highway safety
hazard.

- Concerns regarding the impact of the development in terms of anti-social
behaviour, which is already a concern in the locality.

- There is a children’s play area immediately adjacent to the site, raising the
question as to whether this is the correct location for a facility housing people
with mental health disorders.

- The scale and massing of the development will result in overlooking into and
overshadowing of neighbouring properties.

Page 18



The area is dominated by family housing and is therefore considered not to be
an appropriate location for a facility accommodating vulnerable people.

A 3 storey apartment development would not reflect the character of the
surrounding area which is made up of predominantly 2 storey dwellings.

The proposals will increase the fear of crime in the local area, to the detriment of
the quality of life of existing residents, including children and older people.

The proposal does not include sufficient parking provision — 8 spaces will not be
adequate and this will increase pressure for on street parking, which will add to
the existing problems in this regard on Rutland Street.

A residential area is not considered to be an appropriate location for a secure
facility.

Introducing this type of facility in a residential area will cause property values to
fall.

There is a similar facility to the proposal on Currier Lane, within walking distance
of this site and that development has resulted in increased anti-social behaviour
problems in the locality — a situation that would be made worse by the addition of
the proposed development.

There are bird nests within the eaves of the existing buildings and evidence of
bats on the site. Demolition of these structures may cause harm in relation to
protected species therefore.

The closure of access from Stamford Street to streets surrounding Rutland
Street, including Corkland Street adjacent to the application site has created a
quieter and safer environment in the locality. This would be undermined by the
increased traffic that would result from the proposed development.

The crime impact assessment submitted with the planning application focusses
on the security of the proposed development as opposed to assessing the
impact on the surrounding area.

The vulnerable people supported by the Richmond Fellowship may have access
to facilities in the locality that would be detrimental to their health e.g. off
licenses, public houses and betting shops.

The proposed 2.1m fencing that will be placed along the boundary of the site
with the properties on Corkland Close will be positioned on top of the existing
1.4m wall separating the properties.

This type of facility should be located close to a hospital site, not within a
residential area.

The submitted plans do not appear to take into account the fact that there is a
brick retaining wall on the shared boundary between the properties on Corkland
Close and the application site. This would need to be replaced to facilitate the
provision of the 2.1 metre high fence that is shown on the proposed plans.

The plans also fail to show that properties along Corkland Close, are set 1.4
meters below the site of the proposed development and therefore it is difficult to
make an accurate assessment as to the impact of potential overlooking from the
development into those neighbouring properties. The changes in level also
present concerns in terms of flood risk/ surface water run-off.

Councillors Fairfoull, Sidebottom and Cartey have objected to the proposals as Ward
Councillors, raising the following comments:

Concerns regarding the location of the development adjacent to a public park
area and the railway line.

Concerns regarding the loss of an established employment site.

There are more preferable sites for this development to be located within the
Borough.

Page 19



9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

10.2

Network Rail on behalf of the Rails Industry's Suicide Prevention Programme has
objected to the proposals on the basis that the scheme places a supported living
accommodation unit that will support vulnerable people near the railway line and
close to Stalybridge Station. This presents a risk to the rail network. A recent analysis
of the incidents on our whole network since December 2017 demonstrated that 66%
of individuals who have taken or attempted to take their life on had a mental health
history. Due to the key facts and figures and the impact presented as a Rail Industry
we feel that we have demonstrated the risk to the network and consequently object to
this planning application.

Tameside and Glossop NHS Clinical Commissioning Group has written in support of
the application, raising the flowing points:

- There is an NHS contract in place with the applicant to provide specialist
supported rehabilitation for 32 people with long term, complex mental health
needs in three buildings on sites within the Borough. Richmond Fellowship have
been delivering the service since 2011, successfully retendering for the renewed
contract from April 2018.

- The current contact requires the Richmond Fellowship to develop a new site to
replace the existing Manchester Road facility, which currently comprises mainly
shared accommodation and therefore does not provide the standard of
accommodation we want to provide for our mental health services within
Tameside and Glossop.

ANAYLSIS
The key issues to be assessed in the determination of this planning application are:

) The principle of development;

) The impact of the design and scale of the development on the character of the
site and the surrounding area;

The impact upon the residential amenity of neighbouring properties;

The impact on highway safety;

The impact on flood risk; and

Other matters.

N —

oL

PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT

The site is not allocated as an established employment site on the UDP proposals
map but the established planning use of the land is for employment purposes. Given
that the proposed use would not fall into one of the traditional employment use
classes (those being B1, B2 and B8), the proposal would result in the loss of an
employment site and as a result, the provisions of policy E3 of the UDP do apply.

The policy states that the conversion of employment sites to residential or mixed use
development will not be permitted unless it is considered that the need for housing
and the regeneration benefits of such development outweigh the need to retain the
site for employment purposes. The policy states that, in making this assessment, the
following factors should be considered:

(a) The quality and type of employment sites and premises available in the area;
(b) Evidence of demand for employment sites and premises in the area;

Page 20



10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

(c) The suitability of the site for further employment use in terms of size, physical
characteristics, access, traffic impact, and sensitivity of surrounding land uses;
and,

(d) The opportunity which may be presented for new forms of employment as part of
a mixed use scheme.

In relation to criterion (a) and (b), there is an extensive area to the south of the
railway line beyond the southern boundary of the site which is allocated as an
Established Employment Area. The Employment Land Review of 2013 indicated that
the supply of industrial use properties was greater than demand for such premises in
the Borough. The surplus of employment land has been reduced since that time,
through the inclusion of some allocated employment land within the Strategic
Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA) (i.e. there is an assumption that
some of these sites would be redeveloped for residential use).

In relation to the demand for the redevelopment of the site for alternative employment
uses, the applicant has provided details of the marketing exercise that has been
undertaken in relation to the land. The information appended to the Planning
Statement indicates that the site has been marketed for approximately 12 months,
with an asking price of £350,000. The site has been advertised on the agent’s
website, other property websites, via a board on the site and through a targeted
mailing campaign.

The summary letter from the agent indicates that the interest received during the
marketing campaign was predominantly from developers seeking to redevelop the
site for residential purposes. A few generic enquiries were made although none were
pursued due to the significant capital outlay involved in redeveloping the site. The
price at which the site was marketed is considered to be high, (equivalent to
approximately £500,000 an acre) given the condition of the site. The PPG is clear
that hope value should not be included when establishing a land value and it would
appear in this case that this guidance has not been followed in this case.

However, the marketing campaign must be considered alongside the extent of
allocated employment land within close proximity to and in a more accessible
location than the application site. The assessment of the Economic Development
section of the Council is that the constraints provided by the limited access
arrangements and the severance provided by the railway line, which separates this
land from the adjacent employment area, render this site unsuitable for protection as
an employment site.

In addition to these constraints, the works required to redevelop the site for a modern
employment use and the fact that the site is on a predominantly residential street are
factors which are considered to render an employment use on the site unviable. It is
considered reasonable to conclude that these constraints acted as a deterrent to
potential investors, given that no offers even below the asking price were pursued.

Paragraph 121 of the NPPF states that ‘Local planning authorities should also take a
positive approach to applications for alternative uses of land which are currently
developed but are not allocated for specific purposes in plans, where this would help
to meet identified development needs. In particular, they should support proposals to
(criteria relevant to this application):

(a) use retail and employment land for homes in areas of high housing demand,
provided this would not undermine key economic sectors or sites or the vitality and

Page 21



10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

11.0

viability of town centres and would be compatible with other policies in the
framework.’

This proposal is for a care facility and not dwellings and so the proposal would not
contribute to the deficit in the housing supply within the Borough. However, the
Richmond Fellowship currently occupies 3 sites within the Borough and one of these
sites (Manchester Road) is considered to no longer be fit for purpose. The scheme
would provide a larger replacement that the existing development on Manchester
Road (which contains 4 self-contained units and 11 bedrooms with shared communal
facilities), indicating that there is demand for this type of accommodation.

Tameside and Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group have written in support of the
application. The representation from the Group explains that there is an NHS
contract in place with the applicant to provide specialist supported rehabilitation for
32 people with long term, complex mental health needs in three buildings. The
Richmond Fellowship have been delivering the service since 2011, successfully
retendering for the renewed contract from April 2018.

The representation from the Group states that Richmond Fellowship has been a
leading provider of specialist mental health services in England since 1959.
Nationally, Richmond Fellowship manages over 150 services and has been
commissioned to provide supporting housing service in Tameside and Glossop since
2013. The current contact requires the Richmond Fellowship to develop a new site to
replace the existing Manchester Road facility, which currently comprises mainly
shared accommodation and therefore does not provide the standard of
accommodation that the NHS requires for health services within Tameside and
Glossop.

The fact that there is a contractual arrangement in place with the NHS indicates that
there is clear demand for the services being provided by the applicant and there is a
service based need to find an alternative site. The site is not specifically allocated as
an employment site in the UDP and the development would be meeting an identified
need through the redevelopment of a brownfield site. These factors are considered to
be positive elements that are worthy of significant weight in the determination of this
application. Whilst the marketing exercise is considered to have been limited by the
price attributed to the land, the harm arising from this is considered to be weakened
by the environmental constraints of the site from an employment land perspective, as
highlighted by the Council’s Economic Development team. This evidence suggests
that the loss of the employment use would not undermine key economic sectors
within the Borough, as required by paragraph 121 of the NPPF.

In weighing up the principle of development, it is considered that the benefits of
providing a viable re-use of a now vacant brownfield site that is constrained in
relation to re-use for employment outweigh the limited harm arising from the loss of
the unallocated employment land, given the guidance within the NPPF quoted above.

The need for the development, as demonstrated by the comments provided by the
Tameside and Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group is considered to outweigh the
limited harm arising from the loss of the employment site, therefore complying with
the caveat in UDP policy E3, representing a regeneration benefit. As such, the
principle of development is considered to be acceptable, subject to all other material
considerations being satisfied.

CHARACTER

Page 22



12.0

12.1

12.2

It is acknowledged that the building would be taller than the existing structures on the
site and taller than the height of the adjacent 2 storey residential properties.
However, the amended plans indicate that the eaves height of the proposed building
would be below the ridge height of the existing pitched roof building located in the
north eastern corner of the site. The first and second floor elements of the proposal
would be set off the eastern boundary of the site by approximately 13 metres, by the
width of the single storey entrance and storage area, which itself has been set a
further metre from the site boundary in the amended scheme.

The separation distance between the taller element of the building (the ridge height
of which has been reduced by approximately 0.5 metres in the revised scheme) and
the properties adjacent to the eastern boundary of the site, in addition to the fact that
there is an area of public open space to the west, ensure that the site sits within its
own context within the streetscene, visually distinct from neighbouring development.
Given this combination of factors, it is considered that the height of the development
would not be detrimental to the character of Rutland Street.

The front building line of the proposed development would be set behind the front
building line of the existing dwellings to the east of the site, further emphasising the
distinction between the site and those neighbouring properties and reducing the
prominence of the 3 storey element on the streetscene. The ridge height of the two
‘wings’ of the building would be taller than the existing structures on the site.
However, the bulk of the design would be reduced to an acceptable degree by the
fact that a shorter flat roofed central section would link the two elements and that the
roofs would hip away from the eastern and western boundaries of the site.

The elevational treatment of the building would be relatively simple, with a regular
pattern to the window openings, which would give the development a vertical
emphasis. Whilst gable frontages are not a common feature on the existing
streetscene, the simple design and regular form would ensure that the design
approach would not be detrimental to the character of the surrounding area.

Following the above assessment, it is considered that the proposals would not result
in an adverse impact on the character of the area, subject to conditions requiring the
submission of details of the construction materials and the hard and soft landscaping
scheme to serve the development. Such conditions are attached to the
recommendation.

RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

The scheme has been amended to pull the building further off the eastern boundary
of the site, increasing the separation distance retained between the eastern elevation
of the development and the rear elevations of the neighbouring properties at 26 and
28 Corkland Close to 24 metres. The section of the eastern elevation adjacent to the
boundaries with those neighbouring properties has been amended so that north and
south facing windows would serve those rooms to provide outlook (via a projecting
element extending from the main eastern elevation of the building), allowing the
secondary windows facing the neighbouring properties to be obscurely glazed.
Windows facing northwards and southwards in this location would not prejudice the
future development of any neighbouring site.

On the basis that these windows are fixed shut (which can be reasonably be secured
by condition), there would be no opportunities for direct overlooking from those

Page 23



12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

rooms within the development into those neighbouring properties. The remainder or
the eastern elevation to the south of this point would not contain any openings and
the nearest windows to the north of this point would be over the single storey
element, which would have a sufficiently oblique relationship with no. 26 or 28
Corkland Close, to the extent that would prevent unreasonable overlooking into those
neighbouring properties.

These amendments ensure that the scheme would comply with the requirements of
the Residential Design Guide (RDG), which requires a separation distance of 24
metres to be retained between a 3 storey building and a neighbouring 2 storey
building, where habitable rooms face each other. An additional 2 metres are to be
added in this case to reflect the drop in levels between the application site and
Corkland Close.

As the proposed windows that would have that relationship with those neighbouring
properties would be obscurely glazed and fixed shut, the required separation
distance reduces to 19 in total. The amended scheme exceeds this separation
distance by 5 metres. Following amendments to the original submission, the
proposals would not result in adverse overlooking into or overshadowing of those
neighbouring properties therefore.

The western gable of the property at 39 Rutland Street, adjacent to the north eastern
corner of the site, contains a door with glazing panel in the side elevation of the rear
extension to that property. That door serves a room which contains windows on the
south facing rear elevation of the extension. As such, the window within the door on
the side elevation is a secondary window and any overlooking into that opening
would not adversely affect the residential amenity of that dwelling, as the primary
windows on the southern elevation are set at 90 degrees from the eastern elevation
of the proposed building. The separation distance to be retained (approximately 15
metres) between the eastern elevation of the proposed building and the common
boundary would prevent unreasonable overshadowing of that neighbouring dwelling.

The separation distance between the rear elevations of the properties on Marshall
Court to the west of the site and the western boundary of the land would be in excess
of 30 metres. The separation distances to be retained to each of those dwellings
would prevent unreasonable overlooking into or overshadowing of those properties.

The recessed position of the front elevation of the building would ensure that a
separation distance in excess of 22 metres would be retained to the corresponding
elevations of the properties on the northern side of Rutland Street. This separation
distance would ensure that there would be no unreasonable overlooking into or
overshadowing of those properties.

A substantial separation distance would be retained between the southern elevation
of the building and the properties on the opposite side of the railway line to the south
of the site, ensuring that the proposed scheme would not result in an adverse impact
on the residential amenity of any of those properties.

In relation to the impact of the proposed boundary treatment, it is acknowledged that
a significant proportion of the 2.1 metre high fence would be visible above the height
of the boundary treatments within the gardens of the neighbouring properties on
Corklands Close. However, given the length of the gardens of those properties (each
being in excess of 10 metres) and the fact that a 2 metre fence could be installed on
this boundary without requiring planning permission, it is considered that this element

Page 24



12.10

13.0

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

of the proposals would not result in an overbearing impact or overshadowing that
would harm the residential amenity of those neighbouring properties.

Following the above assessment, it is considered that the amended scheme would
preserve the residential amenity of neighbouring properties and the future occupants
of the proposed development.

HIGHWAY SAFETY

The scheme includes provision for 8 car parking spaces. Policy T10 of the UDP
indicates that 1 car parking space should be provided per 4 bedrooms within a
care/nursing home. Given that the proposal includes accommodation for care staff to
stay on the premises, it is considered that the provision of 7 standard and 1 disabled
parking spaces would achieve the requirement of the UDP in relation to car parking
requirements. Provision is also made for cycle storage within the single storey
element of the building, adjacent to the entrance, which would provide an alternative
mode of transport to the private car for employees making trips to and from the site.

The Local Highway Authority has raised no objections to the proposed access
arrangements or the impact of the trips generated by the development, as set out in
the Transport Statement submitted with the planning application. Whilst the concerns
raised by local residents regarding congestion in the locality are noted, the impact of
trips generated by the proposed development and associated demand for parking
must be considered within the context of the extant use of the site.

Whilst only part of the former industrial site has been occupied until recently, in
excess of 1300 square metres of floor space has an extant B2 (general industrial
use) on the site. Using the Council’'s Developer Contributions calculator, this size of
industrial space is anticipated to generate approximately 180 daily trips. The
Transport statement submitted with the application indicates that the largest building
attracted between 20 and 30 trips a day and so the reality on this site may have been
less than the calculator. Given that an MOT testing facility has also operated on the
site in the past, it is reasonable to assume at least 50 daily trips to and from this site
when in commercial use. In comparison, given the nature of the occupation of the
proposed development, it is considered that the maximum daily trip rate would be
significantly less (anticipated to be 32 two - way trips in the Transport Statement).
HGV movements would also be far less frequent in relation to the proposed use in
comparison to the extant situation.

The Local Highway Authority has recommended conditions be attached requiring the
laying out of the car parking spaces as indicated on the approved plans prior to
occupation of the development, details of an external lighting scheme to serve the
development and the submission and approval of a condition survey of the highway.
The conditions relating to car parking layout and external lighting are considered
reasonable to ensure that the development preserves highway safety and the
amenity of the surrounding area. A condition survey of the highway is considered not
to be necessary as any impact in this regard during the construction phase of the
development can be addressed under powers available to the Council as Local
Highway Authority. Details of a construction environment management plan, to
mitigate any adverse impact on the amenity of neighbouring residents, can also be
secured by condition.

On the basis of the above assessment, it is considered that the proposals would not
result in a severe impact on highway safety. In accordance with the guidance

Page 25



14.0

14.1

15.0

15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

15.5

contained within paragraph 109 of the NPPF, planning permission should therefore
not be refused on highway safety grounds.

FLOOD RISK

The site is in Flood Zone 1 and is therefore considered to be at a lower risk of
flooding. United Utilities have raised no objections to the proposals, subject to a
condition requiring the submission and approval of a sustainable drainage strategy.
This requirement, along with the details of on-going management and maintenance
can be secured by condition.

OTHER MATTERS

A condition requiring an investigation into sources of contamination on the site is
recommended by the Borough Contaminated Land Officer. Such a condition is
considered to be reasonable given the industrial nature of the previous uses of the
site. This condition can be adapted to include a similar investigation into coal mining
legacy, as requested by the Coal Authority.

In relation to ecology, the Greater Manchester Ecology Unit has raised no objections
to the proposals, subject to the imposition of conditions requiring adherence to the
precautionary measures listed in the Bat Survey in relation to potential bat activity on
the site during the demolition phase of the development and the provision of
biodiversity enhancement measures within the scheme. These conditions are
considered to be reasonable and can be attached to the decision notice. It is also
considered reasonable to condition the submission of details of the species to be
incorporated within the sedum roof to be installed over the single storey flat roofed
element of the scheme and details of the ongoing management and maintenance of
this roof to ensure that it represents a biodiversity enhancement

The Borough Tree Officer has raised no objections to the proposals on the basis that
most of the existing significant vegetation on the site is to be retained and the
proposed new tree planting indicatively shown on the proposed plans would be
appropriate to the site. The specific details of proposed landscaping scheme in terms
of species, location and number of specimens to be planted, along with details of
maintenance can be secured by condition.

In relation to designing out crime, a Crime Impact Assessment (CIA) has been
submitted with the planning application. The CIA highlights a number of positive
elements in relation to the design approach, including the redevelopment of a vacant
site, the fact that the use would include on site management on a full time basis and
that the design would allow natural surveillance of the front entrance to the site from
Rutland Street. Recommendations have been made in relation to improvements that
could be made, including the treatment of the northern boundary of the site, the
introduction of external lighting and physical measures to be installed within the
building/ as part of the fabric. Greater Manchester Police have reviewed the CIA and
have raised no objections to the proposals, subject to the imposition of a condition
requiring compliance with the measures detailed in Section 4 of the report. Such a
condition is considered to be reasonable and is attached to the recommendation.

In relation to bin storage, an area is indicatively shown adjacent to the northern

boundary of the site for the storage of all refuse. It is considered reasonable to attach
a condition requiring details of the exact size and details of the means of enclosure of

Page 26



15.6

15.7

15.8

15.9

15.10

15.11

this external storage area, as recommended by the EHO. Such a condition is
attached to the recommendation, as is a condition limiting the hours of work during
the construction phase of the development.

Network Rail on behalf of the Rails Industry's Suicide Prevention Programme has
objected to the proposals on the basis that the scheme places a supported living
accommodation unit which will support vulnerable people, near the railway line and
close to Stalybridge Station. Their concern relates to the fact that the proposed
facility could be used to accommodate people with mental health issues and that a
relatively high proportion of those committing suicide on the railway network since
2017 have had a history of such issues.

Whilst those concerns are noted, the proposal is to provide a managed facility, which
would include the installation of a 2.4 metre high fence on the southern boundary of
the site, adjacent to the railway line. The nature of the proposed use and the physical
stature of the proposed boundary treatments are considered sufficient to reduce the
likelihood of vulnerable individuals being able to access the railway line. On that
basis, officers are of the view that the risk to the safety of the railway network is not
sufficient to demonstrate harm that would warrant refusal of the application.

In relation to the comments made by objectors not already covered in this report, it is
important to acknowledge that the material planning considerations are limited to the
impact of the proposed use and the physical building only. A use falling within class
C2 of the Use Classes Order relates to a facility where full time care is provided on
site, with the specific needs of the individuals in receipt of care not being specified in
the Order. A C2 use could therefore be an elderly persons nursing home or people
with a range of medical needs which require them to reside in a care home.

As such, whilst it is the case that the applicant is a supplier of care for people with
mental health conditions, the nature of those conditions is not material to the
assessment of the planning application. The fact that the facility would be staffed at
all times and would include communal living areas as well as self-contained units
clearly distinguishes the development from C3 dwellings. The layout has been
endorsed as appropriate by the NHS, who would be in charge of managing the
contract awarded to the facility. The material planning considerations relate solely to
the environmental impacts of the development, which have been assessed in this
report.

The comments from the local Ward Councillors regarding the suitability of the
location are noted. This application has to be determined on its individual merits.
There is no planning based reason to require the applicant to undertake a sequential
test into potential alternative sites for the development, as the site is not located in
the Green Belt or in an area at a higher risk of flooding. The surrounding area is
characterised by residential development and the proposal is for a residential
institution.

This is considered not to be an incompatible use in planning terms in this location
therefore. Whilst the accommodation would not take the form of open market
dwellings, the impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties through noise and
disturbance would not be dissimilar to such a use and traffic generation is likely to
have less impact than a C3 use. Officers therefore consider that the application can
be determined in its current form without requiring the applicant to undertake a
sequential test.

Page 27



16.0

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

16.6

16.7

CONCLUSION

The development is considered to be acceptable in principle. The proposal would
result in the redevelopment of a former employment site for a use falling outside of
the B use classes (traditional employment uses). Whilst the site has been marketed
for approximately 12 months, the price at which it was marketed appears to have
included an element of ‘hope’ value, which is contrary to the PPG. As such, the
weight to be given to the lack of demand recorded during this exercise for retaining
the site in employment use in conducting the planning balance is reduced.

Nevertheless, the constrained nature of the site in terms of redevelopment for
employment use is recognised, particularly in relation to the close proximity of
neighbouring residential properties and any uses involving HGV movements from a
highway safety and amenity perspective. In addition, the Economic Development
team’s response to the application has highlighted the weakness provided by the
site’s severance from the major industrial area to the south by the railway line.

The harm arising from the loss of the employment site must also be weighed against
the benefit of providing a development which the NHS has indicated is required in
order to replace an existing facility in the Borough and provide the required standard
of accommodation for vulnerable people. Whilst not a traditional employment use, it
is also the case that the proposal would include some element of employment and
would not constitute open market residential development. On the basis of these
factors, the harm arising from the loss of the employment site is considered to be
worthy of less weight than the benefits arising from the proposals.

The proposed development would not result in an adverse impact on the character of
the surrounding area for the reasons detailed in section 11 of this report. Following
amendments to the scheme, the separation distances to the dwellings to the east of
the site is considered to preserve the residential amenity of those properties, with no
other dwellings adversely affected by the scheme.

In relation to highway safety, there are no objections to the proposals from the Local
Highway Authority. The level of parking provision is considered to be adequate for
the proposed use and whilst the concerns of local residents regarding congestion are
noted, the trip generation resulting from the extant industrial development would be
significantly greater than the proposed use. This assessment is corroborated by the
lack of objection from the Local Highway Authority.

There are no objections from any of the statutory consultees, other than from
Network Rail on behalf of the Rails Industry's Suicide Prevention Programme. For the
reasons given in paragraph 15.7 of this report, it is considered that this objection
could not be substantiated at appeal as a reason for refusing planning permission.

Following the above assessment, the proposals are considered to comply with the
national and local planning policies quoted previously in this report.

RECOMMENDATION
Grant planning permission, subject the following conditions:

The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years
beginning with the date of this permission.

Page 28



2. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans/details:

Amended proposed site plan (Ref. 1063 A 001 Rev. B)

Amended proposed ground and first floor plans (Ref. 1063 A 002 Rev. B)
Amended proposed second floor and roof plans (Ref. 1063 A 003 Rev. B)
Amended proposed elevations plan (Ref. 1063 A 004 Rev. B)

Amended proposed boundary treatments plan (Ref. 1063 A 006 Rev. B)
Refuse store plan and elevations (Ref. 1063 A 108)

3. No development, other than site clearance and site compound set up, shall
commence until such time as the following information has been submitted in writing
and written permission at each stage has been granted by the Local Planning
Authority.

i) A preliminary risk assessment to determine the potential for the site to be
contaminated and/or affected by coal mining legacy issues shall be undertaken and
approved by the Local Planning Authority. Prior to any physical site investigation, a
methodology shall be approved by the Local Planning Authority. This shall include an
assessment to determine the nature and extent of any coal mining legacy
effects/contamination affecting the site and the potential for off-site migration.

i) Where necessary a scheme of remediation to remove any unacceptable risk to
human health, buildings, land stability and the environment (including controlled
waters) shall be approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to implementation.

iii) Any additional or unforeseen contamination and/or coal mining legacy issues
encountered during development shall be notified to the Local Planning Authority as
soon as practicably possible and a remedial scheme to deal with this approved by
the Local Planning Authority.

iv) Upon completion of any approved remediation schemes, and prior to occupation,
a completion report demonstrating that the scheme has been appropriately
implemented and the site is suitable for its intended end use shall be approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The discharge of this planning condition will be given in writing by the Local Planning
Authority on completion of the development and once all information specified within
this condition and other requested information have been provided to the satisfaction
of the Local Planning Authority and occupation/use of the development shall not
commence until this time.

4. Notwithstanding any description of materials listed in the application or detailed on
the approved plans, no above ground construction works shall take place until
samples and/or full specification of materials to be used: externally on the buildings;
in the construction of all boundary walls, fences and railings; and, in the finishes to all
external hard-surfaces have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local
planning authority. Such details shall include the type, colour and texture of the
materials. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

The car parking spaces to serve the development hereby approved shall be laid out
as shown on the approved proposed site plan (Ref. 1063 A 001 Rev. B), prior to the
first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved and shall be retained free
from obstruction for their intended use thereafter.

Page 29



10.

The boundary treatments to be installed as part of the development hereby approved
shall be installed in accordance with the details shown on plan ref. approved plans
1063 A 006 Rev. B prior to the first occupation of any part of the development and
shall be retained as such thereafter.

No development shall commence until such time as a Construction Environment
Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. This shall include details of:

Wheel wash facilities for construction vehicles;

Arrangements for temporary construction access;

Contractor and construction worker car parking;

Turning facilities during the remediation and construction phases; and,
Details of on-site storage facilities.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Construction
Environmental Management Plan.

The refuse storage arrangement to serve the development hereby approved shall be
installed in accordance with the details shown on approved plan ref. 1063 A 108
(refuse store plan and elevations), in the location identified on plan ref. 1063 A 001
Rev. B (proposed site plan) prior to the first occupation of the development and shall
be retained as such thereafter.

Notwithstanding the details submitted with the planning application, no above ground
development shall commence until full details of a scheme of hard and soft
landscaping to be incorporated into the development hereby approved have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme
shall include the following specific measures:

- A plan showing the location of all trees/hedges/shrubs to be planted, details of
the species mix, the number of specimens to the planted, spacing between them
and their height on planting

- A plan showing the location and construction material of all hard surfacing.

The landscaping scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details prior to the first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved.

The approved scheme of landscaping scheme shall be implemented before the first
occupation of any part of the development or in accordance with a programme
agreed previously with the local planning authority. Any newly planted trees or plants
forming part of the approved scheme which, within a period of 5 years from the
completion of the planting, are removed, damaged, destroyed or die shall be
replaced in the next appropriate planting season with others of similar size and
species.

Prior to the commencement of any development, a surface water drainage scheme,
based on the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning Practice
Guidance with evidence of an assessment of the site conditions shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The surface water drainage
scheme must be in accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for
Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent replacement
national standards. Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems and
in the event of surface water draining to the public surface water sewer, details of the
flow rate and means of control shall be submitted. The scheme shall include details

Page 30



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

of on-going management and maintenance of the surface water drainage system to
be installed. The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved
details and retained and maintained as such thereafter.

Prior to the first occupation of any part of the development hereby approved, details
of a scheme for external lighting to serve the development shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include a scale
plan indicating the location of the lighting to be installed, a LUX contour plan
indicating the levels of light spillage and scaled elevations of lighting
columns/supporting structures. The external lighting scheme shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation of any part of the
development and shall be retained as such thereafter.

Prior to the first occupation of any part of the development hereby approved, the
crime reduction measures detailed in Section 4 of the Crime Impact Assessment
submitted with the planning application shall implemented and evidence that Secured
by Design accreditation has been achieved shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local planning Authority. The development shall be retained as such
thereafter.

No tree felling or vegetation removal shall take place during the optimum period for
bird nesting (March to July inclusive) unless otherwise agreed in writing with the
Local Planning Authority.

No development above ground level shall commence until details of Biodiversity
enhancement measures to be installed as part of the development hereby approved
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
details shall include a specification of the installations and scaled plans showing their
location within the development. The approved enhancement measures shall be
installed in accordance with the approved details, prior to the first occupation of any
of the dwellings and shall be retained as such thereafter.

No development above ground level shall commence until details of renewable
energy generation measures to be incorporated into the development hereby
approved have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The details shall include the specifications of the measures to be installed
and information demonstrating the extent of the energy requirements of the
development that will be provided by renewable sources. The renewable energy
generation measures shall be installed in accordance with the approved details prior
to the first occupation of any part of the development and shall be retained as such
thereafter.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the precautionary
measures detailed in Section 4.5 of the Preliminary bat Survey report produced
by Brimstone Ecology (version 3 dated 17 March 2019) submitted with the
planning application.

During demolition/construction no work (including vehicle and plant movements,
deliveries, loading and unloading) shall take place outside the hours of 07:30 and
18:00 Mondays to Fridays and 08:00 to 13:00 Saturdays. No work shall take place on
Sundays and Bank Holidays.

Page 31



18.

19.

20.

Prior to the first occupation of any part of the development, the windows marked
‘opaque’ on the following approved plans shall be fitted with obscured glazing
(meeting Pilkington Standard level 3 in obscurity) and shall be fixed shut:

Amended proposed ground and first floor plans (Ref. 1063 A 002 Rev. B)
Amended proposed second floor and roof plans (Ref. 1063 A 003 Rev. B)

The development shall be retained as such thereafter.

The secured cycle parking facilities indicated on plan ref. 1063 A 002 Rev. B
(Amended proposed ground and first floor plans) shall be implemented in accordance
with the approved details prior to the first occupation of any part of the development
hereby approved and shall be retained free from obstruction for their intended
purposes thereafter.

No development above ground level shall commence until details of the sedum roof
to be installed on the single storey element of the development hereby approved
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
details shall include the following:

- Scaled plans (including sections) showing the extent of the areas to be covered
by the sedum roofs

- The species mix to be incorporated into the sedum roof

- Details of a scheme for on-going management and maintenance of the sedum
roofs.

The sedum roof shall be installed in accordance with the approved details prior to the

first occupation of any of the apartments and shall be retained in accordance with the
approved management arrangements.

Page 32



Application Number: 19/00334/FUL Rutland Street

Photo 1 — view of existing building in north eastern corner of the
application site

Photo 2 — view of properties fronting Rutland Street adjacent to the
north eastern corner of the site.

Page 33



Photo 3 - view of properties on the opposite side of Rutland Street to the
north of the site.

——— T

§ e

it 1\

—_— 3
—f—ﬂF, —

Photo 4 — view looking towards western boundary of the site across the
public open space located to the west of the site.

Page 34



Photo 5 — view looking towards the site from within the rear garden of 26
Corkland Close to the east of the site.

Photo 6 — view looking from eastern boundary of the site back to the
dwelling at 26 Corkland Close — demonstrating the approx. 2 metre drop
in levels.




This page is intentionally left blank



Jennings Design Associates lake no responsibility for

obtained by scaling from this drawing. If no dimension is shown the recipient
must ascertain the dimension specifically from the Architect or by site
measurement. Supplying this drawing in digital form is solely for convenience
and no reliance may be placed on digital data. All data must be checked
against hard copy. Dimensions must be checked on site. Any discrepancies
musl be reported o the Architect immediately. This drawing Is copyright of
Jennings Design Associates

=i
=
S

al
aal

"
e

Sy,

e
fd

i
E )
-,

ENSa)
L
S
Lanias

Bepg e
BEEAE
£

Feas,

3

[l
I

Windows Revised Following Planning
Comments
Revised Following Planning Comments 04.07.2019

Concept Contract
Planning Constfruction
BuldingRegs _ As Built
| Tender | _ Sketch

jda architects

info@jda-architects.com
www jda-architects.com

manchesfer: 0161 336 5011
liverpool: 0151 6650112

ngs\Livelplots\1063_A001 ProposedSitePlan.dwg

Richmond Fellowship

Rutland Street, Ashton Under Lyne

Scale nal size Date: biy: Checked B!

Job Number [Deseription _____ [Rev |

1063 “ Proposed Site Plan i

Z:\1063 - Rutland Street, Ashton U Lyne\D




This page is intentionally left blank



6¢ obed

Notes

Jennings Design Associates take no responsibility for any dimensions
obtained by scaling from this drawing. If no dimension is shown the recipient
must ascertain the dimension specifically from the Architect or by site
measurement. Supplying this drawing in digital form is solely for convenience
and no reliance may be placed on digital data. All data must be checked
against hard copy. Dimensions must be checked on site. Any discrepancies
must be reported to the Architect immediately, This drawing is copyright of
Jennings Design Associates

- > N
- .
s - .
- 127.19 .
1 | [ .
e Rl chimney _——— || T EEELTT |
- o = '_' = -b‘.,- . /1 I E "“?‘-—-s-..._____l Wiiama=s :'-._..__ r
12524 S A : h'-"‘""--L—__h_fT qroph | Pole
-  Pdle b ;
Lomppost /| " Steet Metl Rodf |
: AE |
eli , ;
I [55] 2]
: . D y : Beam B
RP i e e
=
> » mﬂ = i Door E‘
Archway e H : :‘ﬂ ﬁ

Exsiting Sftreet Scene

B Building lowered due to planning 11.07.2019 TD
comments

A | Revised Following Planning Comments [4.07.2019 SJB

Rev Description Date By
& Concept G Contract

(=] D | Panming =~ J Construction

E | BuldingRegs = L As Built
F Tender Sk Sketch

jda architects
wi info@jda-architects.com .
www.jda-architects.com J d a
manchester; 0161 336 5011 Brchiteate
liverpool: 0151 6650112
i Richmond Fellowship
Project:
Rutland Street, Ashton Under Lyne
Scale: @ original size  |Date: Drawn by: Checked By:
P d S _|_ -l- S Varies |A1 10/01/2019 SJB SB
Job Number Description Rev
1063 A [005 Proposed & Existing Street B
Scenes

Z:\1063 - Rutland Street, Ashton U Lyne\Drawings\Live\plots\1063_A005 ProposedStreetScene.dwg




This page is intentionally left blank



T obed

Proposed First Floor Plan 1:100

e

=
b ’s"

==

5

L]

ET=T

|

|
SF Lounge ;:(

)

g

<

N

\

NeIropm

LOORBA,
g
e

@

{
ﬁ WO0IDag L
lr-'\
L
)

Proposed Ground Floor Plan 1:100

7

)

/ z
WIS,

@

cig DXL
]

=)

[T

L e

J

Bedoom [~ [

Watroom

Hobby
Lounge

Cleaners
store

wWC

Entrance and
Reception

Bicycle
&

Buggy
Store

Quiet
Room

Store
Room

Waiting
Area

Office

LLL]

‘IR el

Staff Sleep ‘
Over [— Store
R
\ a
Q
Meds /
Secure
Store -\ \
we
Break
Room
Manager ) [
IEE;P& i
[ [Pon

]
A

Meeting Room

g R
ngy

Notes

Jennings Design Associates take no responsibility for
obtained by scaling from this drawing. If no dimension is shown the recipient
musl ascertain the dimension specifically from the Archilect or by sile
measurement. Supplying this drawing in digital form is solely for convenience
and no reliance may be placed on digital data. All data must be checked
against hard copy. Dimensions must be checked on site. Any discrepancies
must be reported to the Architect immediately. This drawing is copyright of
Jennings Design Associates

[g | Windows Revised Following Planning 4g 072019 sJB
|

Comments | |
[A |Revised Following Planning Comments P4.07.2019 SJB
|Rev Description | Date By
(@ Concept G Confract
D Planning J Construction
E Building Regs [ As Built
F Tender Sk sketch

jda architects

info@jda-architects.com
www jda-architects.com

manchester: 0161 336 5011

liverpool: 0151 6650112
Clier . 5
s Richmond Fellowship
Project:

Rutland Street, Ashton Under Lyne

Z:\1083 - Rutland Street, Ashton U Lyne\Drawings\Live\plots\1063_A002 ProposedGroundAndFirstFloorPlan.dwg

Scale: {G,n original size Date: Drawn by: Checked By
1:100 |A1 10/01/2019 SJB SB
Job Number Description Rev
1063 A |002 Proposed Ground And First Floor B
[Plans
0 T m

e — 0




This page is intentionally left blank



¢ abed

Proposed Roof Plan 1:100

Proposed Second Floor Plan 1:100

e e e it U e

-

RO S L e

e

———
| P

Notes

Jennings Design Associates take no responsibility for any dimensions
obtained by scaling from this drawing. IT no dimension is shown the recipient
must ascertain the dimension specifically from the Architect or by site
measurement. Supplying this drawing in digital form is solely for convenience
and no reliance may be placed on digital data. All data must be checked
against hard copy. Dimensions must be checked on site. Any discrepancies
must be reported to the Architect immediately. This drawing is copyright of
Jennings Design Associates

Windows Revised Following Planning 4g 072019 sJB
Comments
Revised Following Planning Comments 04.07.2019 SJB

E

==

Description Date By
C  Concept | | & | Contract
D Planning | | J | Construction
E Building Regs L As Bu
F

Tender Sk Sketch

jda architects

info@jda-architects.com
www jda-architects.com

manchester: 0161 336 5011
liverpool: 0151 6650112

Richmond Fellowship

Project:

Rutland Street, Ashton Under Lyne

@ original size Date: Drawn by: Checked By:
1:100 | A1 10/01/2019 SJB SB
Job Number Description Rev
A |003 Proposed Second Floor And Roof B
Plans
im 2m
Scala 11100

Z:\M063 - Rutland Street, Ashton U Lyne\Drawings\Live\plots\1063_A003 ProposedSecondFloorAndRoofPlan.dwg




This page is intentionally left blank



Notes y

Jennings Design Associates take no responsibility for any dimensions
obtained by scaling from this drawing. If no dimension is shown the recipient
must ascertain the dimension specifically from the Architect or by site
measurement. Supplying this drawing in digital form is solely for convenience
and no reliance may be placed on digital data. All data must be checked
against hard copy. Dimensions must be checked on site. Any discrepancies
must be reported to the Architect immediately. This drawing is copyright of
Jennings Design Associates

Gy abed

Proposed East Elevation

Proposed West Elevation

Proposed South Elevation

Proposed North Elevation

B | Windows Revised Following Planning 48 07.2019 DH
Comments
A |Revised Following Planning Comments 04.07.2019 SJB

Rev Description Date By
C Concept G Contract
D Planning J Construction
E Building Regs L As Built
F Tender Sk Sketch

jda architects

info@jda-architects.com - d
www.jda-architects.com J a

architects

manchester: 0161 336 5011
liverpool: 0151 6650112

clent Richmond Fellowship
Project:

Rutland Street, Ashton Under Lyne
Scale: (@ original size  |Date: Drawn by: Checked By:
1:100 |A1 10/01/2019 SJB SB
Job Number Description Rev
1063 A |004 Proposed Elevations B

e — Scse 1100

Z:\1063 - Rutland Street, Ashton U Lyne\Drawings\Live\plots\1063_A004 ProposedElevations.dwg




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5b

Application Number 19/00067/FUL

Proposal Demoilition of existing buildings and erection of 8 houses
Site Hill Street Works, Hill Street, Hyde.
Applicant D Woodman Developments Ltd

Recommendation Refuse

Reason for report A Speakers Panel decision is required because, in accordance with the
Council's Constitution, the applicant has requested the opportunity to
address the Panel before a decision is made. Accordingly, an objector, or
their agent, has been given the opportunity to speak also.

1. APPLICATION DESCRIPTION

1.1 The application seeks full planning permission to demolish and remove all of the existing
buildings and to redevelop the site to provide a terrace of eight houses. The houses at
either end of the terrace would be two-storey and those in-between would rise to three
storeys. Although the road rises from north-west to south east, so that the ridge heights of
the houses would be staggered, the terrace would have a symmetrical appearance: the two
end houses would have the same design; the next two, on either side, would be the same
as each other; and, the two houses in the middle, rising to a forward facing gable, would
correspond with each other. The houses would be brick-built with tiled roofs.

1.2 The two end houses would both have an integral garage and driveway in front with a
garden at the side. The houses in-between would each have a driveway, with space
enough to park two cars, and gardens in front. Each house would have a rear garden.
Discreet bin stores would be provided or else provision would be made to store bins at the
rear and to transport these to the front for collection.

2. SITE & SURROUNDINGS

2.1 The site comprises approximately 0.18ha of land that is occupied currently by a number of
disparate but connected buildings that together form the factory premises owned and
operated by Newton Sports Ltd, manufacturers of sports kits. The factory is set within an
established, primarily-residential area approximately 200m to the north-west of Gee Cross
village centre.

2.2 The site is situated behind and, as the land rises, at a higher level than terraced houses in
Stockport Road to the north-west. To the south-west the site abuts a pair of semi-detached
houses, at the junction with Stockport Road, in Baron Road and then a public car park,
before a terrace of two-storey flats. There are terraced houses on the opposite side of
Baron Road that face towards the site. To the south-east there are more recently
developed detached and semi-detached houses that are at a higher level as the land rises.
There is a scout hut in an elated position on the north-eastern side of Hill Street.

3. RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

3.1 Tameside Unitary Development Plan (UDP) Allocation
Unallocated

Page 47



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

41

5.1

Part 1 Policies

1.3: Creating a Cleaner and Greener Environment;

1.4: Providing More Choice and Quality Homes;

1.5: Following the Principles of Sustainable Development;

1.6: Securing Urban Regeneration;

1.9: Maintaining Local Access to Employment and Services; and,
1.12: Ensuring an Accessible, Safe and Healthy Environment.

Part 2 Policies

H2: Unallocated Sites;

E3: Established Employment Areas;

H4: Type, Size and Affordability of Dwellings;

H7: Mixed Use and Density;

H10: Detailed Design of Housing Developments;
T1: Highway Improvement and Traffic Management;
T10: Parking; and,

MW11: Contaminated Land.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Section 2. Achieving sustainable development;

Section 5 Delivering a sufficient supply of homes;
Section 9. Promoting sustainable transport;

Section 11. Making effective use of land; and,

Section 12. Achieving well-designed places.

Other Polices

Employment Land Supplementary Planning Document.

Residential Design Supplementary Planning Document.

It is not considered there are any local finance considerations that are material to the
application.

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

This is intended to complement the NPPF and to provide a single resource for planning
guidance, whilst rationalising and streamlining the material. Almost all previous planning
Circulars and advice notes have been cancelled. Specific reference will be made to the
PPG or other national advice in the Analysis section of the report, where appropriate.

PUBLICITY CARRIED OUT

As part of the planning application process 30 notification letters were sent out to
neighbouring properties and a notice was posted at the site on 1st February 2019. A notice
was published in a local newspaper on 7" February 2019.

RESPONSES FROM CONSULTEES

The Head of Environmental Services (Environmental Protection) has raised no objection

and has suggested that a condition restricting the hours of work during the demolition and
construction be attached to any permission.

Page 48



5.2

5.3

54

5.5

6.1

71

8.1

8.2

The Head of Environmental Services (Highways) has raised no objection and has
suggested that conditions regarding car parking and cycle storage provision, a highways
survey, street lighting and temporary vehicle facilities, and informative notes: regarding
postal addresses; the construction, alteration or removal of a pavement crossing; and,
working near to a highway, be attached to any permission.

United Utilities has no objection and suggested a number of conditions to ensure a
sustainable system of drainage be attached to any permission.

The GM Archaeological Unit has no record of any features of archaeological interest on the
site.

The GM Ecology Unit has no objection and suggests that informative notes regarding
disturbance to bat roosts and nesting birds be attached to any permission.

SUMMARY OF THIRD PARTY RESPONSES RECEIVED

Representations have been received from six neighbours. In two instances the principle of
the proposed redevelopment of the site for residential purposes is welcomed but concerns
are expressed about the impact on views over the valley, that on-street parking that is
available currently in Hill Street would be lost, and disturbance during demolition and
construction. Concerns about loss of views, the on-street parking that is available currently,
and disturbance during demolition and construction are reiterated in the other
representations received.

ANAYLSIS
The key issues to be assessed in the determination of this planning application are:

The principle of development and the loss of the existing employment site;
Design and appearance;

Impact on existing residential amenities;

Residential environment created;

Impact on highway safety and the road network; and,

Other Matters.

gL

Principle of development

The applicant’s stated reason for making the application is that the premises are unsuitable
to sustain the continued operation: the premises are too large for the current needs of the
applicant and, being multi-levelled, the movement of goods is difficult, and maintenance
and heating of the poorly insulated building are costly. The sale of the site for residential
purposes would then facilitate the relocation of the applicant’s operations to new premises.

Although not allocated specifically as an established employment area the premises remain
in use for employment generating purposes and so the proposal is subject to consideration
with regard to UDP policy E3 which aims to retain employment generating sites in such use
unless a number of factors indicate otherwise. These factors include: the benefits arising
from new residential development; the quantity, type, evidence and demand of employment
sites and premises in the area; the suitability of the site in its present form for further
employment; and, the opportunity which may be presented for new forms of employment.
Such an approach is consistent with the NPPF (paragraph 121) which states that:

Page 49



8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

Local planning authorities should ... take a positive approach to applications for alternative
uses of land which is currently developed but not allocated for a specific purpose in plans,
where this would help to meet identified development needs. In particular, they should
support proposals to use retail and employment land for homes in areas of high housing
demand, provided this would not undermine key economic sectors or sites.

Additionally, in order to reduce the need to travel longer distances from outlying areas and
to help create vitality and diversity in predominantly residential areas, according to UDP
policy 1.9, opportunities will be taken wherever possible to retain and increase the
availability of local employment.

The Council’s estimated supply of land available for employment use across the borough
has reduced considerably over several years which means that the further release of land
for non-employment uses should be considered carefully to ensure that the opportunity for
retained or replacement employment opportunities has been fully considered. Many
manufacturing and commercial sites have been lost to residential and retailing uses and the
much higher land values associated with these uses are putting pressure on remaining
sites. The Council wants to encourage employment development in sustainable locations
to enable more enterprise and job opportunities.

When considering proposals for the release of employment land to alternative uses the
starting point is to determine the need to retain sites in employment use and the supply of
employment land. Given the reduction in land available for employment development
within the borough, this consideration weighs heavily against the release of sites to
alternative uses.

The policy is supported by the Employment Land Supplementary Planning Document
(SPD) that provides more detail on the Council’s approach towards proposals that involve
the loss of employment land and premises. The application site is less than 2ha which may
not be considered significant in terms of overall scale for employment purposes but
nevertheless it is important to fully judge the implications and the individual merits of the
proposal. Cumulatively, the increasing loss of employment sites across the borough would
cause significant harm to the Council's strategy to provide a sufficient supply of
employment land. The burden of proof is on the applicant to demonstrate why a site is no
longer suitable for continued employment use and a properly-argued justification is required
which details the reasons why the site could be released.

The Employment Land SPD acknowledges that in certain cases an applicant may be able
to demonstrate that buildings are unsuitable for continued employment use due to their
current state of repair. Consideration must then be given to other options that would enable
the site to remain in employment use. Before considering release the Council will need to
be satisfied that either refurbishment of the buildings for employment uses or
redevelopment of the site for further employment use are not viable. A statement
appraising the extent and nature of options for the site must be submitted with the planning
application including a development appraisal or residual valuation for each option.
Viability Assessments submitted with the application explore various options for the
application site. These are described below and it is considered that each is unsound.

Option A: Redevelopment to Provide Modern Commercial Premises:

An indicative scheme has been considered so as to provide an option of redevelopment of
the application site for further employment uses. The option includes a building that is
smaller than the existing and includes car parking provision that exceeds the maximum
standards that are applied normally with reference to UDP policy T1 and the Employment
Land SPD. The applicant’s assessment of this option envisages the new premises being
made available for rent. The build cost included in the assessment [£85/sqft (or £909/sqm)]
is considered excessive. What is considered a more realistic estimate of build cost

Page 50



8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

8.13

8.14

8.15

(£770/sgm) would reduce the overall cost by approximately £130,000. It is therefore
considered that the build cost is over-estimated.

Option B: Redevelopment to Provide Modern Commercial Premises and Applicant to
Remain on Site:

The option envisages redevelopment to provide a single building sub-divided so as to
accommodate two units, one of which would be occupied by the applicant. As in the case
of Option A, the building envisaged is smaller than the existing and includes car parking
provision that exceeds the maximum standards that are applied normally with reference to
UDP policy T1 and the Employment Land SPD. The applicant’s assessment of the cost of
this option includes a bank loan to finance the redevelopment and the price of the new
build. One or the other should be included; if a bank loan was obtained to finance the
redevelopment it would cover the price of the new build. The inclusion of both constitutes
double counting. It is therefore considered that the overall cost of the redevelopment is
over-estimated

Option C: Redevelopment to Provide a Mixed Use Development, including new build
commercial premises and 2 semi-detached houses:

The estimated purchase price of the land included in this option is increased by £25,000
above the value included in Option A. The applicant’s justification for this increased
valuation is the residential aspect of this option. As is the case in Option A, the applicant’s
assessment of this option envisages the new premises being made available for rent and
the build cost included in the assessment [£85/sqft (or £909/sqm)] is considered excessive.
It is therefore considered that the build cost is over-estimated.

Option D: Refurbishment of the Existing Building:

The option considers the purchase of the site and the refurbishment and sub-division in to
two units that would be available for rent. Whilst the cost of refurbishment is considered too
great, the option of the premises being refurbished by the applicant for their continued use
is not explored. The option of refurbishment is therefore considered incomplete.

In each case the options assessed are for redevelopment or refurbishment and then the
leasing of the premises. The option of the site being redeveloped or refurbished by a
prospective new end user is nowhere explored.

The premises have not been actively marketed as available for rent or purchase for
employment generating purposes and so it is not possible therefore to substantiate a robust
conclusion that every reasonable attempt has been made to secure a suitable business
use; whether there is any market demand for the site for these purposes has not been
tested. Instead, it is considered that the application falls short of a persuasive case to
demonstrate that the premises or site are no longer required, nor that there is a reasonable
prospect of these being used for employment generating purposes in the future.

The Council cannot currently demonstrate a 5 year housing land supply and this is a
material planning consideration in respect of the application of Policy E3 referred to in
paragraph 8.2. This is also relevant for the purposes of applying the requirements of
paragraph 11 of the Framework which requires that applications should only be
approved in such circumstances where any adverse impacts of doing so would be
significantly and demonstrably outweighed by the benefits, when assessed against the
policies in this Framework taken as a whole.

It is acknowledged that the proposal would make a contribution, albeit limited to eight
dwellings, to the borough’s housing supply. There would also be limited economic, social

Page 51



8.16

9.1

9.2

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

and environmental benefits that would accrue from the provision of jobs and spending
during the construction phrase. However, due to the site’s relative inaccessibility and
restricted access to services, there would be more limited benefits through spending in the
local economy by future occupants. There would be improvements to the residential
environment and amenities enjoyed by neighbouring residents in Baron Road and,
particularly, Stockport Road, but these might be achieved by an alternative scheme that
retains employment opportunities on the site. The improvements would not be wholly
dependent upon the site being redeveloped for residential purposes.

Given the above it is considered that the limited contribution the proposal would make
to meeting the borough’s housing requirements would not outweigh the potential of the
site in its present form for further employment use that would contribute to the
economic growth objectives of the borough. It therefore conflicts with the economic
aims of Policy E3 of the UDP and the Framework and, therefore, the principle of the
proposed development is unacceptable.

Design and appearance

There is no distinct vernacular beyond the nearby buildings being predominantly 2-storey.
The maijority of nearby houses are terraced; mostly brick-built but some are stone. The
newer houses to the south-east, being brick-built, are a mixture of detached and semi-
detached and the two houses immediately adjacent to the application site rise to 3 storeys.

The proposed houses would be of a traditional design and appearance, and would be brick-
built with tiled roofs, which, despite rising to 3-storeys, would not appear out-of-keeping the
setting within the established residential area. Windows in the fronts of the houses would
be constructed with heads and sills. Not appear out-of-keeping in their setting and so not
causing undue harm to the local area, the proposal is considered acceptable in terms of the
design and compliant with: Section 12 of the NPPF; policies 1.3, H10(a) and C1 of the
UDP; and, policy RD2 of the SPD.

Existing residential amenities

In order to prevent undue over-shadowing and over-looking of neighbouring properties the
Residential Design SPD requires that minimum distances, measured from habitable room
windows, be maintained. In relation to 2-storey buildings, the normal standard is that 21m
be maintained between directly facing habitable room windows and that 14m be maintained
between a habitable room window and a blank wall. The distances should be increased by
1m for every 1m difference in levels.

The distance between the blank, 2-storey gable in the proposed development and windows
in the rear of houses in Stockport Road to the north-west would increase slightly from the
8.4m that exists currently between the existing houses and the 2-storey factory wall. The
garage on the side of the new house would encroach to a distance of approximately 5.8m
from the rear of the existing houses.

There is currently a distance of approximately 12m between the rear wall of the existing
factory building and windows in the rear of houses that front on to Baron Road and back on
to the north—eastern corner of the site. Albeit that these are glazed with frosted glass, there
are windows in the wall of the factory wall facing towards the houses in Baron Road. There
would then be a distance of approximately 18m between windows in the rear of the
proposed houses and windows in the rear of the existing houses.

There would be a distance of approximately 13m between the blank, facing gable in the
proposed terrace and habitable room windows in the existing neighbouring house in

Page 52



10.5

10.6

10.6

11.

12

121

Orchard Rise to the south-east. The garage on the side of the new house would encroach
to a distance of little more than 10m from the rear of the existing houses.

The Planning Statement submitted with the application contends that the siting of the
proposed houses conforms in the main to the Residential Design SPD in terms of the
relationship with existing houses. This contention is based on the assumption that
variations, or relaxation, of the spacing distances required normally can be considered
appropriate where there are differences in levels and where existing buildings are closer to
existing houses than would be proposed houses.

Whilst the distances involved are sub-standard, the spacing between the proposed houses
and the existing houses in Stockport Road and Baron Road is considered acceptable
because the impact on the existing houses would be significantly less than that of the
existing factory. This is particularly the case in respect of the impact on the houses in
Stockport Road where windows in the factory wall over-look the rear of the houses and the
existing building forms a continuous wall along the boundary.

In relation to the existing houses in Orchard Rise, the contention in the Planning Statement
that the siting of the proposed houses conforms in to the spacing required by the
Residential Design SPD assumes that because the development site is approximately 1m
lower than the existing houses a 1m reduction in the normal standard (14m) can be applied.
In fact, the SPD does not allow for such instances and the proposed spacing is sub-
standard.

Residential environment created

Reflecting the requirement of Section 12 of the NPPF, that developments create places
with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users, UDP policy H10(a) requires
that the design of proposed housing developments, which are acceptable in relation to
other relevant policies in the plan, meets the needs of the potential occupiers. To this end
policy RD18 of the Residential Design SPD recommends minimum floor areas that
residential developments should achieve. The proposal would provide a minimum single-
bedroom size of 8sgqm and a minimum double-bedroom size of 13sgm. Providing total
useable internal areas of 109sgm in the 2-storey houses and 127sgm in the 3-storey
houses achieves the requirements of nationally prescribed Technical Housing Standards.
Each house would be provided with commensurate private amenity space. In terms of the
amount of living accommodation that would be provided the proposal is therefore
considered of an adequate size to comply with policy H10(a) of the UDP and Section 12 of
the NPPF.

The impact on highway safety and the road network

Although there are bus routes along Stockport Road close to the site services cease in the
early evening. Local services in Gee Cross centre are limited. Each house would then be
provided with 2 off-street parking spaces and cycle stores. Despite the location not being
considered particularly accessible by modes of transportation other than motor car it is
accepted that the impact of the proposed development on highway safety and the road
network would not be severely detrimental over and above that of the existing industrial use
and the ftraffic this generates and so it is accepted that the proposal is compliant with
policies H10(b), T1 and T10 of the UDP and Section 9 of NPPF.

Page 53



13.

13.1

14.

14.1

14.2

14.4

15.

Other issues

Views from existing houses and opportunities to park on-street are not safeguarded. The
impact on views over the valley, and that on-street parking that is available currently in Hill
Street would be lost, are not a material considerations in determining the application.
Whilst there is bound to be some disturbance during the period of demolition and
construction this is controlled by other legislative requirements and, again, not a material
consideration.

Conclusion

Constituting the redevelopment of a brownfield, or previously-developed site, the proposal
is, in this respect, considered a sustainable development and compliant with the core
principles and Section 2 of the NPPF and policy 1.5 of the UDP. There is, however, a clear
need to retain productive employment sites and there is a quantitative need to resist
proposals for alternative uses on these sites unless a case for redevelopment can be
demonstrated.

That fact the Council cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites in
a recently adopted plan or in any annual position statement, as is required by paragraph 74
of the NPPF, is not disputed. For decision-taking this means that permission should be
granted unless any adverse impacts would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework taken as a whole. It is not
considered that the application proposals achieve such benefits for the reasons identified
above.

The principle of the release of the land for alternative, non-employment generating uses is
considered to not to have satisfied the requirements of UDP policy E3 and so cannot be
accepted. Instead, in the absence of a sufficiently robust appraisal of the extent and nature
of options for retaining the site in employment-generating use, the harm to the provision of
employment land to support the local economy would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits that would arise, and the does not comprises sustainable
development defined by the NPPF.

RECOMMENDATION
Refuse planning permission for the following reason.

The application fails to demonstrate in a sufficiently robust manner that the benefits that
would arise from the development would significantly outweigh the harm that the release of
the land for alternative, non-employment generating uses would have to the provision of
employment land to support the local economy. For this reason, it not being demonstrated
that the benefits would outweigh the harm, including the impact on the neighbouring house
on Orchard Rise, the proposal is contrary to policies H10, 1.9 and E3 of the Tameside
Unitary Development Plan and the Council’'s Employment Land Supplementary Planning
Document and fails to comprise sustainable development as is required by the National
Planning Policy Framework.

Page 54



Scale 1/850 Date 8/2/2019

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with
the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller Centre = 395572 E 393

of Her Majesty's Stationary Office (c) Crown copyright. Unauthorised entre = 395572 E 393515 N
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution
or civil proceedings.

Page 55



Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 56



Photo 3

Photo 4

Page 57



Photo 5

Photo 6

Page 58



Photo 7

Page 59



Photo 8

Photo 9

Page 60



Photo 10

Photo11

m—m e

==

L2 ]

m ’,M_ s

,«

Page 61



Photo 12

Page 62



4% GeelCross -
Methodist'™Church
| n 1.'

Google Earth Satellite Image of the site.




This page is intentionally left blank



G9 abed

- Planting
(@)
Marshall's "Tegula Priora' Permeable Paving

1800mm waneylap fence : = 3 Pl

Grass

Permeable Tarmac

Cycle Store

Low level boxwood hedge denoting boundaries

800'n1'm ]
“waneylap fence -

/ . ;
— ] : i) L) _—
I : Boundaries behind the .-
" . % “houses to be 1800mm . ;
I b k Waney lap fence (see -
Lt " detail) : Hedge to be removed
HIL; o
x £
@
O it -3
#(Cycle / 1] .- Q 5 1800mm waney lap fence (See detail)
#Bin Store : Q '
] iet = Cycle /
| S | Bin Store!
13000
“‘ 2
- ““ Gate ——
Gate
| | A
{ n S | Boundary forward of the gate
B 2 to be 1000mm waney lap
| / fence
| /
| | / o
| / 1800 Waney lap fence (see detail) <
A i
E e a—— s = | e 2 N | M - £ 721 N G e (i1
Y \ 4 | \“ N
— |
P ~ ] g e Boundries defined by =
ST | / e paving/planting

Hill Street

h . N \

@ Site Existing 3 Site Proposed
1

: 200 1:200
Rev = Description Date
— ] ! . I Roof overhangs removed| 17/04/19
i 1] 393578.25" hid hid hid i hid © 39357325 . g .
I i § from site plan for clarity
100x100 concrete posts > 0 i ; ] J Revisions to boundary 29/05/19
— f i 8l & treatments
6mm thick waney edged - 1\ E % r— | s w0
boards in larch with lath T~ — | [ —— | i I — =
framing. Treated with protim A B R E % ArCh |teCtU ral :
water based solution. G i b S@LUT”@NS g ’i
—  — — | ——  — 8 i P p— Building Design & Planning Consultants S 1) ki =
e s N II 1 ; I 17 BONINGTON RISE - MARPLE BRIDGE - STOCKPORT - CHESHIRE - SK6 5DW - UNITED KINGDOM
- - 1 — P ) E: architecturalsolutions@ntlworld.com T: 0161 449 8766 M: 0782 3322338. W:architecturalsolutionsltd. co.uk
R cosne /. N BT
I § R HINGES / DEALA Project Hill Street Works,
-— - — | Address )
— | T T  — 3950, \\/\ S i HI” Street,
1400 TOP & BOTTOM SLIDING LATCH BOLT
| Hyde,
Gravel Board : ! S T I D IO i Chesh”'e,
PROJECT
o 8: 39345( 393450
= CH [ =
Orchard Mews
TITLE
Site & Location Plans
SECTION ELEVATION :
- CLIENT
Wane Ia fence d&ta" ) . el ] ] ] ] ——t D. Woodman Developments
@ 1:20 y p Bln Store Detall HEHEH | | | | DRAWN BY CHECKED BY DATE
: Tt Tt MJH AS 12/12/18
All Dimensions to be checked on site e ————— SCALE (@ A1) PROJECT NUMBER
Work must not be commenced until planning permission (where applicable) and building = As indicated 2610
regulations approval is received. Any works carried out before receipt of the permissions is LOcat I O n P I a n
"entirely at clients’ own risk" 2 DRAWING NUMBER REV
1:1250 05 0 05 1 15 2 25
It is the responsibility of the client to verify the accuracy of the boundry shown on the Site plan. SCALE 150 — m‘ 01 J

29/05/2019 10:35:57




This page is intentionally left blank



91:65:¢1 610¢/¥0/9¢

AT H3GNNN ONIMYEA

019¢ 00¢ )

H3IGNNN LO3rodd (LY ®) 3v0S

gLicLich SY HIA

3lva A8 IMOTIHO A9 NMYHQ
Sjuswdojans(g UBWPOOAA ‘[

LN3MO

buisse|\ pue a)is

3LIL

SMB\ PJBY2IO

103rodd

THS YIMS
‘al1ysay)
‘9pAH
19013 |IIH
SUOMIBBAS IH~ elous

3N"09 "PYISUOHN|OS[BINIOBNYOIE: M "BEEZZEE Z8L0 N 9928 6 1910 11 WO PLOMIU@SUORN|OS[BINISNYOE 13
WOUONIM GILINM - MAS 9MS - FHIHSTHO - LHOdMOOLS - 3D0IHE 31dHYA - 3SIH NOLONINOE Lt
_ o2 B R sjueynsuog Buuueld @ ubisaq Buiping

= EE L 1] SNOLINT0S
L L jeimoenyoly

61/£0/8¢| ©ZIS Ul uoionpal |[ews d
abueyo
61/€0/90 uonisod ¢ % Z 10|d v

aled uonduose@ | A8y

wg 86009 6L0z® e1ep dew '9|6009 61026 Atebew)

3

S0

0S:L ITVOS

0

I 2§ e

S0

daliei S

SRS T R S eSS

AN e e

-

e

‘ueld 8)ig 8y} uo umoys Alpunoq ayj Jo Aoeinaode ay) AlLISA 0} Jua|0 Uy} Jo Ajjiqisuodsal 8y} s}

LISH UMO sual|o 1e Ajaanus,,
sl suoissiwlad ay} Jo 1d180al 810j8q 1IN0 pallied sIoM AUy "paAlIsdal si [eaoldde suoneinbol
Buipjing pue (sjgesydde sieym) uoissiwiad Bujuueld [pUn pasuUsSWILWOD 8g JOU JSNW YIOAA

9)IS U0 Pay08y0 8q 0} suoisuswi( ||y

Bunsixg buissep 9}1S @

00C - |
Bunsix3g - uoneAa|g }094}S 9AIEIIPU| @

00C - |
pasodo.d - uoijeasa|] }9a4}S 9ANBIIPU| @

sdejy 2|booc)

Ge8l

ooualayIp 1yBisy peay MOPUIAA

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



69 abed

Wall Plate (A) o -
e 29772 :

Level 2 (A -
G ’ 27450 Y £4; =:!:.:=§

— |
; B Leveli(A) /
24825 L

(ML AR

ii"HH}
=

1
.
1]
| A
ey R S A FE
i o il Rl eieliet et il
|
W=+
T
|
I
T
T
1

f':r:ﬁHﬂ I_”_”-.”_Inj?i_rl__ -

Level 0 (A) 2 e
e 22200 = TR Heed
=4 = )11

Elevation - Front Elevation Side 2
1 500 2 1100

= =

;?’ VVaHBEge(C) -
28582 o oy = ' == e sist S P L
Level 2 (C) - = :fﬁijjjxiitﬁﬁiﬂiixxx H ;H i Eﬁprfy;y:ugu :nﬁww4uuuuw4+hhhhhhhhjhﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁvvnnvwvvv' IIIIEH = e ';Ihlfﬁﬂhiq

© e = =l = i AN =1 = =100

s

e Level 1 (C)
23895

—

e Level 0 (C)
21270

3 Elevation Rear
1:100

Rev = Description Date

Design Revisions 11/01/19
Position change 11/01/19
Planning revisions 14/02/19

Plot 2 & 3 position 06/03/19
change

oo w>

Wall Plate (A) -
e 29772 -

Architectural
SOLUTIONS

Building Design & Planning Consultants &l e o
17 BONINGTON RISE - MARPLE BRIDGE - STOCKPORT - CHESHIRE - SK6 5DW - UNITED KINGDO!
E: architecturalsolutions@ntlworld.com T: 0161 449 8766 M: 0782 3322338. W:architecturalsolutionsltd. co.uk

ililalalali A

e Level ZLA) -
27450

Project. Hill Street Works,
. T Hill Street,

AR =t Hyde,

Level 1 (A) — - |

e 24825 o — = — Cheshire,

SK14 5RL

Level 0 (A) RIS o~ PROJECT
e 22200 Orchard Mews

TITLE

Elevation Side 1 Elevations

4 1:100
CLIENT
D. Woodman Developments

DRAWN BY CHECKED BY DATE
Author Checker 12/12/18

All Dimensions to be checked on site SCALE (@ A1) PROJECT NUMBER

Work must not be commenced until planning permission (where applicable) and building 1:100 2610
regulations approval is received. Any works carried out before receipt of the permissions is

"o C e DRAWING NUMBER REV
entirely at clients' own risk 05 0 05 ; 15 5 o5

It is the responsibility of the client to verify the accuracy of the boundry shown on the Site plan. SCALE 150 — m‘ 02 D

06/03/2019 15:36:12




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5c

Application Number 18/00818/FUL

Proposal Demolition of existing buildings formally occupied by Globe Works and
the construction of 37 dwelling houses and 6 apartments (43
residential units) with associated car parking and landscape works.

Site Former Globe Works, Brook Street, Hyde
Applicant B.A.K Building Contracts Ltd

Recommendation Members resolve to grant planning permission subject to conditions
and completion of a section 106 agreement.

Reason for report A Speakers Panel decision is required because the application
constitutes major development.

1.0 APPLICATION DESCRIPTION

1.1 The application seeks full planning permission for a residential development of 43no.
dwellings comprising of 37 dwellings and 6 apartments. The application has been
amended during the course of its consideration which has resulted in the loss of 14
units from the development proposals.

1.2 The applicant has provided the following documents in support of the planning
application:

- Air quality Assessment;

- Arboricultural Impact Assessment;

- Archaeological Report;

- Coal Mining Risk Assessment;

- Crime Impact statement;

- Design and Access Statement;

- Ecological Assessment (Including protected species);
- Food risk and drainage assessment;

- Planning Statement;

- Phase | and Il Ground investigation reports;

- Statement of Community Involvement; and,
- Full plans package including street scenes.

1.3 The site would take access from the existing turning head onto Brook Street. The
layout proposes two roads which would run parallel to Godley Brook and linked by an
existing bridge over Godley Brook which would be upgraded as part of a package of
highways improvements. Residential properties are proposed on one side of each
road with the boundary to Godley Brook on the other. The submitted layout indicates
semi-detached and terraced rows of 3 and 4 properties and apartments which would
be 2.5 and 3 stories in height. The application also proposes two areas of open
space located either side of site entrance. A comprehensive landscaping and
biodiversity enhancement strategy is proposed throughout the site and alongside
Godley Brook.

1.4 The accommodation mix would be as follows:
e 4 x 1 bed apartment;
e 2 Xx2bed apartment;
e 18 x 3 bed townhouse; and,

Page 71



2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

e 19 x4 bed townhouse.

SITE & SURROUNDINGS

The application relates a parcel of land measuring approximately 1.43 hectares in
area. The site is irregular in shape and located within a valley of Godley Brook which
runs along a central alignment. The valley side are relatively steep but the central
area consists of level plateau.

The site is accessed from the west off Brook Street which a single sided residential
street comprising of terraces properties which overlook the Morrison’s Supermarket
car park. The northern boundary is defined by a footpath which runs along the
alignment of the M67 Motorway, properties fronting Mottram Road occupy an
elevated position to the south and to the east there are industrial units accessed from
Halton Street. These units occupy an elevated level and are separated by
established belt of trees.

Historically the site supported a mill complex but this has long since been demolished
although significant areas of hardstanding remain. There are two small warehouse
structure within the site, one is located central the other on the southern boundary in

addition to several shipping containers. The site has a poor environmental quality
characterised by the industrial legacy, incidents of fly-tipping and self-set vegetation.

PLANNING HISTORY

04/00052/0OUT - Proposed residential development (outline) — 22.12.2004
07/01613/REM - Proposed 48no. apartments (Reserved Matters) — 13.02.2008
13/01025/0UT - Erection of 44 dwellinghouses with associated car parking and
landscape works — Withdrawn 09.12.2016 following lack of completion of the section
106 agreement.

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

Tameside Unitary Development Plan (UDP) Allocation

Unallocated

Part 1 Policies:

1.3: Creating a Cleaner and Greener Environment;

1.4: Providing More Choice and Quality Homes;

1.5: Following the Principles of Sustainable Development;

1.6 Securing Urban Regeneration;

1.10 Protecting and Enhancing the Natural Environment; and,
1.12: Ensuring an Accessible, Safe and Healthy Environment.

Page 72



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Part 2 Policies:

H2: Unallocated sites;

H4: Type, size and affordability of dwellings;

H5: Open Space Provision;

H7: Mixed Use and Density (Density being relevant to this proposal);
H10: Detailed Design of Housing Developments;
OL10: Landscape Quality and Character;

T1: Highway Improvement and Traffic Management;
T10: Parking;

T11: Travel Plans;

C1: Townscape and Urban Form;

N5 Trees Within Development Sites;

N6 Protection and Enhancement of Waterside Areas;
N7: Protected Species;

MW11: Contaminated Land;

U3: Water Services for Developments;

U4 Flood Prevention;

U5 Energy Efficiency; and,

MW14 Air Quality.

Other Policies
Greater Manchester Spatial Framework - Publication Draft October 2018.

The Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) has consulted on the
draft Greater Manchester Spatial Framework Draft 2019 (“GMSF”) which shows
possible land use allocations and decision making polices across the region up to
2038. The document is a material consideration but the weight afforded to it is
limited by the fact it is at an early stage in its preparation which is subject to
unresolved objections

Residential Design Supplementary Planning Document; and,
Trees and Landscaping on Development Sites SPD adopted in March 2007;
Developer Contributions.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Section 2: Achieving sustainable development

Section 5: Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Section 8 Promoting healthy and safe communities

Section 11: Making efficient use of land

Section 12: Achieving well designed places

Section 15: Conserving and enhancing the Natural Environment

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

This is intended to complement the NPPF and to provide a single resource for
planning guidance, whilst rationalising and streamlining the material. Almost all
previous planning Circulars and advice notes have been cancelled. Specific
reference will be made to the PPG or other national advice in the Analysis section of
the report, where appropriate.

Page 73



5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

PUBLICITY CARRIED OUT

The application has been advertised a major development with site and press
notices. Neighbour notification letters were issued in accordance with the
requirements of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and the Council's adopted Statement of
Community Involvement.

RESPONSES FROM CONSULTEES

Local Highway Authority — The development has been amended to reflect earlier
concerns and this has in part influenced the loss of several units from the
development. The access design and layout meets requirements, the developer will
need to undertake structural improvements to the retaining walls located alongside
the brook and also fund the replacement of the bridge crossing. After reviewing the
information regarding Trip Rates at the Junction of Brook Street/Mottram Rd no
objections to the development on Highway matters. To improve traffic flow around
the junction it is recommended that section 106 monies are spent on lining and
modifications to the kerbs on Brook Street and Mottram Road.

Environment Agency - Initially objected to the application on flood risk and ecology
grounds. Amendments to the layout have resulted in the loss of units, revised Flood
risk Strategy and improvements to onsite surface water management. Significant
biodiversity enhancement would be secured inline with the water framework directive.
Note that the site requires significant remediation as a result of previous industrial
legacy. Confirm that initial issues have been appropriately addressed No objection
subject the requirement of conditions relating to: site investigation/remediation,
drainage, protection measures to Godley Brook and securing long-term landscape
management of Godley brook and proposed area of Public Open Space.

Environmental Health — Have reviewed the proposals and raise no objections. The
proximity of the M67 requires consideration to noise and air quality issues. No
objection but recommend conditions relevant to ventilation and acoustic treatment.

TFGM - Identify that the trip generation falls below the threshold of a junction impact
assessment of Brook Street/Mottram Road and refer comments to the Local Highway
Authority. Identify that the site is accessible in close proximity of local services and
public transport. Recommend a condition relating to the implementation and
monitoring of a Full Residential Travel Plan within 6 months of occupation be
attached to any planning consent, if not already conditioned at outline stage.

No objection to the approval of the planning application from a contaminated land
perspective. The site has however had a significant and prolonged industrial use and
initial ground investigations have identified the presence of contamination, including
hydrocarbon impacted soils and groundwater. It is recommend that contaminated
land conditions are attached to the planning permission in order to ensure all risks
posed by contamination are appropriately addressed during the development of the
site.

Tree Officer — No category A or B trees are identified on the site and therefore the
existing category C trees would not be a constraint to development. Also this is a
former commercial site that has naturalised but has no public access and relatively
low visual amenity value to the surrounding area. Mitigating planting would be

Page 74



6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

7.0

7.1

important in this development and a detailed landscape scheme with appropriate
numbers of suitable species trees and shrubs should be agreed.

Natural England — Don’t wish to comment on the application. Recommend that
standing advice with regard to impact on protected species is undertaken.

GMP (Design for Security) — Approve the recommendation of the submitted Crime
Impact Assessment which should be conditioned.

United Utilities — No objections subject to conditions relating to detail design of the
drainage.

Coal Authority — Site falls within a high risk area. An appropriate investigation has
been undertaken of the sites mining legacy. No objection subject to the
recommendations of the report being conditioned.

LLFA — Details of the sites drainage can be conditioned. Inclusion of SUDS within
the layout is supports and subject to the detailed design Godley Brook will be able to
support the outfall of surface water drainage.

GMAAS - Not that there is archaeological interest in the site. Recommend that a
condition be attached to any planning consent requiring that a phased programme of
archaeological investigation be undertaken prior to the commencement of any
demolition, soft-strip or development groundworks.

GMEU - No objections to the proposals, a suitable level of assessment has been
undertaken of the site ecological value including protected species. Confirm that the
application has demonstrated that suitable level of biodiversity enhancement can be
achieved which can be secured by a condition.

Education — A development of this size would attract additional pupils that would
need to be accommodated in schools in the area. Recommended that section 106
monies are allocated towards additional development of school places at Alder High
School.

Highways England — Confirm they have no objection.

SUMMARY OF THIRD PARTY RESPONSES RECEIVED

There have been 6no. representations received from the notification process. The
comments raised are summarised under common themes as follows:

e Development would have an adverse ecological impact associated with the
loss of trees and vegetation from the site;

e The site provides important habitat for bats, newts and badger which would
be lost;

e Access should be taken from Halton Street as there is no capacity within
Brook Street for further development;

e Parking on Brook street is already saturated and the development would add
ot these issues;

e Brook Street is a in a poor condition due to existing traffic demands and this
will only worsen;

Page 75



8.0

8.1

8.2

8.3

9.0

9.1

9.2

9.3

e Mottram Road is gridlocked at peak times and the associated vehicle
movement will be a further burden
e Emergency services would not be able to adequately access the site.

ANAYLSIS

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that
planning applications be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The current position is that the Development Plan consists of the policies and
proposals maps of the Unitary Development Plan and the Greater Manchester Joint
Waste Plan Development Document.

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is also an important consideration.
The NPPF states that a presumption in favour of sustainable development should be
at the heart of every application decision. For planning application decision making
this means:-

- approving development proposals that accord with the development plan
without delay; and

- where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are out of
date, granting planning permission unless:-

o} any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework
taken as a whole; or

o] specific policies in the Framework indicate development should be restricted.

PRINCIPLE

The principle of residential development on the site has been established on previous
occasions under several planning applications. It remains that the site is
undeveloped and of a poor environmental quality. The last of the applications
13/01025/0UT was minded for approval subject the completion of a section 106
agreement but this was never completed. The application was subsequently written
off under Article 40 (13)(a) of the DMPO 2015. The applicant identifies that the
failure to complete the agreement was due to the financial viability issues associated
with the development.

The sites circumstances would appear to have changed very little since the previous
application. Although there is an established ‘fall-back’ position the site does not at
present demonstrate an active employment use. Despite evidence of vegetation
succession the intervening years have seen the overall environmental quality
degrade. Site security would appear to have been tested and there is evidence of
breaches of the boundary treatment, visual indicators are that fly-tipping would
appear to be a regular occurrence.

The site falls within the definition of previously developed land. A core principle of
the National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPF), set out at chapter 11, is that
planning should “encourage the effective use of land by reusing land that has been
previously developed (brownfield land). Local Plan Policy H1 and H2 give priority to
the development of PDL with the aim of achieving a local target of 80% of new
dwellings on such land.

Page 76



9.4

9.5

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

The site is adjacent to Godley Brook and the lower parts of the site lie within Flood
Zones 2 and 3 which symbolises a high risk of flooding to certain sections of the site.
A Flood Risk Assessment has been submitted with the application which concludes
that the flood risk to the proposed development is manageable and development
should not be precluded on flood risk grounds. As per the previous planning
application agreement has been reached with the Environment Agency and the
threat of Flood Risk does not preclude the principle of development, matters of
flooding will be addressed later in the report.

Overall the principle of the proposed residential development at the site remains
acceptable. It is noted that the site is located within a highly sustainable location
recognising the transport links and amenities on hand within Hyde. The Council’s
current lack of a 5 year housing supply should also be afforded significant weight to
the assessment process. The NPPF is clear that the presumption in favour of
sustainable development should be applied to determine planning applications in
such instances, unless the adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly
and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies of the
NPPF as a whole. On this basis, the principle of much needed residential
development on a brownfield site, within an accessible and sustainable location,
directly adjacent to a Predominantly Residential Area, is considered acceptable.

DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS

As a major residential development the site qualifies for development contributions.
Amendments sought through the process have resulted in the loss of 14 dwellings
from the development which equates to 28% reduction from the original submission.
In the context of the development this represents a significant loss but this has been
a necessity given the site conditions. Based on the current unit split the developer
contributions would be £97,349.82 which would be broke down as follows:

e Green Space £17,154.21 (allocated towards Local Green Space improvements)
o Education £48,937.40 (allocated toward Alder High School)
e Highways: £31,258.21 (allocated towards Mottram Road Junction improvements)

In order for this to be adequately addressed payment should be secured through a
Section 106 agreement of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. In the absence
of such an agreement being entered the development fails to adequately mitigate its
impacts contrary to the requirement of polices H5 ‘Open Space Provision’, H6
‘Education and Community Facilities’ and T1 ‘Highway Improvement and traffic
Management’.

The NPPF (para 64) states that major development involving the provision of housing
is proposed, planning policies and decisions should expect at least 10% of the
homes to be available for affordable home ownership, unless this would exceed the
level of affordable housing required in the area. The Tameside Housing Needs
Assessment was updated in September 2019. The Assessment identifies that all
development should seek to secure 15% of units on an affordable basis (As defined
in Annex 2: Glossary of the NPPF) which would equate to approximately 6 units in
this instance.

The Housing Needs Assessment also identifies a requirement for larger housing
within Tameside, and in particular an overriding need for open market housing.

Page 77



10.5

11.0

Tameside’s Affordable housing is largely met through the housing programmes
implemented by the Housing associations. In the context of Hyde consultation with
the Housing Growth Officer confirms that in the applications circumstances there
would be viability issues presented should a contribution be sought along with that
required towards Highways, Green Space and Education. It remains that the site
conditions are extremely challenging and this is testament to previous developments
not coming to fruition.

The developer has identified that site abnormals include demolition and removal of
industrial structures, remediation of ground contaminates, significance of engineering
operations along Godley Brook, raising of site levels to address Flood Risk
Assessment requirements and the internal layout dictating additional highway
construction above what would usually be required for a development of the
proposed scale. The developer has agreed to meet the financial contributions
towards Highways, Education and Green Space infrastructure, with this in mind, and
in the knowledge of the local housing market it would not be desirable to pursue an
affordable housing contribution as this would need to be offset by the other
contributions which are necessary to mitigate the impacts of the development. It
therefore remains that preference be given to securing open market housing within a
recognised period of under supply. An affordable contribution is therefore not sought
with priority given to financial contributions to offsite infrastructure as detailed
previously.

DESIGN AND LAYOUT

Policy C1 and H10 in addition to the relevant paragraphs of the NPP require
development that is designed and landscaped to the highest standard, paying high
regard to the built and/or natural environment, within which it is sited, will be given
positive consideration. Proposals should respond to the townscape and landscape
character of the local area, reinforcing or creating local identity and distinctiveness in
terms of layout, scale and appearance, and should consider the need to deliver low
carbon housing. Good standards of amenity, privacy, safety/security and open space
should also be provided for the occupants of new housing and good standards of
amenity and privacy should be maintained for the occupants of existing housing.

The Design of Residential Development SPD’s overall purpose is to achieve high
quality design in residential development. The design has responded to the
constraints of the site to ensure that relevant spacing standards to existing properties
would be observed whilst providing a safe and convenient access.

The layout is informed significantly by the presence of Godley Brook which dissects
the site in two. A sense of arrival would be created through the provision of open
space which would flank either side of the access road. The constraints of the site
dictate single sided development to the highway. This however, provides a strong
identity for the Brook. The Brook would become a central feature creating an amenity
corridor the central area of the site. The houses respond in a positive manner by
virtue to their alignment to the Brook and access roads which would also support
structured landscaping. This creates a unique residential environment as well as an
opportunity to secure significant environment and biodiversity enhancement.

The houses would effectively be positioned around 2 cul-de-sacs which would
provide a ftraffic calmed environment allowing pedestrians to take priority over
vehicles. There would be a housing mix comprising of subtle variations to the 2.5/3
storey townhouse which would create visual interest. The design is and siting of the

Page 78



12.0

12.1

12.2

12.3

properties is also conducive to ensuring suitable protection from Flood Risk. The
elevations would be moderately contemporary in appearance, in the main they would
be constructed from brick, details are provided to elevations in the form casements to
windows and soldier course bands to elevations. Overall there is considered to be
sufficient variety within the housing stock, the design and choice of materials would
be of a sufficient quality.

The development would constitute a density of approximately 30uph, this has been
reduced from 40uph as a result in the loss of units to address flood risk issues. The
site constraints dictate that it would not be feasible to increase this without the
addition of apartments in lieu of townhouses. It is also considered to represent a
reasonable threshold development to be accessed from Brook Street. On balance
this would be an efficient use of the land, particularly in period of recognised housing
undersupply. Overall it is considered the scale of the development, both in terms of
the numbers and heights is appropriate to the local context.

With regard to parking arrangements the layout identifies that this would be provided
mainly to the front dwellings which is somewhat regrettable. However, the
dominance/impact would be offset by soft landscaping within front gardens and
boundary treatments. Where space allows the highway would support planting in the
form of trees and shrubs, this in turn provides a visual benefit by softening the sites
overall appearance. Provision is also made within the layout to accommodate
appropriate levels of visitor parking within the street. All of the properties are served
with front to rear access which will allow for the storage of bins outside of the public
domain.

Having full consideration to the design merits of the proposal and the layout of the
scheme it is considered that the development would deliver an attractive residential
environment which would enhance the existing area. The scale and density of the
development is reflective to that of housing within the locality, overall it is considered
that the design and layout would have a strong identity and provide good quality
family housing. It is therefore, considered that the proposal adheres to the objectives
of policy C1, H10 and the adopted SPD which stress the importance of residential
development being of an appropriate design, scale, density and layout.

DESIGN AND RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

The Design of Residential Development SPD identifies standards for new residential
development. It is important that new residential developments achieve appropriate
levels of amenity for proposed residents whilst not adversely affecting existing
residents. This is mainly achieved by ensuring that developments adhere to inter-
house spacing policy in terms of their position, scale and orientation in relation to
existing properties. In this regard the SPD states that a distance of 21 metres should
be achieved between private (rear) elevations, 14 metres between a principle and
non-principle elevation.

The layout of the proposed houses comply with the Council's guidelines in relation to
privacy and overlooking in terms of both distances within the new development and
the existing houses surrounding the site on Mottram Road, Brook Street and Steeles
Avenue. The proposed development is also situated at a much lower level to
surrounding properties having no influence upon their outlook or levels of privacy.

It is considered that the occupants of the dwellings would be served with a good level
of amenity. External noise levels from the Motorway would be controlled by boundary

Page 79



12.4

12.5

13.0

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

treatments, glazing specification and controlled ventilation. The design of the
properties meets technical guidelines for room sizes with good separation between
habitable and non-habitable areas. The outside amenity space for the apartment and
housing occupants alike is also well proportioned and provides secure and private
garden space.

The site is within the urban area, and is in an accessible and sustainable location. It
is located within a convenient walking distance of Hyde town centre the amenities of
which can serve future residents.

The layout and form of development represents a considered response to its context,
and would avoid any undue impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties which
overlook the site, and for future occupiers by reason of visual intrusion,
overshadowing, loss of daylight, overlooking or loss of privacy and accords with the
provisions of policy H10.

HIGHWAY SAFETY

Highways comment that the access arrangements are suitable to protect all road
users. The roads within the development are designed to ensure that vehicle speeds
are low on the approach to the site and the access provides adequate visibility
splays.

The entrance carriageway would be 5.5m wide with 2m footpaths to accommodate
vehicle and pedestrian needs. The access lead as an extension to the existing
turning head at the bottom of Brook Street, this extension would improve turning
arrangements for all highway users. The presence of Godley Brook through the
middle of site dictates highway construction either side of the watercourse. This
would also require the provision of a new bridge and improvement to all retaining
structures alongside the river. The new road and turning heads would be
constructed to adoptable standards including area of highways which are proposed
as private driveways. In line with the maximum standards of the adopted SPD on
parking all of the properties have off street parking with driveways measuring 6m x
3.1m. The position and orientation of the properties ensures that these parking
spaces are accessible and also have good surveillance.

The proximity of the site to Hyde centre, in addition to public transport, employment
and community services is noted, and on this basis is considered in highway terms to
be a highly appropriate location for a residential development. Further to this the
Highway Engineer considers that the proposal should not result in a material
increase in vehicle movements on the local highway network in comparison to that
which could be generated should the site be in full employment occupation.

Traffic movements to and from the site would be acceptable in terms of local
capacity. In response to concerns raised by residents about the safety and access
to Brook Street section 106 monies would be directed towards improvements at the
Mottram Road junction, including keep clear markings, which will be beneficial to
both access and egress access requirements of all road users.

Page 80



13.5

14.0

14.1

14.2

14.3

15.0

15.1

15.2

15.3

Overall the site is within a very accessible location. The access and parking
arrangements have been designed in conjunction with advice given from the
Highways Authority and they have raised no objections. Therefore subject to the
recommended conditions, it is considered that the development adheres to the
provisions of policies T1 and T10.

FLOOD RISK

There are localised areas to the south of Godley Brook are located within flood zone
2 and 3 on the Environment Agency’s Flood Risk map which dictates that the site is
within a high probability of flooding. Godley Brook passes into a culvert on the
western boundary, the entrance to this culvert (Headwall) is protected by a steel
grate which is prone to blockages. It is such instances which are the main cause of
the onsite flooding and this situation has not changed significantly in the intervening
years since the previous planning applications.

The application has been supported with a robust Flood Risk Assessment which has
been reviewed and accepted by the Environment Agency subject to conditions. To
address Flood risk requirements all residential development has been removed from
this area with land being handed over as open space designed to accommodate
surface water storage. The finished floor levels of the properties have also been
raised 600mm above the calculated 1 in 100 year plus 35% climate change levels.
To address issues of obstructions to the river channel and improve overall flow rates
routine maintenance of the Brook will be undertaken by a management company.

Conditions relating to foul and surface water drainage are proposed which will ensure
that the site is drained in accordance with the drainage hierarchy. United Utilities
have also not raised any objections to the proposals, subject to compliance with
these conditions.

LANDSCAPING, TREES & ECOLOGY

The applicant has submitted indicative details of the proposed soft landscaping and
details of a hard landscaping scheme. The species mix proposed includes a mixture
of native species in addition to ornamental shrub and hedge planting. The site
includes three large areas of open space which will be planted with amenity grass
and wildflower, existing tree planting to valley sides will also be retained and
enhanced as part of a comprehensive strategy. Trees would be planted to the front of
a number of the dwellings, presenting a structure to the streetscape and enhancing
the overall setting of the properties. The landscaping strategy has been designed not
only to achieve amenity benefits but also to raise the overall biodiversity value of the
site.

The Tree Officer has no objections to the proposals. Subject to a condition requiring
specific details of the soft landscaping scheme to be submitted and approved and
conditions relating to the implementation of the landscaping scheme prior to
occupation of the development and stipulating on-going management requirements,
the indicative approach to soft landscaping is considered to be acceptable.

In relation to areas of public open space including the channel of Godley Brook it is

the intention for all future maintenance of these areas to be addressed by a private
management company.

Page 81



15.4

15.5

15.6

16.0

16.1

17.0

17.1

17.2

Local residents have expressed concerns regarding loss of wildlife habitats and the
nature conservation value of the site. GMEU confirm that suitable surveys have been
undertaken, it has been confirmed that there are no protected species present within
the site although there are signs of badger activity just outside of the site boundary.
As a safeguard conditions are recommended that further surveys are undertaken
prior to any earthworks commencing on the site. The landscaping strategy advises
that connectivity across the site should be maintained and GMEU agree with this
conclusion.

Three species listed under schedule 9 part 2 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981
(as amended) were found on the site, Japanese knotweed, Himalayan balsam and
Gunnera. The removal of these species will be secured by condition require the
submission of a method statement for their eradication prior to any works
commencing.

Paragraph 170 of NPPF advises that the planning system should contribute to and
enhance the natural and local environment. The development will result in the loss of
around 1.4ha of semi-natural habitat, primarily moderate value habitat in the former
of dense scrub but also higher value habitats in the form of broadleaved woodland.
The ecological report notes that mitigation should be provided, the proposed site has
been amended to include further areas of open space and consultation with GMEU
and the EA confirms that a suitable level of land is being set aside secures a suitable
level of mitigation. In addition to tree, hedge and wildflower planting Godley Brook
will also form part of the overall mitigation strategy and it is proposed to undertake
improvement to the channel and embankments to improve connectivity. The
proposals as detailed have been fully endorsed by the EA who recommend the
submitted details are conditioned.

CONTAMINATION

A Phase | Desk Study and Phase Il Ground investigation into possible contamination
on the site has been carried out and submitted with the application. These reports
have been reviewed by the Contaminated Land Officer. The initial ground
investigations have identified the presence of contamination, including hydrocarbon
impacted soils and groundwater. Once the existing buildings have been removed and
site clearance works undertaken, a more comprehensive investigation can be carried
out to understand the exact levels of onsite contamination. Once this is accurately
understood a full remediation strategy will need to be undertaken which will include
the treatment of existing soils and importation a suitable capping layer. A condition
would require the submission of a final validation report on completion of the works to
ensure that the ground conditions are suitable to residential use.

NOISE

The majority of noise is transport based. The M67 Motorway to north of the site is
the main receptor. Other main noise sources would be from the employment uses
located to the north east of the site.

The application has been assessed in line with recognised guidelines, the noise

report proposes mitigation measures. The mitigation measures consists of acoustic
fence to boundary and specific glazing specifications to different elevations in

Page 82



18.0

18.1

19.0

19.1

19.2

19.3

19.4

19.5

20.0

20.1

addition to passive ventilation. The EHO is satisfied with this approach and
recommends a condition that secures the identified mitigation.

HERITAGE

There are no recorded as assets within the vicinity of the site which could be in
anyway affected by the proposals. The application has been submitted with a desk-
based archaeological assessment (DBA) which ahs been reviewed and accepted by
GMAAS. It is recommended by GMAAS that condition be attached to any planning
consent requiring that a phased programme of archaeological investigation be
undertaken prior to the commencement of any demolition, soft-strip or development
groundworks to ensure that industrial heritage is properly recorded. Upon evaluation
of the findings it may be desirable to request that information board is erected at the
site detailing the sites historical use.

CONCLUSION

The application concerns the development of a longstanding brownfield site within a
highly accessible location. The redevelopment of such sites adheres to the spatial
strategy of the Development Plan, NPPF and the emerging GMSF. Previous
applications have established the acceptability of the proposals and it remains that
redevelopment for residential purposes would be wholly compatible with the sites
land use allocation, it would also be readily compatible with the residential nature of
adjoining uses and would add to and contribute to much needed, good quality
housing in a period of under supply.

In recognition of the sites constraints the overall viability of the development is
challenging. The benefits associated with the development and remediation of a
longstanding brownfield site, supply of open market housing in a period of
undersupply, financial contribution towards off site infrastructure outweigh the
omission of affordable housing.

The design has evolved in a response that is positive to creating a welcoming
residential environment. The high quality design would make a positive contribution
to the local housing stock, in accordance with core principles of the NPPF and
compliance of the Unitary Development Plan.

There are no objections to the proposals from the statutory consultees in relation to
flood risk/drainage, landscaping, ecology, contaminated land or any of the other
material considerations.

Taking into account the relevant development plan policies and other material
considerations, subject to the identified mitigation measures, it is not considered that
there are any significant and demonstrable adverse impacts that would outweigh the
benefits associated with the granting of planning permission. The proposals
represent a highly efficient re-use of a brownfield site that would meet sustainability
requirements, and contribute positively to the Boroughs housing supply.

RECOMMENDATION

That Members resolve that they would be MINDED TO GRANT planning permission
for the development subject to the following:

Page 83



(i) To complete a suitable legal agreement under S106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (as amended) to secure off Highways Improvements,
Open Space and Education Contribution to the satisfaction of the Borough
Solicitor;

(i) To have discretion to refuse the application appropriately in the
circumstances where a S106 agreement has not been completed within six
months of the resolution to grant planning permission; and,

(iii) That upon satisfactory completion of the above legal agreement that planning
permission be GRANTED subiject to the following conditions:

The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years
beginning with the date of this permission.

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans/details:

T758 P001 - Location Plan

T758 P002 - Existing Site Plan

T758 P003B - Proposed Site Plan
T758_P007D - Block B Proposed Floor Plans
T758 P008C - Block B Proposed Floor Plans
T758 P009C - Block B Proposed Elevations
T758 P010B - Block C Proposed Floor Plans
T758_P011A - Block C Proposed Floor Plans
T758 P012A - Block C Proposed Elevations
T758 P013B - Block D Proposed Floor Plans
T758_P014A - Block D Proposed Floor Plans
T758 P015A - Block D Proposed Elevations
T758 P0O16A - Block E Proposed Floor Plans
T758_PO17A - Block E Proposed Floor Plans
T758_PO018A - Block E Proposed Elevations
T758 P0O19A - Block F Proposed Floor Plans
T758 P020A - Block F Proposed Floor Plans
T758_PO021A - Block F Proposed Elevations
T758 P022A - Block G Proposed Floor Plans
T758 P023A - Block G Proposed Floor Plans
T758_P024A - Block G Proposed Elevations
T758 P025B - Block H Proposed Floor Plans
T758 P026B - Block H Proposed Floor Plans
T758_PO027A - Block H Proposed Elevations
T758 P028A - Block J Proposed Floor Plans
T758 P029A - Block J Proposed Floor Plans
T758 PO030A - Block J Proposed Elevations
T758_PO031A - Block K Proposed Floor Plans
T758 P032A - Block K Proposed Floor Plans
T758 P033A - Block K Proposed Elevations
T758_P034A - Block L Proposed Floor Plans
T758_PO035A - Block L Proposed Floor Plans
T758 P0O36A - Block L Proposed Elevations
T758 P0O37A - Block M Proposed Floor Plans
T758 P038A - Block M Proposed Floor Plans

Page 84



T758_PO039A - Block M Proposed Elevations

T758 P042A — Proposed Street Scenes and Site Sections

Site sections drawing no.1 June 2019

Site Section 1-1 drawing no. 02 Rev A June 2019

Site Section 2-2 drawing no. 03 Rev A June 2019

BETOATLAS RETAINING WALL DETAILS drawing no.04

Plan on Public Open Space and Sections drawing no. 05 Rev A July 2019

No development, other than site clearance (including the demolition of existing
buildings) and set up, shall commence on site until a remediation strategy, detailing
the works and measures required to address all unacceptable risks posed by
contamination to human health, buildings and the environment (including
groundwater / controlled waters ) has been submitted to, and approved in writing by,
the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The remedial scheme shall be implemented and
verified as approved and shall include all of the following components unless the LPA
dispense with any such requirement specifically in writing:

1. Supplementary site investigation (including further ground gas monitoring)
and detailed risk assessments undertaken in line with the recommendations
detailed in Delta Simon Environmental Consultants Limited Geo-
Environmental Assessment report dated March 2019 (Ref: 18-1910.1) and
requirements set out in the Councils Environmental Protection Units letter
dated 3rd July 2019 (Ref: 1800818FUL/JG/030719). The proposed scope of
investigation shall be submitted to, and agreed in writing by, the LPA prior to
the works being undertaken.

2. The findings of the supplementary investigation and detailed risk
assessments referred to in point (1) including all relevant soil / water analysis
and ground gas / groundwater monitoring data.

3. Based on all site investigations and detailed risk assessments, an options
appraisal and remediation strategy setting out full details of all remedial works
and measures required to address all unacceptable risks posed by
contamination and ground gas and how they are to be implemented.

4. A verification plan detailing the information that will be obtained in order to
demonstrate the remedial works and measures set out in the remediation
strategy in (3) have been fully implemented including any requirements for
long term monitoring and maintenance.

Prior to occupation, a verification / completion report demonstrating all remedial works
and measures required to address all unacceptable risks posed by contamination
and ground gas have been fully implemented in accordance with the approved
remediation strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority (LPA).

If during development, contamination not previously identified is encountered, then
no further development (unless otherwise agreed with the LPA), shall be undertaken
until a remediation strategy detailing how this contamination will be appropriately
addressed and the remedial works verified has been submitted to, and approved in
writing by the LPA. The remediation strategy shall be fully implemented and verified
as approved.

The discharge of this planning condition will be given in writing by the LPA on
completion of the development and once all information specified within this condition
and any other requested information has been provided to the satisfaction of the LPA
and occupation of the development shall nhot commence until this time unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA.

Page 85



10.

11.

12.

13.

During demolition/construction no work (including vehicle and plant movements,
deliveries, loading and unloading) shall take place outside the hours of 07:30 and
18:00 Mondays to Fridays and 08:00 to 13:00 Saturdays. No work shall take place
on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

The car parking indicated on the approved plan ref T758 P0O03B - Proposed Site
Plan shall be provided to the full satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority and
thereafter kept unobstructed and available for its intended purpose. Parking areas or
driveways must be at least 3.1 metres wide and 6 metres long where in front of
house doors or 5.5 metres long where in front of a garage. The areas shall be
maintained and kept available for the parking of vehicles at all times.

Prior to commencement of work on site the applicant shall undertake a condition and
dilapidations survey of the highway fronting the site and giving access to the site and
prepare and submit a report to the Engineering Operations Manager. The developer
will be responsible for making good any damage caused to the highway by the
development works or by persons working on or delivering to the development. Any
damage caused to the street during the development period shall be reinstated to the
full satisfaction of the Highway Authority prior to the occupation of any part of the
development.

The development shall not commence until details of a lighting scheme to provide
street lighting (to an adoptable standard), to any shared private driveway or parking
court have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall include details of how the lighting will be funded for both
electricity supply and future maintenance. The approved works shall be completed to
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of any part of
the development.

Vehicular and pedestrian gradients within the site shall not exceed 1:15

No development shall commence until tree protection measures to meet the
requirements of BS5837:2012 have been installed around all of the trees on the site
to be retained (including the trees protected by Tree Preservation Orders within the
site and adjacent to the boundaries of the land.) These measures shall remain in
place throughout the duration of the demolition and construction phases of the
development, in accordance with the approved details.

Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems unless otherwise
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

No infiltration of surface water drainage into the ground where contamination is
suspected is permitted other than with the written consent of the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

Prior to the commencement of any development, a surface water drainage scheme,
based on the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning Practice
Guidance with evidence of an assessment of the site conditions shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The surface water drainage
scheme must be in accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for
Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent replacement
national standards and unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority, no surface water shall discharge to the public sewerage system either

Page 86



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

directly or indirectly. The development shall be completed in accordance with the
approved details.

Prior to commencement of earthworks a reasonable avoidance method statement for
badgers will be supplied to and agreed in writing by the LPA. The method statement
will include:

. a re-survey of the site and within 30m of the site where possible for badger
setts;

. details of temporary closure measures for the existing sett, including timing
and works that cannot occur within 30m of the sett when not closed;

. methodologies for clearance of dense areas of vegetation under the
supervision of an ecological clerk of works;

. identification of derelict structures and areas of rubble with the potential to be

used as setts by the clerk of works and the methodology for clearing such
areas under the supervision of the clerk of works;

. procedures if a badger sett is found in other areas in the absence of the clerk
of works;

. procedures on-site during construction to prevent accidental harm to badgers
that may venture on to the site at night; and,

. a landscape design that accommodates as far as possible movement across

the site for badger on completion.

The agreed method statement shall be adhered to and implemented in full
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA.

Prior to any earthworks a method statement detailing eradication and/or control
and/or avoidance measures for Himalayan Balsam, Japanese Knotweed and
Gunnera should be supplied to and agreed in writing to the Local Planning Authority.
The agreed method statement shall be adhered to and implemented in full
accordance with the approved details.

No development, site clearance, earth moving shall take place or material or
machinery brought on site until a method statement to protect the River Godley
Brook from accidental spillages, dust and debris has been supplied to and agreed by
the Local Planning Authority. All measure will be implemented and maintained for
the duration of the construction period in accordance with the approved details.

No development shall take place until it can be demonstrated that there will be no
negative impacts on the ecological status/potential of the Godley Brook resulting from
the disposal of foul water and surface water disposal post-development submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details, as approved,
shall be implemented in full in accordance with a timetable which has first been
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

No works to trees or shrubs shall occur between the 1st March and 31st August in
any year unless a detailed bird nest survey by a suitably experienced ecologist has
been carried out immediately prior to clearance and written confirmation provided
that no active bird nests are present which has been agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

None of the dwellings hereby approved shall be occupied until details of the means
of storage and collection of refuse generated by the completed development have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
details shall include scaled plans showing the location of the required number of bins

Page 87



20.

21.

22.

to be stored within each plot and any communal bin storage areas and scaled plans
of the means of enclosure of all bin stores, including materials and finish. The bin
storage arrangements for each dwelling shall be implemented in accordance with the
approved details prior to the occupation of that dwelling and shall be retained as such
thereafter.

No development shall commence until full design details of the uprated glazing
mitigation measures recommended in Hann Tucker Associates Noise Impact
Assessment report, reference 25662/NIA1, dated 19th October 2018, have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The design
details shall include:

- the specific glazing configurations to be used in the windows, including roof lights /
windows, including sound reduction specifications, identified as requiring mitigation
measures;

- the specifications of the mechanical ventilation, including acoustic performance, to
be installed in Block A of the development; and,

- the specifications of all other window ventilation mitigation measures identified in
the report including sound reduction specifications.

The noise mitigation measures shall be implemented in accordance with the
approved details, prior to the first occupation of any of the dwellings and shall be
retained as such thereafter. Written proof shall be provided to the Local Planning
Authority that all mitigation measures have been installed in accordance with the
agreed details.

No development shall commence until the following details have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:

- scaled plans showing the exact location and elevations of the acoustic screening to
be installed along the northern boundary of the site, as identified in Section 8 of Hann
Tucker Associates Noise Impact Assessment report, reference 25662/NIA1, dated
19th October 2018, and a manufacturers specification of the acoustic screening; and

The noise mitigation measures shall be implemented in accordance with the approve
details, prior to the first occupation of any of the dwellings and shall be retained as
such thereafter. Written proof shall be provided to the Local Planning Authority that
the acoustic screening measures have been installed in accordance with the agreed
details.

No development groundworks, soft-strip or demolition shall take place until the
applicant or their agents or successors in title have secured the implementation of a
programme of archaeological works. The works are to be undertaken in accordance
with a Written Scheme of Investigation (WSI) submitted to and approved in writing by
Manchester Planning Authority. The WSI shall cover the following:

1. A phased programme and methodology of fieldwork investigation and recording to
include:

- a level 1 (Historic England) building survey;

- targeted evaluation trenching; and,

- targeted open area excavation.

2. A programme for post fieldwork investigation assessment to include:

- analysis of the site investigation records and finds; and,

- production of a final report on the significance of the archaeological and historical
interest represented.

Page 88



23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

3. Dissemination of the results commensurate with their significance. This might
include a popular publication in the Greater Manchester Past Revealed series, and
an academic article dependent on the significance of the results.

4. Provision for archive deposition of the report and records of the site investigation.

5. Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to undertake the works
set out within the approved WSI.

6. Details of an information board on site of the site historical use.

Piling / investigation boreholes / tunnel shafts / ground source heating and cooling
systems using penetrative methods shall not be carried out other than with the
written consent of the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out
in accordance with the approved details.

With exception of site preparation, clearance and demolition works no development
shall take place until a landscape and ecological management plan, including long-
term design objectives, management responsibilities and maintenance schedules for
all landscaped areas (except privately owned domestic gardens), has been submitted
to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The landscape and
ecological management plan shall be carried out as approved and any subsequent
variations shall be agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

The scheme shall include the following elements:

¢ details of maintenance regimes;
details of any new habitat created on-site and confirmation that a net gain has
be achieved across the site;

o details of treatment of buffers around water bodies; and,

e details of management responsibilities.

The development hereby permitted must not be commenced until such time as
details of the existing and proposed ground levels and compensatory flood storage
tanks with associated pipe work adjoining Godley brook has been submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The scheme shall be fully
implemented and subsequently maintained, in accordance with the scheme’s
timing/phasing arrangements, or within any other period as may subsequently be
agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority, full details of both hard and soft landscaping
works, including details of the species, positions and planted heights of proposed
trees and shrubs; together with details of the position and condition of any existing
trees and hedgerows to be retained. The approved hard landscaping details shall
include all surface treatments and shall be implemented prior to the occupation of the
dwellings.

All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall
be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of
the buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner; and any
trees or plants which die within a period of 5 years from the completion of the

Page 89



28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

development, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be
replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order
with or without modification), no enlargement, improvement or other alteration of the
dwellings which would otherwise be permitted by Part 1 of Schedule 2 to that Order
shall be carried out without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority,
and no garages or other outbuildings shall be erected.

Notwithstanding any description of materials in the application, no above ground
construction works shall take place until samples and/or full specification of materials
to be used: externally on the buildings; in the construction of all boundary walls,
fences and railings; and, in the finishes to all external hard-surfaces have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. Such details
shall include the type, colour and texture of the materials. Development shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details.

No development shall commence until such time as a Construction Environment
Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. This shall include details of:

Wheel wash facilities for construction vehicles;

Arrangements for temporary construction access;

Contractor and construction worker car parking;

Turning facilities during the remediation and construction phases; and,
Details of on-site storage facilities.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Construction
Environmental Management Plan.

The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out in full
accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) from RSK (ref: 881509-
R1 (-)-FRA Rev 00 18 September 2018) and addendum report RSK (ref: 881509
LO1-CW) dated 14th May 2019.

The development hereby approved should be constructed in accordance with

the recommendations contained within section 3.3 of the submitted Crime Impact
Statement dated (11/10/2018 - URN: 2014/0147/C1S/01 Version A) confirmation that
initiatives have been undertaken shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority, the approved works shall be carried out prior to the first
residential occupation of the development or in accordance with a phasing plan to be
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

A landscape management plan, including long term design objectives, management
responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscape areas, shall be
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of
the development or any part thereof, whichever is the sooner, for its permitted use.
The landscape management plan shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved plan.

Prior to the commencement of any development, a surface water drainage scheme,

based on the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning Practice
Guidance with evidence of an assessment of the site conditions shall be submitted to

Page 90



35.

36.

37.

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The surface water drainage
scheme must be in accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for
Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent replacement
national standards and unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority, no surface water shall discharge to the public sewerage system either
directly or indirectly. The development shall be completed in accordance with the
approved details.

The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until such time as a
scheme to provide a two stage debris screen and safe access provision to the
downstream culvert has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local
planning authority. The scheme shall be fully implemented and subsequently
maintained, in accordance with the timing / phasing arrangements embodied within
the scheme, or within any other period as may subsequently be agreed, in writing, by
the Local Planning Authority.

No work shall take place in respect to the construction of the approved highway, as
indicated on drawing T758_P003B - Proposed Site Plan, until a scheme relevant to
highway construction has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall include full details of:

1. Phasing plan of highway works;

2. Surface and drainage details of all carriageways and footways;

3 Approval in Principle AIP of the construction details of the new bridge
crossing and all retaining structures alongside Godley Brook and Detail of any
protective barriers alongside Godley Brook;

4. Amendments to the kerb line and construction of new carriageway and
footways onto Brook Street;

5. Details of planting specification for all trees within the highway; and,

6. Details of carriageway markings and signage.

No part of the approved development shall be occupied until the approved highways
works have been constructed in accordance with the approved details or phasing
plan.

The area of public open space and works to Godley Brook Embankment shall be laid

as detailed on drawing 05rev A (Plan on Public Open Space Sections) prior to
occupation of the development.

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



Application Number: 18/00818/FUL Land off Brook Street, Hyde.

Photo 1: View down Brook Street

Photo 2: View looking west along Godley Brook




Photo 3 View Looking East along Godley Brook

Photo 4: Existing building on the southern boundary Mottram Road
properties in the Background.

DD Q. A

Fage o4



Photo 5: Headwall of Godley Brook before entering Culvert

Photo 6: View looking east within the site




Photo 7 Google View of site entrance

Page 96



&

caravanswanted.com

==l

=
‘..- WiSteeles/Ave

AUCYéung Fish & Chips
e:Sportsman Inn(&4s)
ranteiEl'Cuballibre@®

O

1sjuoisog




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



Note:

{& V This drawing should not be scaled unless for
planning application purposes. Work to

figured dimensions only.

All dimensions and levels to be checked on
site.

Land registry title and ownership boundaries

3
5
@)
¢
\{3 (D/\ are produced by Studio KMA using all
O& ’/Q reasonable endeavours. We cannot be held
@ ((\ responsible for scale discrepancy of plans
N~ (V/\\ supplied to us.
i > N
~Q - ny discrepancies should be reported to

Studio KMA at the address below.

This drawing should not be reproduced
without written permission from Studio KMA.

Drawing Amendment:

rev date drawn checked
B 10/07/19 RH RH

General Amendment
ﬁ J A 10/09/18 RH AT
General Amendment

24/08/18 RH AT
Initial Issue
f / ‘ N
0 5 10 15 20 25m
| ] ] ] | ]
[ | 1 | 1 ]
‘ Scale 1:500 @ Al

. o I ©B00 /f)
1 6/, (,

Ty o=~ 57 CD S
a @@,73/75'08 |O1@) N \_/\_/v
Paca © S N
e @)
; ] | | L1 |
g T N B i i | | | | | ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
+105.00 > = | PROR | | | | | } } | | 1
(@) : LR Bldck B ' BlockC ! IBlock D! T T ' Block E! } | }
D . NG N N (3 Storey) % i (2/3 S“corey) i % (2‘/3 Store:ry) (2/3 Storey) % ! Z/B:_;%Ctk F |
= LI N / | } } } } } i i i ( ; orey) i % +104.20
o +105.10 ~2 ~0 ) , | ! 1 ! 1 ! ! ! | i i i
NN ¢ S V/ S ; - ; } I i 1 i Turning
Pupy; o= VA ‘ Head
~ ~ ‘ ‘ | |
Pace % | \ A
Go Q +104.50
O'/ey 5 AW +104.25 PRENENE +104.50 +104.25
’OOk 7777777777 Godley Brook -~ __ /~ N — A N——
T i v
A
X
& Godley Brook 0400 Godley Brook —«
\ V \/ NN N\ L2y AN AN A :
o }
o

b

w line of existing brook Vv

+104.00 shown dotted +104.00 +104.50 +104.60 L]

? V -
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ I |

- e () \ O ® QP QO &?

\ \ ‘ \ |
| | | | | |
! \ ! ! \ |
] ] ; [ : ] | } | | 1 | [ : | 1 ] I 1 1 I 1 ] Turning N (

} | || ! i } | | i | i | | } i } | | Head

1Block M| ! ! | ' BlotkK | | | 1 — >
| Blotk L | f ! f | Block J | Block H

2 (s storey) | Gstoren) | | (3storey) |  Gstrey (3 Storey) ]
1 AT T T T T THT T T T L e .

[\

L) . L 1
oS Y T :
(@) . ), S~ N
% : 5 a ab, ==lalla==lad alC s aSas o= -
d;\ N - l
’%%)\ - ENE N > [ —
e

Project Title
Hyde
99 103

- 89 — Brook Street

Proposed Site Plan
ol /Block Plan

A\
|

\,\a\\

1 A2 Project No. Drawing No.
| T758 P003
/ Date Scale
° 24/08/2018 1:500 @ A1
5] Stage Revision
9 Stage 3 B
Drawn By Auth By
RH AT
Studio KMA Limite
The Design Stud:i
Valley Mills Millgat
Delph Oldham OL3 5D
www.studiokma.co.u

STUDIO
3




This page is intentionally left blank



€0T abed

Proposed Front Elevation

= [

Proposed Rear Elevation

o ? l
|
|
ﬂ
2
L
|

Proposed Side Elevation

im

i
iZ‘
gty
—
=
=

Proposed Side Elevation

[T [T

Ul

£
A

Materials:

Roof:

Authority approval).

- Fibre cement tile, red/brown (Marley Modern
or similar to Local Authority approval).
- Fibreglass GRP to Flat Roof (or similar to Local

Windows:
- Double glazed uPVC windows, grey (or
similar to Local Authority approval).

[ 1] [

Block D Block E lock
(3 Sforey) (2/3 storey) (3/3 storel) (4/3 Storey) (2/’3 Emfev)

Block G
(2/3 $torey)

Doors:
- Double glazed uPVC doors, grey (or similar to
Local Authority approval).

Walls: - Garage doors , powder coated to match cladding YN N [S% 7Y
- Render, antique white (Aliva system or similar to colour (or similar to Local Authority approval). -1 NG s Godley Brook
Local Authority approval). S—— 1 AN~ "lg | [ =N _ —
- Facing Brickwork, red/orange ( by Terca, or $4 - La—)q ’AATA'L’\"LTT e oo ‘ " { ﬁ — O~
similar to Local Authority approval). Fencing: % L o } % I (ED ‘ : —~ : ‘ L
-Composite Cladding, timber effect ( by Dura, or - Timber closed-board perimeter fencing (1.8m ~ T O T HORNG
similar to Local Authority approval). height). ~_ . ‘ N R
~ N - } 3 Stores (3‘3'5‘: l:eLv) (: l; ‘:QKV)
YN IH THE T T
.

XW/ AR LA | A )m

aea®
¥
R

D

Note:

This drawing should not be scaled unless for
planning application purposes. Work to
figured dimensions only.

All dimensions and levels to be checked on
site.

Land registry title and ownership boundaries
are produced by Studio KMA using all
reasonable endeavours. We cannot be held
responsible for scale discrepancy of plans
supplied to us.

Any discrepancies should be reported to
Studio KMA at the address below.

This drawing should not be reproduced
without written permission from Studio KMA.

Drawing Amendment:

rev date drawn checked

A 10/07/19 RH RH
General Amendment

- 24/08/18 RH AT
Initial Issue

0 1 2 3 4 5m

e e B— e R—

Scale 1:100 @ Al

Project Title

Hyde

Brook Street
Proposed Elevations
(Block H)

Project No. Drawing No.

T758 P027

Date Scale
24/08/2018 1:100 @ A1
Stage Revision

Stage 3 A

Drawn By Auth By

RH AT
Studio KMA Limited
The Design Studio
Valley Mills Millgate
Delph Oldham OL3 5DG
www.studiokma.co.uk
o

o

= 3

|_

w




This page is intentionally left blank



GOT abed

Proposed Front Elevation

1]

i

-
Frighal "\

Proposed Rear Elevation

B
2

4
\6.&
pid

ke
1)

Materials:

Roof:
- Fibre cement tile, blue/black (Marley Modern
or similar to Local Authority approval).

Walls:

Authority approval).
- Facing Brickwork, buff/brown ( by Terca, or
similar to Local Authority approval).

Local Authority approval).
Windows:

- Double glazed uPVC windows, black (or
similar to Local Authority approval).

- Render, white (Aliva system or similar to Local

-Composite Cladding, black ( by Dura, or similar to

Doors:
- Double glazed uPVC doors, black (or similar to
Local Authority approval).
- Garage doors , powder coated to match cladding
colour (or similar to Local Authority approval).

Fencing:
- Timber closed-board perimeter fencing (1.8m
height).

Proposed Side Elevation

Proposed Side Elevation

—

Note:

This drawing should not be scaled unless for
planning application purposes. Work to
figured dimensions only.

All dimensions and levels to be checked on
site.

Land registry title and ownership boundaries
are produced by Studio KMA using all
reasonable endeavours. We cannot be held
responsible for scale discrepancy of plans
supplied to us.

Any discrepancies should be reported to
Studio KMA at the address below.

This drawing should not be reproduced
without written permission from Studio KMA.

Drawing Amendment:

rev date drawn checked
A 10/07/19 RH RH
Initial Issue
- 24/08/18 RH AT
Initial Issue

0 1 2 3 4 5m

e e B— e R—

Scale 1:100 @ Al

Project Title

Hyde
Brook Street

Proposed Elevations
(Block E)

BIdkk B
(3 Storey)

ck F
torey)

A
: / g
e
v

s-“’f‘LES

2L

/1

.

D

Project No. Drawing No.

T758 P018

Date Scale
24/08/2018 1:100 @ A1
Stage Revision

Stage 3 A

Drawn By Auth By

RH AT
Studio KMA Limited
The Design Studio
Valley Mills Millgate
Delph Oldham OL3 5DG
www.studiokma.co.uk
o

o

S 3

|_

w




This page is intentionally left blank



[T,

PN

L0T

[ |
(—

[
[
[ [

RN Al i R

[ [

[ (—

il

=\

I

BT

m
I

Key Plan (NTS)

Public Oper
/[Green
~
~

NA

n Space
space

LAV

N

W[

—T T T T T 1 Tul

Note:

This drawing should not be scaled unless for
planning application purposes. Work to
figured dimensions only.

All dimensions and levels to be checked on
site.

Land registry title and ownership boundaries
are produced by Studio KMA using all
reasonable endeavours. We cannot be held
responsible for scale discrepancy of plans
supplied to us.

Any discrepancies should be reported to
Studio KMA at the address below.

This drawing should not be reproduced
without written permission from Studio KMA.

Drawing Amendment:

rev date drawn checked

A 10/07/19 RH RH
General Amendment

24/08/18 RH AT
Initial Issue

0 2 4 6 8 10m

e e E— e R—

Scale 1:200 @ Al

Project Title

Hyde
Brook Street

Drawing Title

Proposed Street Scenes
|/ Site Sections

Project No. Drawing No.

T758 P042

Date Scale
24/08/2018 1:200 @ A1
Stage Revision

Stage 3 A

Drawn By Auth By

RH AT
Studio KMA Limited
The Design Studio
Valley Mills Millgate
Delph Oldham OL3 5DG
www.studiokma.co.uk

STUDIO
3




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5d

Application Number 19/00245/REM

Proposal Reserved matters approval sought for the mean of access,
appearance, layout, scale and landscaping of a development of 37
dwellings approved under outline planning application 16/00948/OUT.

Site Land to the west of Milverton Avenue, Hattersley
Applicant BDW Trading Ltd (Barratt Manchester)
Recommendation Grant planning permission subject to conditions

Reason for report A Speakers Panel decision is required because the application
constitutes major development.

1.0 APPLICATION DESCRIPTION

1.1 The application seeks reserved matters approval for a scheme for 37 no. dwellings.
The outline planning permission was not specific in terms of the number of units and
no condition was imposed setting a limit.

1.2 The applicant has provided the following documents in support of the planning
application:

- Crime Impact Statement;

- Design and Access Statement;

- Ground investigation report

- Surface and foul water drainage strategy
- Planning Statement;

- Flood Risk Assessment

- Statement of Community Involvement

- Hard and Soft Landscaping scheme and,
- Phase | Ecological Assessment

1.3 As this is a reserved matters application, the matter of developer contributions is not
being revisited as this relates to the principle of development, which was established
under the outline planning permission. In this case, the outline permission was not
subject to a Section 106 Agreement as this parcel of land represents one part of a
wider phase of the original masterplan for the regeneration of Hattersley, for which
outline planning permissions originally granted in 2006. Contributions to green space
across the masterplan area have since been secured through separate agreements
with the Council.

2.0 SITE & SURROUNDINGS

2.1 The application site is a parcel of land to the west of Milverton Avenue in Hattersley.
Terraced rows of properties front onto the northern and southern sides of Milverton
Avenue. The semi-detached properties at 12 and 14 Milverton Avenue stand
separate from the remainder of the street, with the land to the east of that pair of
units forming part of the application site. The land to the north, south and west of the
site is undeveloped and includes relatively dense areas of tree coverage. The land
levels on the site in the eastern portion of the site are relatively flat but begin to fall

Page 109



3.0

3.1

4.0
4.1
4.2

4.3

4.2

4.3

4.4

away in the western portion and then drop steeply beyond the western boundary of
the site down to the railway line.

PLANNING HISTORY

16/00948/OUT - Outline application (All matters reserved) for the residential
development of 1.07 hectares of land — approved

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

Tameside Unitary Development Plan (UDP) Allocation
Not allocated, within the settlement of Hattersley

Part 1 Policies

1.3: Creating a Cleaner and Greener Environment.

1.4: Providing More Choice and Quality Homes.

1.5: Following the Principles of Sustainable Development

1.6 Securing Urban Regeneration

1.12: Ensuring an Accessible, Safe and Healthy Environment

Part 2 Policies

H2: Unallocated sites

H4: Type, size and affordability of dwellings

H5: Open Space Provision

H7: Mixed Use and Density (Density being relevant to this proposal)
H10: Detailed Design of Housing Developments
OL10: Landscape Quality and Character

T1: Highway Improvement and Traffic Management.
T10: Parking

T11: Travel Plans.

C1: Townscape and Urban Form

N7: Protected Species

MW11: Contaminated Land.

U3: Water Services for Developments

U4 Flood Prevention

U5 Energy Efficiency

Other Policies

Greater Manchester Spatial Framework - Publication Draft October 2018;

The Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) has consulted on the
draft Greater Manchester Spatial Framework Draft 2019 (“GMSF”) which shows

possible land use allocations and decision making polices across the region up to
2038. The document is a material consideration but the weight afforded to it is

Page 110



4.5

4.6

4.7

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

limited by the fact it is at an early stage in its preparation which is subject to
unresolved objections

Residential Design Supplementary Planning Document; and,

Trees and Landscaping on Development Sites SPD adopted in March 2007.
Hattersley and Mottram SPG (dated April 2004) (Policy H1 (14) is the broad policy
applying to the land of which this site is one parcel)

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Section 2: Achieving sustainable development

Section 5: Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Section 8 Promoting healthy and safe communities

Section 11: Making efficient use of land

Section 12: Achieving well designed places

Section 15: Conserving and enhancing the Natural Environment

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

This is intended to complement the NPPF and to provide a single resource for
planning guidance, whilst rationalising and streamlining the material. Almost all
previous planning Circulars and advice notes have been cancelled. Specific
reference will be made to the PPG or other national advice in the Analysis section of
the report, where appropriate.

PUBLICITY CARRIED OUT

Neighbour notification letters were issued in accordance with the requirements of the
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order
2015 and the Council's adopted Statement of Community Involvement.

RESPONSES FROM CONSULTEES

Local Highway Authority — concerns raised initially regarding the vehicular access
arrangements to serve the development. Milverton Avenue is a narrow highway and
if vehicles are parked either side (a likely scenario given the lack of on-site parking
for the existing properties), there would not be sufficient width for moving vehicles to
pass each other. Following the submission of a Unilateral Undertaking securing the
offer of a driveway to be provided within the front curtilage of the 10 properties on the
main section of Milverton Avenue (which has been signed by Onward Homes, who
own 6 of these dwellings), the initial objection has been withdrawn.

United Utilities — No objections to the proposals. Relevant conditions were attached
to the outline planning permission.

Greater Manchester Ecological Unit - No objections to the proposals, subject to
conditions requiring a precautionary assessment in relation to badger activity on the
site, restricting the timing of tree/vegetation removal and the provision of biodiversity
enhancement measures within the development.

Page 111



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

Borough Contaminated Land Officer - No objections to the proposals. Relevant
conditions were attached to the outline planning permission.

Borough Environmental Health Officer - No objections to the proposals subject to
conditions. Relevant conditions were also attached to the outline planning
permission.

Borough Tree Officer — No objections to the proposals. The proposed landscaping
scheme is considered to be appropriate.

Lead Local Flood Risk Authority — No objections to the proposals. Relevant
conditions were attached to the outline planning permission.

Environment Agency - No objections to the proposals. Conditions relating to the
means of draining surface water from the development (including a sustainable
drainage system) were attached to the outline planning permission.

Greater Manchester Police (Design Out Crime Officer) — no objections to the
proposals as no communal parking areas or rear alleyways are proposed.

Coal Authority — No objections to the proposals as the site is considered to be in a
low risk area. Standing advice to the applicant can be attached to the decision notice,
informing the applicant of their responsibilities in relation to coal mining legacy during
the construction process.

SUMMARY OF THIRD PARTY RESPONSES RECEIVED

One representation has been received from a resident but this relates to issues
associated with the construction work currently being undertaken by the applicant on
sites adjacent to Weavers Place. Complaints regarding noise and the hours of
construction on those plots can be investigated but are matters that are separate to
the assessment of this planning application, which is located approximately 0.5 miles
away, to the west of Hattersley Road West

ANAYLSIS
The issues to be assessed in the determination of this planning application are:

1) The principle of development;

2) The impact of the design and scale of the development on the character of the
site and the surrounding area;

3) The impact upon the residential amenity of neighbouring properties;

4) The impact on highway safety;

5) The impact on flood risk/drainage;

6) The appropriateness of the proposed landscaping scheme; and,

7) Other matters

PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT

The principle of residential development on the site was established at the outline
stage, at which point a number of dwellings was not established either in the
description of development or by condition. Policy H1(14) of the Hattersley and
Mottram SPG and H7 of the UDP indicate that a density between 30 and 50
dwellings per hectare should be achieved to make efficient use of land. This reserved

Page 112



10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

11.0

matters scheme would equate to approximately 35 dwellings per hectare and would
therefore fall within the required range. The density of development is therefore
considered to be appropriate, subject to all other material considerations being
satisfied.

CHARACTER

The main access road into the development would connect to the western end of
Milverton Avenue. The existing pair of semi-detached dwellings encircled by the
application site boundary and 3 of the plots within the proposed development would
provide active frontage to this access road, providing a sense of activity on entry into
the development.

A terrace of 4 properties would front onto Hattersley Road West in the south eastern
corner of the site. This would provide an active frontage to the arterial route through
this part of Hattersley and this element would therefore contribute positively to the
regeneration of the wider area.

The dwellings on the western edge of the development would front onto the western
boundary of the site, providing an outward facing development across the open but
undevelopable land which drops steeply down towards the railway line which lies
further west of the site. Provision of an active frontage to this land is considered to be
an important benefit of the scheme in place-making terms, ensuring that the land
beyond does not become isolated or enclosed, circumstances in which the risk of
crime may become a concern.

The proposed internal access road in the northern portion of the development would
be actively surveyed by properties on both sides, as would the internal access road
in the southern portion, connecting from the main access road into the development.
The orientation of the properties would ensure appropriate definition is given each of
the routes through the site, resulting in a permeable layout to the development.

In relation to the proposed house types, the dwellings would be predominantly 2
storey, with taller units including former windows in the front roof plane to be sited in
the northern part of the development. The scheme proposes an appropriate mix of
semi-detached and short terraces of units which would respond to the layout of the
other recent developments across the Hattersley area.

Following the above assessment, it is considered that the proposals would not result
in an adverse impact on the character of the area, subject to conditions requiring
compliance with the materials, boundary treatments and hard and soft landscaping
details submitted with the application.

RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

There would be windows at ground and first floor level in the southern elevation of
plot 9, which faces the rear elevations of the semi-detached properties at 12-14
Milverton Avenue. Both windows would serve bathrooms and could therefore
reasonably be obscurely glazed to prevent unreasonable overlooking into the rear of
those neighbouring properties. Such a requirement can be secured by condition. The

Page 113



separation distance to be retained between the corresponding elevations would be
sufficient to avoid any unreasonable overshadowing of those neighbouring
properties.

The same house type (Kenley) is also proposed in the south eastern corner of the
site, with two terraces of 4 units aligned north-south to be located to the rear of the
existing properties which front the southern side of Milverton Avenue. Given that the
windows in the northern gable of the two terraces could be obscurely glazed without
harming the amenity of the future occupiers, it is considered that no unreasonable
overlooking would result into those neighbouring properties due to the separation
distance to be retained. This separation distance is also considered to be sufficient to
avoid any unreasonable overshadowing of those existing properties.

The terrace of units proposed on plots 7-9 of the development would face across the
eastern boundary of the site towards the existing dwellings which back on to
dwellings on the northern side of Milverton Avenue. There are windows at ground
and first floor level in the western gable of the end terrace of that row of units.

However, the intervening distance between the corresponding elevations would
include the location of one of the internal access roads within the development and
the 3 bay wide car parking area proposed adjacent to the eastern boundary of the
site for use by residents of the existing residents on Milverton Avenue. Given this
situation, it is considered that the separation distances to be retained between the
corresponding elevations would be sufficient to avoid any harmful overlooking into or
overshadowing of that neighbouring property. This conclusion is reached as the
distance exceeds the 14 metres distance required by the Residential Design Guide
where habitable room windows face each other across an intervening highway.

The eastern side elevation of plot 1 within the development would face the
corresponding gable elevation of the end terraced property located beyond the north
eastern corner of the application site. The ground floor window in the proposed
dwelling would be a secondary window to a habitable room, the first floor window
would serve a bathroom. Both of these windows could therefore be obscurely glazed
to prevent overlooking into the neighbouring property without harming the amenity of
the future occupiers of the development. The existing neighbouring property is set
back behind the front building line of the proposed dwelling at plot 1, ensuring that
unreasonable overshadowing of that neighbouring property would be avoided.

Adequate separation distances between plots within the development would be
achieved to ensure that the residential amenity of future occupants would be
preserved.

Following the above assessment, it is considered that the proposed scheme would
preserve the residential amenity of neighbouring properties and the future occupants
of the development.

Page 114



12.0

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

HIGHWAY SAFETY

The scheme would be accessed via an extension to the western end of Milverton
Avenue. The Local Highway Authority initially raised concerns regarding the
intensification of the use of Milverton Avenue, highlighting the fact that the street is a
narrow highway. If vehicles are parked either side (a likely scenario given the lack of
on-site parking for the existing properties), there would not be sufficient width from
moving vehicles to pass each other.

In recognition of this concern, officers held discussions with the applicant and as a
result, the applicant has submitted a Unilateral Undertaking (UU) to make the offer to
each of the occupants of the 10 existing properties on the main section of Milverton
Avenue that a private driveway would be constructed within the front part of their
curtilage, at the expense of the applicant. Of these 10 dwellings, 6 properties are
within the ownership of Onward Homes (Registered Social Landlord) who are also a
signatory to the UU. The provision of the driveways within those properties is
dependent upon the consent of the tenant and so the UU does not guarantee that
these driveways will be provided.

The UU does however require the offer of the installation of a driveway within each of
the 6 properties to be made, as well as the 4 privately owned properties. This
situation is acceptable to the Local Highway Authority as, if the offer has been made,
this would provide evidence that reasonable mitigation has been pursued by the
applicant at the point where the Local Highway Authority would be seeking to impose
a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) on Milverton Avenue, restricting the ability to park
on sections of that road. This would ensure that vehicles entering and leaving the
development could pass each other in a safe manner. Highways Engineers have
surveyed the site and are satisfied that there is sufficient space to the front of the
existing dwellings to provide adequate driveway space. On the basis of the contents
of the UU, the Local Highway Authority has withdrawn its initial objection to the
proposals.

The proposal also includes provision of 14 vehicle parking spaces adjacent to the
eastern edge of the development, to be used by the occupants of the existing
properties on Milverton Avenue, which currently do not benefit from any on plot-
provision, replacing the hardstanding areas currently used for parking by some
residents, located at the western end of Milverton Avenue.

This is an informal situation at present as the properties do not have allocated
spaces within the areas covered by hardstanding and those residents have no
control over the use of that land as it is not within their ownership. The proposed
development would formalise parking provision for the existing dwellings through the
offer to provide a private drive to each property and provide an option for off street
parking. A condition relating to the management of these spaces to ensure that they
are allocated to the existing residents of Milverton Avenue is attached to the
recommendation, to ensure that these spaces do provide mitigation of the impact of
the development.

Page 115



12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

12.11

12.12

12.13

13.0

13.1

Milverton Avenue is a two lane highway, ensuring that there is sufficient space for
vehicles to pass each other when vehicles are not parked within the highway. The
provision of dedicated spaces beyond the confines of the highway would reduce
demand for on-street parking and the Unilateral Undertaking provided by the
applicant would give the residents of Milverton Avenue the option to have a private
driveway installed within their plot, at the expense of the applicant.

There are powers available to the Local Highway to introduce parking restrictions
within the highway which would be a more realistic proposition with the provision of
the proposed dedicated spaces.

Given the two lane nature of the road, such restrictions would not need to apply to
the full length of both sides of the highway to avoid a highway safety hazard. It is also
the case that the scheme proposes a turning head at the end of the proposed access
road, which, along with the formalisation of parking arrangement for existing
residents, would result in a safer access arrangement for refuse collection wagons,
which currently access Milverton Avenue in reverse.

Within this context, officers consider that the harm arising from the proposed access
arrangements in relation to highway would not be sufficient to warrant refusal of the
application.

A condition requiring full details (including construction materials, levels and details of
drainage infrastructure) of the construction of the new sections of the access road,
parking areas and associated highway can be secured by condition to ensure that
the proposed means of access preserves highway safety. A condition requiring the
submission of an external lighting scheme was imposed at the outline stage and
therefore does not need to be re-imposed.

The scheme makes provision for 2 car parking spaces per dwelling, in addition to the
14 spaces to be provided for the existing residents of Milverton Avenue referred to
previously, meeting the requirements of the Residential Design Guide.

The applicant has agreed to the principle of establishing temporary access
arrangements from Hattersley Road West into the site, during the construction phase
of the development. This would minimise the impact of the works on the highway
safety of Milverton Avenue, as well as the residential amenity of the properties on
that street. Condition 10 of the outline planning permission required the submission
and approval of details associated with the construction phase but a more specific
condition is recommended to ensure that a suitable phasing approach is adopted

On the basis of the above assessment and given the relatively low density of the
scheme, it is considered that the proposals would not result in a severe impact on
highway safety. In accordance with the guidance contained within paragraph 109 of
the NPPF, planning permission should not be refused on highway safety grounds.

FLOOD RISK/DRAINAGE

The site is in Flood Zone 1 and is therefore considered to be at a lower risk of
flooding. United Utilities have raised no objections to the proposals and condition 8 of

Page 116



14.0
14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

15.0

15.1

15.2

the outline planning permission required the submission and approval of a
sustainable system for draining surface water from the site. Condition 9 requires that
surface and foul water are drained form the site via different systems. These
conditions do not need to be re-applied at this reserved matters stage.

LANDSCAPING

The applicant has submitted details of the proposed hard and soft landscaping
scheme. The species mix on this parcel include Maple and Hornbeam trees and the
plans detail the location of shrub and hedge planting and areas to be grassed.
Details are also provided in relation to the number of each type of species to be
planted, their height on planting and protection of the hedge and tree planting to be
installed.

The Tree Officer has no objections to the proposals. The scheme would focus tree
planting on the northern and western edges of the development, effectively
referencing the undeveloped nature of the land beyond those boundaries of the site.
Trees would also be planted adjacent to the internal roads and to break up the mass
of the hardstanding in the proposed parking area to be provided for existing residents
on Milverton Avenue. Subject to a condition requiring the implementation of the
landscaping scheme prior to occupation of the development and stipulating on-going
management requirements, the soft landscaping scheme is considered to be
acceptable.

In relation to hard landscaping, the plans indicate that the private access roads
serving the properties on the western edge of the development would be constructed
from Brindle block paviours, with grey paving located around the external edges of
the dwellings. In terms of boundary treatments, following revisions to the scheme,
those boundaries that would be prominent being treated by either brick/stone walls,
metal railings or hedges. Close boarded fencing would be limited to the rear and less
visible side boundaries of plots. The proposed hardstanding and boundary
treatments are considered to be acceptable.

Following the above assessment, the soft and hard landscaping proposals are
considered to be acceptable.

OTHER MATTERS

A condition requiring an investigation into sources of contamination on the site was
attached to the outline planning permission and therefore does not need to be re-
imposed at the reserved matters stage. The Coal Authority has confirmed that it has
no objections to the proposals as the site is considered to be low risk in relation to
the legacy of coal mining.

In relation to ecology, the Greater Manchester Ecology Unit has raised no objections
to the proposals, subject to the imposition of conditions limiting the timing of
tree/vegetation removal and requiring the inclusion of biodiversity enhancements
within the scheme. A condition requiring a precautionary survey of the site for badger
activity prior to the commencement of development is also recommended and is

Page 117



15.3

15.3

15.6

16.0

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

considered to be reasonable given that badgers have been recorded within the
vicinity of the site.

Whilst the inclusion of soft landscaping would represent a partial enhancement, given
the fact that a large part of the site is currently open grassland, it is considered that
further measures to enhance biodiversity are required and that this condition is
reasonable, applying the principles stated in paragraph 175 of the NPPF. Condition
15 on the outline planning permission imposed limits on the timing of tree/vegetation
removal. This condition does not need to be re-imposed at this reserved matters
stage therefore

In relation to designing out crime, Greater Manchester Police have not raised any
concerns in relation to the layout of this parcel, which does not include any alleyways
providing access to the rear of plots and no communal parking areas are proposed.

In relation to bin storage, there is considered to be sufficient space within each of the
plots to ensure adequate provision for each dwelling. The details of the exact location
and means of enclosure must be submitted and approved in order to comply with
condition 12 of the outline planning permission.

CONCLUSION

The principle of residential development on the site was established at the outline
stage. That the density of development complies with the parameters set out in local
policy (which was not prescribed at the outline stage), the quantum of development
proposed is considered to be acceptable.

The proposed layout would preserve the character of the site and surrounding area
and would positively contribute to the wider regeneration of this part of Hattersley.
The development would preserve the residential amenity of neighbouring residents
and the proposed soft and hard landscaping schemes are considered to be
appropriate.

Following the submission of the UU which includes a commitment by the applicant to
offer the provision of driveways to each of the 6 existing properties owned by Onward
Homes and the 4 privately owned dwellings on Milverton Avenue, the Local Highway
Authority has withdrawn its initial objections to the proposals. The objection has been
withdrawn on the basis that even if this offer is not accepted by the tenants of the
properties, this offer would provide an evidence base for a future TRO to restrict
parking within Milverton Avenue, to ensure safe access and egress into the proposed
development.

Given this situation, the fact that the scheme would provide 2 spaces per plot and
also 14 spaces to compensate for the loss of the existing informal parking area within
the site, it is considered that the proposals would not result in a harmful impact on
highway safety.

There are no objections to the proposals from the statutory consultees in relation to
flood risk/drainage, landscaping, contaminated land or any of the other material
considerations.

Page 118



16.6

The application is therefore considered to accord with the relevant national and local
planning policies listed earlier in this report.

RECOMMENDATION

Grant planning permission, subject the following conditions:

1.

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans received on 2 March 2018:

1:1250 Site location plan (Drawing no. 476-P-LP11-01)

Amended proposed boundary treatments layout plan (Drawing no. 476-P-BLT11-01
Rev. 2)

Amended proposed hard landscaping layout plan (Drawing no. 476-P-HLL11-01 Rev.
1)

Amended proposed materials layout plan (Drawing no. 476-P-ML11-01 Rev. 1)
Amended proposed planning layout plan (Drawing no. 476-P-PL11-01 Rev. 3)
Proposed soft landscaping plan (Drawing no. c-1663-01 Rev. A)

Proposed Ennerdale Classic Detached plans and elevations (Drawing no. 01 Rev. D)
Proposed Kenley Classic (Mid) plans and elevations (Drawing no. 01 Rev. D)
Proposed Kenley Classic (End) plans and elevations (Drawing no. 01 Rev. D)
Proposed Kingsville (Mid) plans and elevations (Drawing no. 01 Rev. E)

Proposed Kingsville (End) plans and elevations (Drawing no. 01 Rev. E)

Proposed Kingsville (Mid - 2nd) plans and elevations (Drawing no. 01 Rev. E)
Proposed Kingsville (End - 2nd) plans and elevations (Drawing no. 01 Rev. E)
Proposed Lutterworth plans and elevations (Drawing no. 01)

Proposed Maidstone Front gable Classic Detached plans and elevations (Drawing
no. 01 Rev. D)

Proposed Maidstone Classic (Hipped End Terrace) plans and elevations (Drawing
no. 01 Rev. D)

Proposed Maidstone Classic (Mid) plans and elevations (Drawing no. 01 Rev. D)
Proposed Maidstone Classic (Terrace End) plans and elevations (Drawing no. 01
Rev. D)

Proposed Maidstone Classic (Terrace End — 2nd) plans and elevations (Drawing no.
01 Rev. D)

Proposed Maidstone Classic (Terrace - Mid) plans and elevations (Drawing no. 01
Rev. D)

Proposed Moresby Classic (End) plans and elevations (Drawing no. 01 Rev. C)

No development shall commence until details of the construction of the vehicular and
pedestrian access arrangements to serve the development hereby approved have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
details shall include scaled plans of the access (including sections and existing and
proposed ground levels) indicating the visibility splays to be achieved on either side
of the proposed access into the existing highway

The materials to be used in the construction of the external elevations of the
buildings, boundary treatments and hard surfaced areas shall be carried out in
accordance with the details shown on the following approved plans:

Amended proposed materials layout plan (Drawing no. 476-P-ML11-01 Rev. 1)
Amended proposed hard landscaping layout plan (Drawing no. 476-P-HLL11-01 Rev.

1)

Page 119



Amended proposed boundary treatments layout plan (Drawing no. 476-P-BLT11-01
Rev. 2)

The development shall be retained as such thereafter.

No development shall commence until a precautionary survey in relation to badger
activity on the site has been undertaken and a method statement detailing any
necessary mitigation measures have been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The approved mitigation measures shall be
implemented on the first commencement of development and shall be retrained as
such thereafter.

The car parking spaces to serve each dwelling as part of the development hereby
approved and the 14 car parking spaces to be provided on the eastern edge of the
development for the existing residents on Milverton Avenue shall be laid out as
shown on the approved site plan (Drawing no. 476-P-PL11-01 Rev. 3) prior to the
first occupation of that dwelling and shall be retained free from obstruction for their
intended use thereafter. Driveways shall be constructed on a level which prevents
displacement of materials or surface water onto the highway and shall be retained as
such thereafter.

The boundary treatments to be installed on each of the plots within the development
hereby approved shall be installed in accordance with the details as shown on
Drawing no. 476-P-BLT11-01 Rev. 2 (boundary treatments plan) prior to the
occupation of that dwelling. The brickwork used in the construction of the boundary
walls and piers shall match in colour and external appearance the materials detailed
on approved Drawing no. 476-P-ML11-01 Rev. 1 (materials plan). The railings shall
be painted black (RAL9005) and shall be retained as such thereafter.

The approved scheme of soft landscaping scheme detailed on approved Drawing no.
c-1663-01 Rev. A shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details
before the first occupation of any part of the development or in accordance with a
programme agreed previously with the local planning authority. Any newly planted
trees or plants forming part of the approved scheme which, within a period of 5 years
from the completion of the planting, are removed, damaged, destroyed or die shall be
replaced in the next appropriate planting season with others of similar size and
species.

No development above ground level shall commence until details of Biodiversity
enhancement measures to be installed as part of the development hereby approved
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
details shall include a specification of the installations and scaled plans showing their
location within the development. The approved enhancement measures shall be
installed in accordance with the approved details, prior to the first occupation of any
of the dwellings and shall be retained as such thereafter.

Prior to the occupation of the dwellings located on plots 1, 9, 33 and 34 of the
development hereby approved (as labelled on approved layout plan Drawing no. 476-
P-PL11-01 Rev. 3), the windows in the following elevations of those units shall be
fitted with obscured glazing (meeting Pilkington Standard Level 3 in obscurity as a

Page 120



10.

11.

minimum) and shall be non-opening below a height of 1.7 metres above the internal
floor level of the room that they serve:

- eastern side elevation of plot 1
- southern elevation of plot 9
- northern elevation of 33 and 34

The development shall be retained as such thereafter.

Prior to the first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved, details of a
management plan to ensure that the 14 car parking spaces adjacent to the eastern
boundary of the site (as indicated on approved site plan (Drawing no. 476-P-PL11-01
Rev. 3) are retained for the use of the existing properties on Milverton Avenue only
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
management plan shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details on
occupation of the fist dwelling and shall be retained as such thereafter.

No development shall commence until a scaled plan showing the phasing of the
construction of the development hereby approved and indicating the location of the
temporary access road to be installed during the construction phase (showing a
direct connection to Hattersley Road West, south of Milverton Avenue) and a
management plan detailing the measures to be employed to enforce the use of this
access only by contractors have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The construction phase of the development shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved details.

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



Application Number: 19/00245/REM Milverton Avenue

Photo 1 — view of western end of Milverton Avenue from hardstanding
area in the south eastern corner of the site

Photo 2 - view looking eastwards from within the site, towards Milverton
Avenue

T

Page 123



Photo 3 — view of western gable elevation of 14 Milverton Avenue

Photo 4 — view of existing properties at 12 and 14 Milverton Avenue
which are surrounded by the application site.

Page 124



Photo 5 — view looking westwards towards the south western corner of
the site

Photo 6 — view looking westwards towards the north western corner of
the site




Photo 7 — view looking northwards across the eastern portion of the site

Photo 8 — view of the rear elevations of the properties on the southern
side of Milverton Avenue

o

VORSLRAR | udi Oy e




Collects

A0@200

WARNING TO HOUSE PURCHASERS
Property Misdescriptions Act 1991

Buyers are warned that this is a working drawing and is not intended to be treated as descriptive material
describing, in relation to any particular property or development, any of the specified matters prescribed by
any Order made under the above act. The contents of this drawing may be subject to change at any time,
and alterations and variations can occur during the progress of the works without revisions of the drawing.
Consequently the layout, form, content and dimensions of the finished construction may differ materially from
those shown. Nor do the contents of this drawing constitute a contract, part of any contract, or warranty.

Rev Description | Date | Drawn | Chk'd |

BARRATT

HOMES
MANCHESTER

Barratt Homes Manchester
(A division of BDW Trading Ltd)
4 Brindley Road
City Park
Manchester
M16 9HQ
Tel: 0161 872 0161
Fax: 0161 855 2828

b
HATTERLSEY 4B
SITE 11
Title
LOCATION PLAN
Design By Date Drawing Number Rev
NC JAN 2019
Drawn By Scale @ A2 476 -P - LP11-01
NC 1:500




This page is intentionally left blank



WARNING TO HOUSE PURCHASERS
Property Misdescriptions Act 1991

Buyers are warned that this is a working drawing and is not intended to be treated as descriptive material
describing, in relation to any particular property or development, any of the specified matters prescribed by
any Order made under the above act. The contents of this drawing may be subject to change at any time,
and alterations and variations can occur during the progress of the works without revisions of the drawing.
Consequently the layout, form, content and dimensions of the finished construction may differ materially from
those shown. Nor do the contents of this drawing constitute a contract, part of any contract, or warranty.

Collects

SCHEDULE OF ACCOMMODATION

Ref |Barratt Type House Type |Sqft |No |Tota| Sqft

KEN Kenley 2 bed house 624 11 6864

MAI Maidstone 3 bed house 830 14 11620
MOR Moresby 3 bed house 855 5 4275
ENN Ennerdale 3 bed house 917 1 917
LUT  Lutterworth 3 bed house 1001 1 1001
KIN Kingsville 3 bed town house 1072 5 5360
Total number of units and square footage 37 30037
\
Gross Site Area in Acres 2.72
Open Space & Undevelopable areain acres 0.49
|
Net Site Areain Acres 2.23
Density (units per acre) 17
“IIIIIIIIIIIl“IIIIIIIIl‘ §k Density (units per hectare) 41
j Square foot / Acre 13,470

MA
e\
\

03 Road radius amended in front of plot 6 to 17.04.19 NC/FB
accommodate man hole position within
highways

02 Schedule of accommodation corrected 12.04.19 NC/PW
01 2 Kingsvilles lost, 1 maidstone gained due to 20.02.19 NC/RB

onsite levels and constraints. Also updated to
suit CIS & LPA comments

Rev Description | Date | Drawn | Chk'd |

T

BARRATT

HOMES
MANCHESTER

> ~ N D \
N / '
26 | ‘n\. ’ “I :lllll'“

' | I \\\ \\ \\\‘ \ ! \\\ | 0 L\
liiiiil II|Il e \\\\ \\ g |\ L (o
|‘| | ‘ I I \ \\ \ \\ \\ \\ \\ ’\\\‘” | o el

Barratt Homes Manchester
(A division of BDW Trading Ltd)

“"«,.h \ 4 Brindley Road
City Park
Manchester
\ M16 9HQ
. Tel: 0161 872 0161
N Fax: 0161 855 2828
b
HATTERLSEY 4B
SITE 11
Title
A0@200
PLANNING LAYOUT
Design By Date Drawing Number Rev
NC JAN 2019
Drawn By Scale @ A2 476 -P - PL11-01 3
NC 1:500




This page is intentionally left blank



Street Scene A- A




This page is intentionally left blank



.>tg._a

Aue aseyound 0} Joesuod e ojul Buusius Jo sasodind ayy Joy uodn paijas . . . .
Co_“a_._omw_u aq jou pjnoys Aay ] "1oesuod ay} ojul pajesodiooul Ajjeoyioads ssajun m<© OO —\ . —\ 9leds ‘Pax%d8yd Om “umelq

Auessem Jo 1oenuoo Aue Jo Jed ‘Joe1U0D B 8)NJISU0D Jou op Buimelp siy)
ISIA n

8102 98Q) UOISIASI lIny 10} 388US Eleq onw 1959y 10 SJUBJUOD By | “BuIMEIP SIY} O} SPEW USS] SABY SUOIEIS)E AUE Jayjoym
uonauossp JBSIAPY SBIES UJIM 308D 0} pasIApe aJe s1aseyoind ‘Buluueld-a. jo/pue . . .
gL0Z unr| uoIsIABl [|ny 10} J9BYS BJe( 0} Jojoy a suone|nbai ul sabueys o} anp asay) bunepdn ul Aejap s|qepioaeun @ _‘ON ‘_m_\/_ 8jed _\OOZ @C_>>m‘_ﬁ_ ASSVAN3 .O@Qw

ue aq awi} 0} awi) woyy Aew aiay) ajep o} dn ale sBuIMEIp INO aINSud

O7d SINIaNdO13IA3IA

11vddvd

L

co_«Q_‘_owm_u 0] Loye A1ans axew am Is|iypsaiadoud [enpiaipul 8y} Jo Joadsal ul

8102 Uer| uoIsinal liny 10} 199US BIEQ 01 Jajoy O | e e etios oy ok oty sessosd IS9G SIMg :@poQ adA| asnoH
aje CO_H_.Q 110sag| A9y pling 8y o ssaiboud ay) Buunp abueys o) 198lgns aq Aew Buimesp
et SIU} JO SJUBJUOD BY) PUE BuimeIp BuBOM e SI SIU} Jey) paulem aie sieng

Buluue|d SY3SVHONNA-ISNOH OL ONINIVM (PIIN) BlNIASBuUIY :owWeN sajes

W 1'66 /- €031y 1004

SIDE ELEVATION

Full height
Full height

1500mm
1500mm

REAR ELEVATION

LOUNGE

HA I

E L]

3988

FAMILY / DINING

T T 1

GROUND FLOOR FIRST FLOOR SECOND FLOOR SIDE ELEVATION

I
|
I
|
i
FRONT ELEVATION
|

Page 133 | 1906 D



This page is intentionally left blank



.>tg._a

Aue aseyound 0} Joesuod e ojul Buusius Jo sasodind ayy Joy uodn paijas

2 Jou pjnoys Aay] }oeju0 By} ojul pajelodiooul Ajleslyioads ssajun
Auessem Jo 1oenuoo Aue Jo Jed ‘Joe1U0D B 8)NJISU0D Jou op Buimelp siy)

10 SJUBJUOD By | “BuIMEIP SIY} O} SPEW USS] SABY SUOIEIS)E AUE Jayjoym
19SIAY SBIES UYJIM 3090 O} PSSIAPE a.e S1aseyoind ‘Buiuue|d-a1 Jojpue
suone|nbai ul sabueys o} anp asay) bunepdn ul Aejap s|qepioaeun

ue aq awi} 0} awi) woyy Aew aiay) ajep o} dn ale sBuIMEIp INO aINSud

0} Loye Aions axew am Js|iypm sauadoud [enpialpul 8y} Jo joadsal ul
Ja)je Aew umoys sainjesy Jo saysiuld “Ajuo aouepinb |eiousb Joy papnjoul
ale payads SUOISUBWIP PUE ‘JusjuOd ‘Wio) INoAe| 8y ‘sseooid

pling 8y} jo ssaiboud ayy Buunp abueyo o) Joalgns aq Aew Buimelp
SIY} JO SJUBJUOD BY) pue Buimesp BuiRiom e si sy} Jey) pausem ale siahng

uonduoap
O71d SINaIWJO13IA3AA

810z 1deg| uoIsinal |y 10} 198YS Ble( O} J8joy a

llvddvd uonduosp
8L0Z Je|N| uoIsIAgl |y 10} 198YS BIB( O} Jajoy o)

uonduoap
/10Z deg| uolsinal |} Joj 188YS Bje( O} Jajey g
aleq uonduosaq| Aey
Buiuue|d

SYIASYHIUNG-ISNOH OL ONINYVM

ev@ 001 : | ©Ieds

610C 1B\ -ed

:paxpay)

Ow :umelq

| 0:ON Buimeiq yoavssvamy:0adg

949G IVING :@poD adAL esnoH

(12Q) o1sSE|D BUOISPIE|N BWeN Ssales

-
_i
[
|

—
I
i

L

SIDE ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION

v

u

FRONT ELEVATION

W VL

)

LANDING

BATH
BED 2 “E)

L

=

4648

fIf

w/m

"=

1o, KITCHEN E DINING

oven

BH ST

up
—

BED 3
[

i

SUITE

ST

4\

up

HALL

LOUNGE

BED 1

G628

Page 135

) 0€8:ealy Jool]

SIDE ELEVATION

FIRST FLOOR

GROUND FLOOR



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5e

Application Number 19/00545/FUL

Proposal Variation of conditions 3 (car parking arrangements), 4 (boundary
treatments) and 8 (refuse storage) of planning permission
17/00534/REM

Site Site of former Samuel Laycock School, Mere Side, Stalybridge

Applicant Contour Homes

Recommendation Grant planning permission subject to conditions

Reason for report A Speakers Panel decision is required because the application
constitutes major development.

1.0 APPLICATION DESCRIPTION

1.1 The applicant seeks full planning permission for the variation of conditions 3 (car
parking arrangements), 4 (boundary treatments) and 8 (refuse storage) of planning
permission 17/00534/REM.

1.2 Condition 3 of planning permission 17/00534/REM states that 'The car parking
spaces to serve the development hereby approved shall be laid out as shown on the
approved proposed site plan (Drawing number 02 Issue P13), prior to the first
occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved and shall be retained free from
obstruction for their intended use thereafter.’

1.3 This application seeks to make a minor alteration to the position of the car parking
space at the rear of plot 27, moving the space eastwards from the western boundary
of the site and relocating the bin storage area to adjacent to the western boundary of
the plot.

1.4 Condition 4 of planning permission 17/00534/REM states that ‘The boundary
treatments shown on the approved proposed boundary treatment elevations plan
(Drawing number 03 Issue P2) shall be installed in the locations shown on plan ref.
proposed site plan (Drawing number 02 Issue P13), in accordance with the approved
details, prior to the first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved.’

1.5 This application seeks to make a minor alteration to the boundary treatment of plot
27 to extend the 1.2 metre high close boarded fencing around the perimeter of the
relocated car parking space and pulling the fence line further towards the southern
boundary of that plot, with the metal railings at the back edge of the footway being
retained in the approved position.

1.6 Condition 8 of the planning permission related to the provision of the bin storage
arrangements for each plot as identified on the approved plans. Minor re-alignment of
the means of enclosure to screen the refuse storage areas are proposed within some
of the plots.

Page 137



2.0

2.1

3.0
3.1

3.2

3.3

4.0
4.1
4.2

4.3

4.2

4.3

SITE & SURROUNDINGS

The application site is 1.38 hectares in area and is located to the north of Mere Side
and Lake Road, Stalybridge. Existing residential development lies to the south of the
site and the area is characterized by a mix of detached, semi-detached and terraced
properties. Stamford Park, a Grade Il registered park and garden, lies to the west
and north of the site. A footpath runs outside of the site along the southern and
eastern boundaries. The site is currently being developed out following the grant8ing
of the original reserved matters application.

PLANNING HISTORY

18/00654/MATCH — non material amendment to include an additional window at
ground floor level in the gable elevation of 2 of the plots (7 and 11) (to be obscurely
glazed, as labelled on the submitted plans), the widening of part of the footway in the
south western corner of the site and the use of tarmac to treat the road surface in the
eastern and north western parts of the development - approved

17/00534/REM — Approval of the layout, scale, appearance and landscaping for 2
storey residential development comprising 44 new dwellings (following granting of
outline planning permission under ref. 16/00856/OUT. — approved

16/00856/0OUT - Outline application for residential development and associated
works - approved

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

Tameside Unitary Development Plan (UDP) Allocation
Not allocated, within the settlement of Stalybridge

Part 1 Policies

1.3: Creating a Cleaner and Greener Environment.

1.4: Providing More Choice and Quality Homes.

1.5: Following the Principles of Sustainable Development

1.6 Securing Urban Regeneration

1.12: Ensuring an Accessible, Safe and Healthy Environment

Part 2 Policies

H2: Unallocated sites

H4: Type, size and affordability of dwellings

H5: Open Space Provision

H7: Mixed Use and Density (Density being relevant to this proposal)
H10: Detailed Design of Housing Developments

OL10: Landscape Quality and Character

T1: Highway Improvement and Traffic Management.

T10: Parking

Page 138



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

6.2

T11: Travel Plans.

C1: Townscape and Urban Form

N7: Protected Species

MW11: Contaminated Land.

U3: Water Services for Developments
U4 Flood Prevention

U5 Energy Efficiency

Other Policies
Greater Manchester Spatial Framework - Publication Draft October 2018;

The Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) has consulted on the
draft Greater Manchester Spatial Framework Draft 2019 (“GMSF”) which shows
possible land use allocations and decision making polices across the region up to
2038. The document is a material consideration but the weight afforded to it is
limited by the fact it is at an early stage in its preparation which is subject to
unresolved objections

Residential Design Supplementary Planning Document; and,
Trees and Landscaping on Development Sites SPD adopted in March 2007.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Section 2: Achieving sustainable development

Section 5: Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Section 8 Promoting healthy and safe communities

Section 11: Making efficient use of land

Section 12: Achieving well designed places

Section 15: Conserving and enhancing the Natural Environment

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

This is intended to complement the NPPF and to provide a single resource for
planning guidance, whilst rationalising and streamlining the material. Almost all
previous planning Circulars and advice notes have been cancelled. Specific
reference will be made to the PPG or other national advice in the Analysis section of
the report, where appropriate.

PUBLICITY CARRIED OUT

Neighbour notification letters were issued in accordance with the requirements of the
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order
2015 and the Council’'s adopted Statement of Community Involvement.

RESPONSES FROM CONSULTEES

Local Highway Authority — no objections to the proposals.

Borough Environmental Health Officer (EHO) - no objections to the proposals.

Page 139



7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

9.0

9.1

9.2

SUMMARY OF THIRD PARTY RESPONSES RECEIVED
No representations have been received.
ANAYLSIS

National Planning Practice Guidance promotes flexible options for planning
permissions. Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 allows for
applicants to apply to the Local Planning Authority to amend or vary conditions
placed on a planning consent. Where an application under section 73 is granted, the
effect is the issue of a new planning permission, sitting alongside the original
permission, which remains intact and unamended. The only restriction under section
73 is that planning permission cannot be granted to extend the time limit within which
a development must be started.

NPPG advises that; ‘In deciding an application under section 73, the local planning
authority must only consider the disputed condition’s that are the subject of the
application — it is not a complete re-consideration of the application.” The original
planning permission will continue to exist.

The principle of development was established through the granting of outline
planning permission ref. 16/00856/OUT and reserved matters approval ref.
17/00534/REM determined the scale, layout and landscaping of the development.
This application seeks to make minor amendments to the scheme approved at the
reserved matters stage in relation to parking layout, boundary treatments and bin
storage associated with one of the plots

The issues to be assessed in the determination of this planning application are:

- The impact of the revisions to the previously approved scheme on the character
of the surrounding area.
- The impact of the revisions to the previously approved scheme on the residential

amenity of neighbouring properties
- The impact of the revisions to the previously approved scheme on highway safety

CHARACTER

The proposed extension of the 1.2 metre high fencing around the perimeter of the
relocated car parking space associated with plot 27 would not result in a detrimental
impact in the character of the development and would represent a modest change to
the appearance of the extant scheme.

The extant scheme approved 1.5 metre high fencing along the rear boundary of the
original parking space and 1.2 metre high fencing along the southern edge of the
garden of that plot. The proposed alteration to the alignment of that fence would bring
it closer to the 1 metre high railings on the back edge of the footway. However, this
revised fence line would not be prominent in views from Mere Side looking into the
development and the height of the fencing at the rear of the parking space would be
reduced by 300mm in relation to the approved scheme.

Page 140



9.3

9.4

9.5

10.0

10.1

10.2

11.0

12.0

12.1

12.2

The proposed relocated bin store would be screened from public view by a taller
fence in this revised scheme than the extant permission and this alteration would
therefore not result in an adverse impact on the character of the area.

The proposed re-alignment of the screening to the bin storage areas within some of
the plots would not result in an adverse impact on the character of the area, with all
storage areas still contained within the curtilage of each of the properties.

Following the above assessment, it is considered that the proposed amendments to
the extant scheme would not result in an adverse impact on the character of the site
or the surrounding area.

RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

The proposed alterations would not result in a reduction in the separation distances
between any of the buildings within the development or the pre-existing neighbouring
properties. The amendment to the location of the fence line on the southern
boundary of plot 27 would not be so significant as to result in harm to the amenity of
the properties to the south through unreasonable overshadowing over and above the
extant position. The same assessment applies to the relocation and minor
modification to the bin store and screening. There are no objections on amenity
grounds from the Environmental Health Officer. The proposed re-alignment of the
screening to the bin storage areas within some of the plots would not result in an
adverse impact on the residential amenity of any neighbouring properties.

The amended proposals would therefore not result in a detrimental impact on the
residential amenity of any neighbouring properties.

HIGHWAY SAFETY

The proposal would result in a modest relocation of the car parking space to the rear
of plot 27. The proposals would not result in a reduction in the number of car parking
spaces across the development and the driveway would remain of sufficient length.
As a result, the proposals would not result in an adverse impact on highway safety.
This assessment is corroborated by the lack of objection from the Local Highway
Authority to the proposals.

CONCLUSION

The minor nature of the modifications to the location of the parking space, the
boundary treatment associated with plot 27 and the minor re-alignment of the
screening to the bin storage areas within some of the plots are considered not to
result in a detrimental impact on the character of the area, the residential amenity of
neighbouring properties or highway safety.

The proposals are therefore considered to comply with the relevant national and local
planning policies quoted above.

RECOMMENDATION

Grant planning permission, subject the following conditions:

Page 141



1.

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans: Proposed site plan (Drawing number 102 Issue R2),
proposed street elevations (1 of 2) (Drawing number 09 Issue P2), proposed street
elevations (2 of 2) (Drawing number 10 Issue P2), proposed house type plans
(Drawing number 05 Issue P5, Drawing number 06 Issue P5, Drawing number 07
Issue P5, Drawing number 08 Issue P4), amended floor plans (Drawing number 04
Issue P8), amended plan entitled Soft landscape Layout produced by Brooklyn
Landscapes Ltd (Rev. F), proposed boundary treatment elevations plan (Drawing
number 03 Issue P2) and eastern boundary elevation plan (Drawing no. SKO1 Issue
P1).

The materials to be used in the construction of the external faces of the buildings
hereby approved shall accord with the details shown on drawing no.s 08 Issue P4, 07
Issue P5, 06 Issue P5 and 05 Issue P5 submitted as part of discharge of condition
application ref. 18/00040/PLCOND and shall be retained as such thereafter.

The car parking spaces to serve the development hereby approved shall be laid out
as shown on the approved proposed site plan (Drawing number 102 Issue R2), prior
to the first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved and shall be retained
free from obstruction for their intended use thereafter.

The boundary treatments shown on the approved proposed boundary treatment
elevations plan (Drawing number 03 Issue P2) shall be installed in the locations
shown on plan ref. proposed site plan (Drawing number 102 Issue R2), in
accordance with the approved details, prior to the first occupation of any of the
dwellings hereby approved.

All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details. The works shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any part of
the development or in accordance with a programme approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority prior to the occupation of any part of the development. Any newly
planted trees or plants forming part of the approved landscaping scheme which,
within a period of 5 years from the completion of the planting, are removed,
damaged, destroyed or die shall be replaced in the next appropriate planting season
with others of similar size and species by the developer unless the local planning
authority gives written consent to any variation.

The visitor car parking spaces, and the associated landscaping within the
development hereby approved shall be managed and maintained in accordance with
the details included within the statement produced by Onward approved under
discharge of condition application ref. 18/00109/PLCOND and shall be retained as
such thereafter.

Prior to the occupation of any part of the development hereby approved, visibility
splays shall be provided on both sides of the site access where it meets the footway.
The visibility splays shall measure 2.4metres along the edge of the site access and
2.4 metres along the footway. It must be clear of anything higher than 600mm above
ground level. The visibility splays shall be retained as such thereafter.

Page 142



8. The bin storage arrangements to serve each plot shall be installed in accordance
with the details indicated on approved plan drawing no. 102 Issue R2 prior to the first
occupation of that plot and shall be retained as such thereafter.

Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank



Application Number: 19/00545/FUL Samuel Laycock

Photo 1 — view looking south westwards along southern boundary of the
site

Photo 2 - view looking south westwards along southern boundary from
within the site

Page 145



Photo 3 — view of entrance to the site on Mere Side

Photo 4 — view of entrance into Mere Side from Junction with Lake Road

Page 146



NOTE: These As Record drawings General Notes
. g — — 01: Dimensions must not be scaled from this drawing. If in doubt, please ask.
are a record of the ConStrUQtJon ~ ~ 02: All dimensions are in millimetres unless noted otherwise.
. . w2 By - N 03: All dimensions should be verified on site before proceeding with the work.
issue of dr s revised followin
al inspections made by TADW

/ 05: © TADW Limited (UK) 2015

V% N 04: TADW Architects shall be notified in writing of any discrepancies.
on 22.05.2019 and 16.07.2019. | < ] Legend
/ >
AN

_ - ~
- &

T 541 4 _ Black Tarmac. Lighter shade shown to pavements for
< 101, 'WHH\Wmuwwurrrrm\Wmm\\\mumm\\\mumm\\\mumm\\\mumm\\nmmmwumuWqurm—n = - ™ / diagrammatic purposes only
. i

“ Jl NTH‘MH#HHH'T'?‘HHH‘?‘?‘HHWH WTTMHTITLT: 717, = ‘

ity — T NRee T~ Buff concrete paving slab
3 i, ~ 3 - O\ uff concrete paving slabs

- N “ /////////////////////// " ~
‘ iy,
s

m

1

10111114l — —

oy,
Pr Ot‘eotlg "de ooy A Black Tarmac to driveways

//////

7

a & ve T Wiy, \ ‘\“\\\\\\V////\
> il

Boundary Types

Type A (Front Boundary)

1000mm high metal railings, Jacksons Sentry
Residential Railings or similar with metal plate fixed to
rear at base, all elements colour black.

Type B (Boundary Between Rear Gardens and Public
Footpaths)

525mm high, 215mm thick facing brickwork wall with
440mm square brickwork piers to a height of 1875mm at
1800mm centres, both with 50mm pc concrete copings,
Close boarded timber fence panels between brickwork
piers to 1800mm above ground level.

=
4

B 760. 0-52 . == === == Type C (Rear Boundary Fence to Open Space and
N U, ) BUFF S e FFL Tygeo . Shared Accesses)
SR N WS 7 7. 72 a 1500mm high close boarded timber fence with 300mm
N F AT, S high timber trellis, pc concrete posts and 300mm pc
N AN - N N b RED 0.825 G/l BLURE concrete gravel boards. To be used to retain small
2 N . _—J——- ~ amounts of earth where necessary and approved by SE
N " ’ I O\ during technical design. Where used as retaining
b b > oD v N structure, posts are to be increased in height and
Do » additional gravel boards provided as required to ensure
o N min. 2100mm fencing above level of retained land.

AN
A BN N i S R s N\ . Type D (Rgar Boundary Fencg) '
= ) 1200mm high close boarded timber fence with 300mm
= AN high timber trellis, pc concrete posts and 300mm pc
X concrete gravel boards. To be used to retain small
amounts of earth where necessary and approved by SE

s
5 N NN h during technical design. Where used as retaining
T N - RED N S structure, posts are to be increased in height and
\.‘.x‘:‘

N N ool . additional gravel boards provided as required to ensure
A min. 1800mm fencing above level of retained land.

== === w== Type E (Subdivisional Rear Boundary Fence)
1500mm high close boarded timber fence with pc
concrete posts and 300mm high pc concrete gravel
boards for first 2m from rear face of buildings. Beyond
first 2m, 900mm high close boarded timber fence with
300mm high timber trellis, pc concrete posts and 300mm
pc concrete gravel boards. To be used to retain small
amounts of earth where necessary and approved by SE
during technical design. Where used as retaining
structure, posts are to be increased in height as required
to ensure min. 1800mm fencing above level of retained
land.

AN
AN
s AN ° == mm= == Type F (Bin screen)
> |
N

Yoe
AR 8

7
\
I

aimponus bululeids Jo o3

1.2m high timber screen consisting of 100x19mm
horizontal treated timber fence paling at 125mm centres
on 100mm square treated timber fence posts and with
100x25mm treated timber capping

2
(@)
g
\
B>
3s A

mmmmmmmnnnn-— | jne of retaining structures (to SE details) where they are
required to depart from fence / boundary lines in order to
> X N ¢ be outside of root protection zones

NOTE: All boundary treatments to be in strict
accordance with SBD requirements

K " () This drawing to be read in conjunction with
: . 2 b o . . latest revision of drawing number 711237
X . > 103. If in doubt, please contact TADW
. | N A - Architects

v

B Bin screens revised to suit
> noR BUFF Ty;]f B UFF Type 3 Yre g un ,778/'/7 R2 information received from contractor | 20-08:19 | AM MH
AN Vo .

Nq;, as
A R J /Ca R1 Issued as record 14.08.19 | AM MH
RED AR RED Tygfe RED e 58 Ep N z‘ed u recor

o
v
o

Issue | Description Date Drawn | Checked

76,
L 753 97 760.20 0'42 N 0344.026’ Drawing Status
- < N N N 24 P - Planning | T - Tender | C - Construction | R - As Record

A . Repy | — \\\\\\\\ OO0 \ N e As Record

=
S
&
O
/

FF 75 [l
FR, L AR 4 >
L 5, 45 ryARB 15, 60 ey Ty, GRA 825 . (

Six St. Petersgate Stockport Cheshire SK1 1HD
AN Ph 0161 477 6158 Fx 0161 480 8342 mail@tadw.co.uk www.tadw.co.uk

_N ' Client The Casey Group with Contour
; § Homes

. Job Site of Former Samuel Laycock
Y School, Stalybridge

ﬂ ® Title Proposed Site Plan

Information Warning Don't Do
/;\ \j; Scale 1:200 @ A1

nce and In Use ards
be assess y gub contractors
Note - Prints from PDF files may not be to scale, check accuracy against scale

%

Significant Maintena

Sub-contractor to assess
M Potential for falls fro

azards arisin, uipment installed
height whilst cleaning window:

0 leaning to be by extendable pole from ground itions 2
tential for falls from height when maintaining roofs and gutters etc. S Om
M Leaf guard / brush installed to minimise maintenance requirements due to number of 10 1:200

03 existing and proposed trees. Periodic cleaning by competent persons from suitable

access equipment. Pr i PI n .
For urt%ep:' de’tailsp]easerefamWrﬂfic:zaml-kazard/ 01 oppsed Site a Job Number Drawing Number Issue

: . , tects. 102 :
Register. Iindoubt, please contact TADW Architects | 102 Sc?é/1 :200 @ A1 71 1 237 1 02 R2



AutoCAD SHX Text
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
TREE


This page is intentionally left blank



61T obed

01

General Notes

01: Dimensions must not be scaled from this drawing. If in doubt, please ask.

02: All are in

unless noted

03: All dimensions should be verified on site before proceeding with the work.
04: TADW Architects shall be notified in writing of any discrepancies.
05: © TADW Limited (UK) 2015

\

_—

399905.58" s hd s hd i
\
Pajh um

)

399801

5 A\\ 4

ok Q~

3997

MERE$Ibe

—

)

399725.79,

39570

3057
95801
958!

19565

metres

© Crown copyright 2016. Supplied by mapserve.co.uk a licensed Ordnance Survey partner number 100053143
Reproduction in whole or part is prohibited without the prior permission of Ordnance Survey.

39587:

399905.58

399900

399850

399800

399750

399726.79

Legend
P1 Drawn 23.06.17 | AM MH
Issue | Description Date Drawn | Checked

Drawing Status

P - Planning | T - Tender | C - Construction | R - As Record

For Approval

ta dw architects \mf

Six St. Petersgate Stockport Cheshire SK1 1HD
Ph 0161477 6158 Fx 0161 480 8342 mail@tadw.co.uk www.tadw.co.uk

Location Plan

00

Scale 1:1250 @ A3

Client  The Casey Group / Contour Homes

Job Site of Former Samuel Laycock
School, Stalybridge

Title Location Plan

Scale 1:1250 @ A3

Note - Prints from PDF files may not be to scale, check accuracy against scale

20m 60m
10m 40m 1:1250
Job Number Drawing Number Issue

711237

00

P1




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6a

' The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 26 July 2019

by R Jones BA(Hons) DipTP MRTPI
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State
Decision date: 1%t August 2019

Appeal Ref: APP/G4240/D/19/3230080
18 Hollybank, Droylsden, Tameside, Manchester M43 7SP

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Mrs Julie North against the decision of Tameside Metropolitan
Borough Council.

e The application Ref 19/00254/FUL, dated 19 March 2019, was refused by notice dated
20 May 20109.

e The development proposed is a first floor extension to the front.

Decision
1. The appeal is dismissed.
Main Issue

2. The main issue is the effect of the proposed extension on the character and
appearance of the street scene.

Reasons

3. The appeal relates to No 18 Hollybank (No 18), a two storey house that sits
within a short row of three terraced houses linked by a car port to a pair of
semi-detached houses. There is an existing porch to the front of the house and
it is proposed to extend over this at first floor level to accommodate an
en-suite bathroom.

4. Nos 8-20 Hollybank are a mixture of semi-detached and terraced houses, but
are very uniform in their appearance, notably including front monopitch
porches, with gable roof detailing over the first floor window above.

5. The extension would not extend further than the existing porch and would be
finished in matching external materials. However, the first floor extension
would result in a two storey projecting gable which would be very dominant in
the street scene and would result in the loss of rhythm and uniformity of
houses on this side of Hollybank. Further, although forming part of a terrace of
three, Nos 18 and 20 Hollybank are handed so that the porch for No 18 is not
centrally located in the elevation of the terrace. The size and scale of the
proposed extension would unbalance this composition.

6. I have had regard to Nos 12 and 14 Newton Street (Nos 12 and 14) referred to
by the appellant which have been extended at first floor in a similar way to the
proposals before me. Nos 12 and 14 are a pair of semi-detached houses at the

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 151


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/G4240/D/19/3230080

end of Newton Street adjacent larger detached houses. The extension of both
Nos 12 and 14 means that the elevation would not be unbalanced in a similar
way to the appeal proposal and they are not therefore directly comparable. In
any event, I have considered the appeal proposals on its merits and against the
particular street scene within which it would be set.

7. For the reasons above, I conclude that the proposed extension would cause
harm to the character and appearance of the street scene. It would therefore
conflict with paragraph 127 of the National Planning Policy Framework and
Policies 1.3, C1 and H10 of the Tameside Unitary Development Plan, 2004,
which all promote good design that responds well to local context and
surroundings.

8. There would also be a conflict with the guidance at Policies RED1 and RED9 of
the Tameside Residential Design Supplementary Planning Document, 2010
because the extensions would alter the scale and massing of the house in a
way that was not appropriately proportioned, detracting from the character of
the street scene.

Conclusion

9. For the reasons above, and taking all other matters into account, I conclude
the appeal should be dismissed.

R, Jones

INSPECTOR

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 1522


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Agenda Item 6b

' The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 9 July 2019

by J M Tweddle BSc(Hons) MSc MRTPI
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State

Decision date: 2" August 2019

Appeal Ref: APP/G4240/W /3227157
40 Ardenfield, Denton M34 7LN

The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant outline planning permission.

The appeal is made by Mrs Melanie Manwaring against the decision of Tameside
Metropolitan Borough Council.

The application Ref 18/00059/0UT, dated 20 January 2018, was refused by notice dated
14 November 2018.

The development proposed is described as the building of two houses on land to the
rear of 40, Ardenfield M34 7LN. Access to the site to be obtained directly from the
hammerhead end of Ardenfield (between house numbers 40 and 38) by the removal of
a section of hedge and the demolition of a single garage, both owned by the applicant.

Decision

1.

The appeal is dismissed.

Procedural Matters

2.

The full description of development as stated on the application form is set out
above. The Council’s decision notice has described the development as
‘erection of two dwellinghouses’. This is a more accurate and succinct
description of what is proposed, and I have therefore considered the appeal on
this basis.

The planning application was submitted in outline with all matters reserved
except for access. A proposed block plan and 3D visualisations (Drawing No
1812 01) accompany the proposal and I have had regard to them as indicative,
other than the proposed access arrangements, and only in so far as
establishing whether it would be possible, in principle, to develop the site for
housing.

A revised version of the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework)
was published on 19 February 2019 and this post-dates the Council’s refusal
notice. I have had regard to the revised Framework in my decision and I am
satisfied that this has not prejudiced either party.

Main Issues

5.

There are two main issues. These are the effect of the proposed development
on a) the character and appearance of the area; and b) the living conditions of
existing and future occupiers with particular regard to the amount of amenity
space and privacy.

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 153


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/G4240/W/3227157

Reasons

Character and Appearance

6.

10.

11.

The appeal site forms part of the rear garden area of a semi-detached house.
The property occupies a corner plot and is typical of other housing in this
residential estate, the street scene of which is generally characterised by
evenly spaced pairs of semis aligned in an orderly manner fronting the highway
and benefitting from good sized front and rear gardens. Indeed, the deep and
verdant garden of the appeal site and its neighbours, along with a mature band
of woodland which borders these gardens, provide a sylvan backdrop to the
properties along this part of the street and contribute significantly to the
pleasant, verdant and spacious suburban character of the area.

The indicative plans show a pair of semi-detached bungalows taking up a
substantial part of the rear garden area of the host property, thereby
introducing a form of backland development that would be at odds with the
orderly manner of development described above. The result would be a pair of
houses that would not integrate well with their surrounding context.

Whilst the bungalows would likely be of limited scale, their positioning to the
rear of the host dwelling and absence of any positive street frontage would
result in a cramped and discordant form of development that fails to reflect the
spatial characteristics and prevailing pattern of development of the surrounding
area. Furthermore, the loss of a significant area of garden would erode the
spacious and verdant character I have mentioned above.

The appellant suggests that the proposed dwellings would be approximately in
line with No 38A Ardenfield, which is set back from the street, and so would
respect established building lines. However, 38A is read as a continuation of
the existing street scene along the western side of Ardenfield, comprising No’s
38, 36, 34, and so on. 38A is to the side of, and generally in line with, these
existing properties unlike the appeal proposal that would extend built form to
the rear of, and thereby away from, the established street scene.

It is also suggested that there would be limited views of the appeal proposal,
thereby reducing any potential visual harm. Although, during my site visit, 1
could see clear and extensive views through the site, and to the woodland
beyond, from a number of points along the adjacent public highway. Indeed,
the removal of the existing garage, to enable access to the site, would increase
the site’s prominence within the street scene and further emphasise its poor
relationship with the existing housing.

Consequently, I find the proposal would harm the character and appearance of
the area. This is contrary to saved Policies H9 and H10 of the Tameside Unitary
Development Plan 2004 (the TUDP) and Section 12 of the Framework which
together require residential development to be of a high quality design that
complements or enhances the character and appearance of the surrounding
area.

Living Conditions

12.

At present No 40 is served by a garden of ample size which reflects the
character of the area and is commensurate with the size of the property. Saved
Policy H9 of the TUDP seeks to retain residential garden areas and ensure that
privacy is maintained between existing and proposed dwellings and their

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 1542


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/G4240/W/3227157

13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

gardens. This approach is broadly consistent with the requirements of the
Framework which seek to ensure the provision of appropriate levels of amenity
for existing and future users and to resist the inappropriate development of
residential gardens where such development would cause harm to the local
area.

The appellant states that the remaining garden area of No 40 would be of a
significant size to serve the dwelling and that adequate private amenity space
has been provided to reflect the limited size and scale of the proposed
dwellings. In fact, the proposal would see the loss of the garage to the side of
No 40, to gain access to the site, and what appears to be over 50% of the
existing rear private garden area. This is a substantial loss of amenity space
that would fall significantly short of the generous garden sizes found in this
part of the housing estate and what would reasonably be expected by the
occupants of the existing property.

Similarly, I find the private amenity space proposed for the two new dwellings
to be particularly small with the usable area likely to be even smaller due to
the significant gradient of the site along its south eastern boundary.
Consequently, I am of the view that the size of the amenity space for both the
existing and proposed dwellings would be inadequate and far less than what
could reasonably be expected by future occupants.

It is suggested that the remaining garden area would be comparable to that of
the rear garden area at No 54, at the end of this row of houses. However, I
have not been provided with the dimensions of this garden area and therefore
am unable to draw any firm conclusions in this regard.

Turning now to the matter of privacy, the Council are concerned that the
minimum 20 metre window to window distance for habitable rooms has not
been achieved in accordance with the guidance set out in their Residential
Design Supplementary Planning Document (the SPD). Whilst this is a valid
concern, I am mindful that matters of layout, scale and appearance are all
reserved for consideration at a later stage and therefore, as the appellant
suggests, the detailed design of the properties and the positioning of windows
could be dealt with at the reserved matters stage to ensure acceptable levels of
privacy are maintained between the properties. I also find, in relation to
matters of privacy, no conflict between the existing and proposed garden
arrangements.

To conclude on this main issue, whilst there would be no unacceptable loss of
privacy, I have found that the provision of amenity space for the proposed
dwellings would be inadequate. In combination with the significant loss of
private garden space from the existing house, this would be harmful to the
living conditions of the occupiers of No 40 and the future occupiers of the
proposed dwellings. This would be contrary to saved Policies H9 and H10 of the
TUDP and the provisions of the Framework which, amongst other things, seek
to resist the inappropriate development of garden areas and ensure high
standards of amenity for all existing and future occupiers.

Planning Balance

18.

Both parties agree that the Council is unable to demonstrate a five year supply
of deliverable housing sites. In accordance with footnote 7 of paragraph 11d of
the Framework, the lack of a five year supply of deliverable housing sites

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 155


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/G4240/W/3227157

19.

renders the policies which are most important for determining the proposal to
be out-of-date. This would indicate that planning permission ought to be
granted unless the application of policies within the Framework that protect
areas or assets of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the
proposal or any adverse impacts would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies of the Framework
taken as a whole. In this case, from the evidence before me, the proposal does
not relate to an asset or area of particular importance and therefore policies
which afford protection to such assets and areas do not apply. It is therefore
necessary for me to balance the benefits of the proposal against any adverse
impacts and in light of the ‘tilted balance’ set out in paragraph 11d)ii of the
Framework.

In the context of the development plan, I have found that the proposed
development would be harmful to the character and appearance of the area
and would not provide acceptable living standards to current and future
occupants. In these regards, the proposal is contrary to saved Policies H9 and
H10 of the TUDP. I have found these policies to be generally consistent with
the relevant aims and requirements of the Framework and whilst they can act
to restrict development, I attach substantial weight to them and the harm that
arises in this case from the conflict I have found with them.

20. Turning to the benefits, the proposal would provide two additional dwellings

21.

with some economic and social benefits derived from its construction and
occupation. These benefits are tempered by the limited amount of development
that is proposed, but nevertheless carry modest weight in favour of the
development, mindful of the housing land supply shortfall.

Overall, I find that the adverse impacts of the proposed development would
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against
the policies of the Framework taken as a whole. Therefore, in the context of
paragraph 11 of the Framework, the proposal would not represent sustainable
development and I consider that the balance of considerations is against the
appeal proposal.

Other Matters

22.

My attention has been drawn to an approval for a development of 16 houses on
Wordsworth Road where it is suggested that the approved housing does not
respond to the prevailing character of the area with the approved properties
comprising of relatively small garden areas. I do not have the full details of this
scheme before me, however, its scale and locational context appears to differ
from that of the appeal and is therefore unlikely to be comparable to the
appeal proposal. I have in any case considered the appeal on its own merits
and found that it would cause harm.

Conclusion

23.

For the reasons I have set out, and having considered all other matters raised,
I dismiss the appeal.

Jeff Tweddle

INSPECTOR

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 1564


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Agenda Item 6¢

' The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 19 June 2019

by F Rafiq BSc (Hons), MCD, MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State
Decision date: 20" August 2019

Appeal Ref: APP/G4240/D/19/3228420
21 Mansfield Road, Hyde, SK14 5PF

The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

The appeal is made by Mr Akik Miah against the decision of Tameside Metropolitan
Borough Council.

The application Ref 18/01002/FUL, dated 14 November 2018 was refused by notice
dated 19 February 2019.

The development proposed is a single storey rear extension with double storey side
extension.

Decision

1.

The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for a single storey
rear extension with double storey side extension at 21 Mansfield Road, Hyde,
SK14 5PF in accordance with the terms of the application, Ref 18/01002/FUL,
dated 14 November 2018, subject to the following conditions:

1) The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than 3 years
from the date of this decision.

2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following approved plans: Drawing No: AM19418.

3) The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of
the development hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing
building.

Main Issue

2.

The main issue is the effect of the proposal on the living conditions of
neighbouring occupiers at No. 19 Mansfield Road with reference to daylight,
sunlight and outlook.

Reasons

3.

The appeal property is a two storey semi-detached dwelling which is situated
on the northern side of Mansfield Road. The property is located amongst a
group of similar semi-detached dwellings whose front elevations face the
highway. To the west of the appeal site are a number of bungalows, that are
set behind a landscaped area, and are situated at varied angles to the road.

The proposal seeks a two storey extension to part of the side elevation of the
dwelling, with a single storey proposal to the rear of the existing building. The
Council do not consider that the two storey proposal would interfere with the

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 157


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/G4240/D/19/3228420

outlook from the rear facing windows of the bungalow at No. 19, but have
raised concerns that the development would visually dominate the rear of this
neighbouring property, including its rear garden area. The Appellant has
identified that the nearest habitable room window to the rear of No. 19 is sited
away from the appeal dwelling, and towards No. 17. I was able to see at the
time of my visit that a shed was located to the rear of No. 19, close to the
boundary with the appeal dwelling, with the main area of this neighbouring
property’s garden located away from the two storey proposal. As such, and
whilst noting the orientation of the appeal building relative to the neighbouring
property at No. 19, given the separation with the two storey element of the
development, I do not consider that it would create an uncomfortable sense of
enclosure. The existing single storey garage would be replaced with a larger
two storey development, but given the presence of the existing two storey
dwelling to the south east of No. 19, I consider the effect of additional
overshadowing would not be unduly harmful relative to the current position,
which the Council have identified as a compromised situation.

I therefore conclude there would not be any unacceptable adverse effect on the
neighbouring occupiers at No. 19 Mansfield Road with regards to daylight,
sunlight or outlook and there would therefore be no conflict with Policies 1.3,
C1 or H10 of The Tameside Unitary Development Plan, which require, amongst
other matters, development to ensure that there is no unacceptable impact on
the amenity of neighbouring properties. It would also not conflict with the
Tameside Residential Design Supplementary Planning Document, or the
National Planning Policy Framework (Paragraph 127), which seeks a high
standard of amenity for existing and future users.

Conclusion

6.

For the reasons given above and having taken into account all other matters
raised, including the Council considering the single storey aspect of the scheme
to be acceptable, I conclude the appeal should be allowed.

Conditions

7.

The Council have suggested a number of conditions. I consider the standard
implementation condition and a condition for the development to be carried out
in accordance with the approved plans to be necessary for the avoidance of
doubt and in the interests of proper planning. A condition requiring matching
materials is also necessary in the interests of the character and appearance of
the host dwelling and the area.

F Rafig

INSPECTOR

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 1582


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 OBJECTIONS TO PROPOSED PARKING TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS, ASHTON TOWN CENTRE
	5a 19/00334/FUL - Land at Rutland Street, Ashton-under-Lyne
	Photos
	Proposed site plan
	Proposed streetscene
	Proposed ground and first floor plans
	Second floor and roof plan
	Proposed elevations

	5b 19/00067/FUL - Hill Street Works, Hill Street, Hyde
	Photos
	Hill St Map
	Hill St Photos 1
	Hill St Photos 2

	Google Earth Satellite Image of the site
	Location & Site Plan
	Sheets
	01 - Site & Location Plans


	Scale & Massing Plan
	Proposed Elevations
	Sheets
	00 - Proposed Houses
	01 - Site & Location Plans
	02 - Elevations
	03 - House Type - 2  Storey
	04 - House Type - 3 Storey (Type 'A')
	05 - House Type - 3 Storey (Type 'B')
	06 - Site and Massing



	5c 18/00818/FUL - Former Globe Works, Brook Street, Hyde
	18.00818.full Brook Street Photos
	Google earth view
	site location plan
	T758_P003B - Proposed Site Plan (2)
	T758_P027A - Block H Proposed Elevations
	T758_P018A - Block E typival house type
	T758_P042A - Proposed Street Scenes and Site Sections

	5d 19/00245/REM - Land to the west of Milverton Avenue, Hattersley
	Photos
	Hattersley location
	Hattersley site plan
	Hattersley streetscene plan
	Hattersley House Type 1
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	Hattersley House Type 2
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1



	5e 19/00545/FUL - Site of former Samuel Laycock School, Mereside, Stalybridge
	Photos
	Laycock site plan
	Sheets and Views
	711237 Samuel Laycock AS RECORD-102


	Laycok location
	Sheets and Views
	711237 Samuel Laycock-00



	6a APP/G4240/D/19/3230080 - 18 Hollybank, Droylsden.  M43 7SP
	6b APP/G4240/W/3227157 - 40 Ardenfield, Denton.  M34 7LN
	6c APP/G4240/D/19/3228420 - 21 Mansfield Road, Hyde.  SK14 5PF

